MCcKINLEYVILLE

COMMUNITY
SERVICES
DISTRICT

Mission statement of McKinleyville Community Services District:
“Provide McKinleyville with safe and reliable water, wastewater, lighting, open
space, parks and recreation, library services, and other appropriate services

for an urban community in an environmentally and fiscally responsible

manner.”

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE
MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS
WILL BE HELD
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2023 AT 6:00pm

LOCATION: AZALEA HALL
1620 Pickett Road
McKinleyville, California

Or
TELECONFERENCE Via ZOOM & TELEPHONE:

Use ZOOM MEETING ID: 859 4543 6653 (https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85945436653) or DIAL
IN TOLL FREE: 1-888-788-0099 (No Password Required!)

To participate in person, please come to Azalea Hall.

To participate by teleconference, please use the toll free number listed above, or join through the
internet at the Zoom App with weblink and ID number listed above, or the public may submit written
comments to the Board Secretary at: comments@mckinleyvillecsd.com up until 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, January 31, 2023.

All Public Comment received before the above deadline will be provided to the Board at 9 a.m. on
Wednesday, February 1, 2023 in a supplemental packet information that will also be posted on the
website for public viewing.

AGENDA

6:00p.m.
A. CALL TO ORDER
A.1 Roll Call

A.2  Pledge of Allegiance

A.3 Additions or Changes to the Agenda

ltems may be added to the Agenda in accordance with Section 54954.2(b)(2) of the Government Code
(Brown Act), upon a determination by two-thirds vote of the members of the legislative body present at the
time of the meeting, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous vote of those
members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to the
attention of the McKinleyville Community Services District after the Agenda was posted.

[—



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85945436653
mailto:contacts@mckinleyvillecsd.com

A.4  Approval of the Agenda

A.5 Closed Session Discussion

At any time during the regular session, the Board may adjourn to closed session to consider existing or
anticipated litigation, liability claims, real property negotiations, license and permit determinations, threats
to security, public employee appointments, personnel matters, evaluations and discipline, labor negotiations,
or to discuss with legal counsel matters within the attorney-client privilege.

NO CLOSED SESSION SCHEDULED

B. PUBLIC HEARINGS

These are items of a Quasi-Judicial or Legislative nature. Public comments relevant to these proceedings
are invited.

NO PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULED

C. PUBLIC COMMENT AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

Any person may address the Board at this time upon any subject not identified on this Agenda but within the
jurisdiction of the McKinleyville Community Services District; however, any matter that requires action will
be referred to staff for a report of action at a subsequent Committee or Board meeting. As to matters on the
Agenda, an opportunity will be given to address the Board when the matter is considered. Comments are
limited to 3 minutes. Letters should be used for complex issues.

D. CONSENT CALENDAR

Consent Calendar items are expected to be routine and non-controversial, to be acted upon by the Board of
Directors at one time without discussion. If any Board member, staff member, or interested person requests
that an item be removed from the Consent Calendar, it shall be removed so that it may be acted upon
separately.

D.1  Consider Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors Regular Pg.5
Meeting on January 4, 2023
Attachment 1 — Draft Minutes from January 2023 Pg. 6
D.2 Consider Approval of December 2022 Treasurer's Report Pg. 11
D.3 Compliance with State Double Check Valve (DCV) Law Pg. 31
D.4  Consider Approval of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Pg. 33

Between McKinleyville Community Services District (MCSD) and the
McKinleyville Chamber of Commerce (Chamber) for Beautification
and Decoration within the County Right of Way Along Central Ave. in
McKinleyville, CA

Attachment 1 — MOU between MCSD and Chamber Pg. 34
D.5 Review and Approve the Amendment to the County Lease for Sheriff's Pg. 37
Facilities
Attachment 1 — Original Lease and Previous Amendments for Pg. 39
Law Enforcement Facility
Attachment 2 — Fourth Amendment to LEF Lease Pg. 62

N




D.6  Consider Resolution 2023-02 Concurring Resolution in Nomination to Pg. 65
the Executive Committee of the Association of California Water Agencies
Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA) for J. Bruce Rupp
Attachment 1 — Resolution 2023-02 Pg. 67
Attachment 2 — Rupp Resume Pg. 68

E. CONTINUED AND NEW BUSINESS

E.1 Consider Approval of Memorandum of Understanding between the Pg. 69
Wiyot Tribe, Humboldt County, and McKinleyville Community Services
District for a Cooperative Government-to-Government Relationship
regarding a McKinleyville Regenerative and Transformative Community
Project (Action)

Attachment 1 — Memorandum of Understanding Pg. 71

E.2 Establish Section 115 Trust for Other Post-Employment Benefits Pg. 79
(OPEB) (Action)

Attachment 1 — Agreement and Election to Prefund Other Pg. 82

Post-Employment Benefits through CalPERS
Attachment 2 — Delegation of Authority to Request Disbursements Pg. 92

Attachment 3 — Certification of the Program Funding Policy Pg. 93
Attachment 4 — MCSD 2022 GASB 75 Report Pg. 101
Attachment 5 — FY21-22 Reserve Calculations Pg. 138

Attachment 6 — Notes from the 12/12/2022 and 1/17/2023 Audit Pg. 139
& Finance Committee

E.3 Review Information for the Draft Capital Improvement Plan for the Parks Pg. 141
and General Fund, FY 2023-24 (Information)

Attachment 1 - Draft Capital Improvement Plan for the Fiscal Pg.142
Years ending June 30, 2024 — 2034 for the Parks and General

Fund

Attachment 2 — Draft Capital Improvement Plan Narrative for Pg.146

Fiscal Year 2023-24

E.4 Central Avenue Water and Sewer Mainline Rehabilitation Project, Pg.149
Award of Construction Contract to GR Sundberg, Inc.
Attachment 1 — Central Avenue Water & Sewer Main Pg.152
Rehabilitation Project, Bid Tabulation, January 18, 2023
Attachment 2 — GRS Bid for Central Avenue Water & Sewer Pg.153
Main Rehabilitation Project, January 18, 2023
Attachment 3 — GHD Award Recommendation Memo, Pg.185

January 20, 2023

F. REPORTS

No specific action is required on these items, but the Board may discuss any particular item as required.

F.1 ACTIVE COMMITTEE REPORTS

a. Parks and Recreation Committee (Binder/Biteman)
b. Area Fund (John Kulstad/Binder)

[oV)




Redwood Region Economic Development Commission (Biteman/Mayo)
McKinleyville Senior Center Board Liaison (Binder/Couch)

Audit and Finance Committee (Orsini/Biteman)

Employee Negotiations (Couch/Mayo)

McKinleyville Municipal Advisory Committee (Orsini/Binder)

AdHoc Committee — Community Forest (Mayo/Orsini)

S@ oo

F.2 LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY REPORTS

F.3 STAFF REPORTS

a. Finance & Administration Department (Nicole Alvarado) Pg. 187
b. Operations Department (James Henry) Pg. 191
c. Parks & Recreation Department (Lesley Frisbee) Pg. 197
d. General Manager (Pat Kaspari) Pg. 201

Attachment 1 — WWMF Monthly Self-Monitoring Report Pg. 206

F.4 PRESIDENT'S REPORT

F.5 BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, REPORTS AND AGENDA
ITEMS REQUESTS

G. ADJOURNMENT

Posted 5:00 pm on January 27, 2023

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 54957.5. this agenda and complete Board packet are available for
public inspection on the web at McKinleyvillecsd.com/minutes or upon request at the MCSD office, 1656 Sutter
Road, McKinleyville. A complete packet is also available for viewing at the McKinleyville Library at 1606 Pickett
Road, McKinleyville. If you would like to receive the complete packet via email, free of charge, contact the Board
Secretary at (707)839-3251 to be added to the mailing list.

McKinleyville Community Services District will, on request, make agendas available in appropriate alternative
formats to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42
U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals who need
this agenda in an alternative format or who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order to
participate in the meeting should contact the Board Secretary at (707) 839-3251. Notification 48 hours prior to the
meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements for accommodations.

[~




McKinleyville Community Services District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 1, 2023 TYPE OF ITEM: ACTION

ITEM: D.1 Consider Approval of the Minutes of the Board of
Directors

PRESENTED BY: April Sousa, Board Secretary

TYPE OF ACTION: Roll Call Vote — Consent Calendar

Recommendation:

Staff recommends the approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors for the
January 4, 2023 Regular Board Meeting.

Discussion:

The Draft minutes are attached for the above listed meeting. A reminder that the
minutes are approved by the legislative body that is the Board of Directors, not
individual members of the Board who were present at a meeting.

Alternatives:

Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative
e Take No Action

Fiscal Analysis:

Not applicable

Environmental Requirements:

Not applicable

Exhibits/Attachments:

e Attachment 1 — Draft Minutes from January 4, 2023 Regular Meeting

(&)



Item D.1 Attachment 1

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT HELD ON WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 4, 2023 AT 6:00 P.M.
IN PERSON AT AZALEA HALL — 1620 PICKETT ROAD, MCKINLEYVILLE, CALIFORNIA
and
TELECONFERENCE Via ZOOM & TELEPHONE:
ZOOM MEETING ID: 859 4543 6653 (https://us02web.zoom.us/|/85945436653) and
TOLL FREE: 1-888-788-0099

AGENDA ITEM A. CALL TO ORDER:

Al Roll Call: The meeting was called to order at 6:01 p.m. with following Directors and staff in
attendance in person at Azalea Hall:

Greg Orsini, President Pat Kaspari, General Manager

Scott Binder, Vice President April Sousa, Board Secretary (via zoom)
James Biteman, Director Joseph Blaine, IT Specialist

David Couch, Director James Henry, Operations Director

Dennis Mayo, Director Lesley Frisbee, Parks & Recreation Director

Nicole Alvarado, Finance Director
Russell Gans, Legal Counsel (via zoom)

A.2 Closed Session

The Board entered into Closed Session at 6:03 p.m. to discuss CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—
ANTICIPATED LITIGATION (Gov. Code section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(3)): One Claim: Heather Ponsano,
liability claim. Close session ended at 6:15 p.m.

Report out of Closed Session:

Legal Counsel gave the following report out of closed session: A motion by Director Couch, a second by
Director Mayo was made to reject the claim with all members of the Board (Binder, Biteman, Couch, Mayo
and Orsini) in favor.

A3 Pledge of Allegiance: The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Director Binder.

A4 Additions to the Agenda: There were no additions or changes to the agenda.
A4 Approval of the Agenda:

Motion: It was moved to approve the agenda.

Motion by: Director Mayo; Second: Director Binder

There were no comments from the Board or public.

Roll Call: Ayes: Binder, Biteman, Couch, Mayo and Orsini Nays: None Absent: None
Motion Summary: Motion Passed

AGENDA ITEM B. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

None

AGENDA ITEM C. PUBLIC COMMENT AND WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:

There was one item of public comment/written communication that was included in the agenda from Steve
Breitenstein regarding the BMX park. President Orsini asked for the letter to be placed in the file for when

public input on the BMX park is needed.

Finance Director Alvarado introduced Norman Schwenn to the Board as a new staff member. David
Baldosser gave public comment on this introduction as well. Director Mayo gave supportive comments on

Minutes of the January 4, 2023 Board Meeting Page 1 of 4


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85945436653

Norman’s exemplary customer service and noted this was a testament to the District. The other Directors
welcomed Norman.

AGENDA ITEM D. CONSENT CALENDAR:

D.1 Consider Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors Regular Meeting on December 7,
2022

D.2 Consider Approval of November 2022 Treasurer’s Report
D.3 Compliance with State Double Check Valve (DCV) Law

D.4 Reaffirm Resolution 2021-27 Making Findings Pursuant to Government Code Section 5493, as
Amended by Assembly Bill 361, and Authorizing the Continued Use of Virtual Meetings

D.5 Approve Budget Modification for Bay Area Coating Consultants Tank Painting Inspections.
D.6 Review of 2022 Integrated Pest Management Plan Annual Report

D.7 Approve Resolution 2023-01 Adopting the North Coast Resource Partnership Integrated
Regional water Management Plan

Motion: It was moved to approve the Consent Calendar.

Motion by: Director Mayo; Second: Couch

There were no comments from the Board or public.

Roll Call: Ayes: Binder, Biteman, Couch, Mayo and Orsini Nays: None Absent: None
Motion Summary: Motion Passed

AGENDA ITEM E. CONTINUED AND NEW BUSINESS:
E.1 MCSD Employee of the Year Presentation to Seth Meynell

General Manager Kaspatri reviewed the agenda item. The Board, staff, and public were given an opportunity
to comment and commend Seth Meynell on this award.

This was an informational item. No action taken.

E.2 Consider Appointment of Applicant, Julie Giannini-Previde to Vacant Seat on the Park and
Recreation Committee (PARC)

Parks and Recreation Director Frisbee reviewed the staff note for this item. Board Directors commented on
the applicant’s qualifications and expressed their support of the applicant.

Motion: To appoint Julie Giannini-Previde to the Vacant Seat on the Park and Recreation Committee
(PARC)

Motion by: Director Mayo; Second: Binder

Roll Call: Ayes: Binder, Biteman, Couch, Mayo and Orsini Nays: None Absent: None

Motion Summary: Motion Passed

E.3 Approve FY 21-22 Audited Financial Statements

Finance Director Alvarado introduced the auditor, Chris Brown, who joined the meeting via zoom. Mr. Brown
gave a presentation on the audit for fiscal year 2021-22. The Board gave supportive comments regarding
the presentation. President Orsini asked the Board if there were any questions or other comments. General
Manager Kaspari made comments regarding balancing the budget and keeping an eye on certain
governmental activities, specifically with Parks and Recreation and mentioned the consideration of
increasing measure B in the future.

Motion: To approve the FY21-22 Audited Financial Statements.
Motion by: Director Mayo; Second: Couch
Roll Call: Ayes: Binder, Biteman, Couch, Mayo and Orsini Nays: None Absent: None

Minutes of the January 4, 2023 Board Meeting Page 2 of 4



Motion Summary: Motion Passed

E.4 Discuss and Consider Committee Assignments and Appointments of Committee Chairs by
the Board President for the 2023 Calendar Year

Board Secretary Sousa gave the overview of this item. President Orsini made the following Appointments:

Parks and Recreation Committee (Binder/Biteman)

Area Fund (John Kulstad/Binder)

Redwood Region Economic Development Commission (Biteman/Mayo)
McKinleyville Senior Center Board Liaison (Binder/Couch)

Audit and Finance Committee (Orsini/Biteman)

Employee Negotiations (Couch/Mayo)

McKinleyville Municipal Advisory Committee (Orsini/Binder)

AdHoc Committee — Community Forest (Mayo/Orsini)

S@~ooooTy

The following changes to the committee structure was also discussed: withdraw the Environmental Matters
Committee and remove the information within the Board Policy Manual at a future meeting. Staff mentioned
that this could be done in combination with moving the AdHoc Community Forest Committee to a standing
committee.

Director Mayo asked Director Couch if there was anything that could be done proactively to support Director
Couch in a future LAFCo election.

E.5 Review Five Year Strategic Plan Update Process and Timeline

Recreation Director Frisbee gave an overview of the Strategic Plan update process and timeline. Director
Biteman asked clarifying questions of those involved in the process and the time commitment. Director Mayo
asked questions regarding who the facilitator would be. President Orsini recommends the District look for an
outside facilitator and would also like to see some form of finality to the existing plan.

A date for the initial workshop was discussed, and consensus was made to plan for a workshop during the
second or third week of February and use the next month to find a facilitator.

This was an informational only item; no action was taken.

E.6 Discussion and Direction regarding Assembly Bill (AB) 2449 — Enhanced Teleconferencing
and Recent Developments to Assembly Bill 361 of 2021

General Manager Kaspari gave an overview of the Assembly Bill 2449 and asked the Board to give direction
on future Board Meetings. The Board gave support to continue hybrid meetings. Clarifying questions
regarding the options available were discussed. President Orsini noted that the set up for hybrid meetings is
intensive and continuing meetings in this manner adds another layer through AB 2449. Director Mayo gave
support for hybrid meetings and AB 2449. Staff reiterated that internet interruptions could cause meetings to
be postponed. Reasons considered for “just cause” was discussed. It was noted that the Board Policy
Manual will need to come back with changes stating the Boards use of AB 2449.

Motion: To comply with AB 2449 to continue hybrid meetings.
Motion by: Director Mayo; Second: Binder

Roll Call: Ayes: Binder, Biteman, Couch, Mayo and Orsini Nays: None Absent: None
Motion Summary: Motion Passed

AGENDA ITEM F. REPORTS

F.1 ACTIVE COMMITTEE REPORTS

Minutes of the January 4, 2023 Board Meeting Page 3 of 4



Parks and Recreation Committee (Binder): Nothing further to report from Director Frisbee’s report.
Area Fund (John Kulstad): No Report.
Redwood Region Economic Development Commission (Binder): Did not meet.

McKinleyville Senior Center Advisory Council (Binder): Director Binder gave a brief report on the
activities of the Senior Center, including the launch of the new meals program.

. Audit and Finance (Orsini/Couch): Met on December 12 and 21, 2022 regarding the Audit review and

Section 115 trust, which will come back to the Board at a future date.

Employee Negotiations (Couch/Mayo): Did not meet.

McKinleyville Municipal Advisory Committee (Orsini/Binder): Director Orsini gave a brief report.
Environmental Matters Committee (Couch): Did not meet.

Ad Hoc Community Forest Committee (Mayo/Orsini): Did not meet. There will be a meeting this coming
week.

F.2 LEGISLATIVE AND REGULATORY REPORTS

None

F.3 STAFF REPORTS

a.

Support Services Department (Nicole Alvarado): Finance Director Alvarado had nothing further to add
to her written report.

Operations Department (James Henry): Operations Director James Henry had nothing further to add to
his written report.

Parks & Recreation Department (Lesley Frisbee): Recreation Director Lesley Frisbee had nothing
further to add to her written report

General Manager (Patrick Kaspari): General Manager Kaspari noted a transition of the Board Secretary
position.

F.4 PRESIDENT’'S REPORT:
Nothing further to add.

F.4 BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS, ANNOUNCEMENTS, REPORTS AND AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS:

Director Biteman gave appreciation for a smooth transition regarding the Board Secretary position. Director
Mayo made comments regarding current events in the news.

G. ADJOURNMENT:
Meeting Adjourned at 8:02 p.m.

April Sousa, MMC, Board Secretary

Minutes of the January 4, 2023 Board Meeting Page 4 of 4






BOARD MEETING February 1, 2023

McKinleyville Community Services District

Treasurer's Report
December 2022

Page 2
Page 3

Page 4

Page 11
Page 12

Page 13

Table of Contents

Investments & Cash Flow Report
Consolidated Balance Sheet by Fund

Activity Summary by Fund
with Selected Graphic Comparisons

Capital Expenditure Report
Summary of Long-Term Debt Report

Cash Disbursement Report

Ratios

- Utility Accounts Receivable Turnover Days

- YTD Breakeven Revenue, Water Fund:

- YTD Actual Water Sales:

- Days of Cash on Hand-Operations Checking/MM

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM D.2

as of December 31, 2022

I 14 |
[$ 1,541,704 |
[$§ 2,115,435
| 288 |




McKinleyville Community Services District
Investments & Cash Flow Report
as of December 31, 2022

Petty Cash & Change Funds
Cash

Operating & Money Market - Beginning Balance
Cash Receipts:

Utility Billings & Other Receipts

Money Market Account Interest
Transfers from County Funds #2560, #4240, CalTRUST, Meas. B

Other Cash Receipts (Grants/Other Receivables)

Total Cash Receipts
Cash Disbursements:

Transfers to County Funds #2560, #4240, CalTRUST
Payroll Related Expenditures (incl. CalPERS UAL pmt)
Debt Service
Capital & Other Expenditures

Total Cash Disbursements
Operating & Money Market - Ending Balance

Total Cash

Investments

LAIF - Beginning Balance
Interest Income
LAIF - Ending Balance

Humboldt Co. #2560 - Beginning Balance
Property Taxes and Assessments
Transfer to/from Operating Cash
Interest Income (net of adjustments)

Humboldt Co. #2560 - Ending Balance

Humboldt Co. #4240 - Beginning Balance
Transfer to/from Operating Cash
Transfer to/from Biosolids Reserve
Interest Income

Humboldt Co. #4240 - Ending Balance

Humboldt Co. #9390 - Beginning Balance
Reserves Recovery Deposits/Other Bal Withdrawals
Humboldt Co. #9390 - Ending Balance

USDA Bond Reserve Fund - Beginning Balance
Bond Reserve Payment/Transfer to Service Fund
Debt Service Payment, Principal/Interest (Net)
Interest Adjustment

USDA Bond Reserve Fund - Ending Balance

Market Valuation Account

BNY COPS Series A & B - Beginning Balance
Bond Principal Total (Series A & B)
Bond Draws for Capital Projects
Bond Reserve Payment/Transfer to Service Fund
Debt Service Payment, Principal/Interest (Net)
Bond Earned Interest

BNY COPS Series A & B - Ending Balance

CalTRUST - Beginning Balance
Net Transfer to/from Designated Reserves: PERS/OPEB
Net Transfer to/from Capacity Fees/Catastrophe/Other Reserves
Net: Interest Income/Unrealized Gain/Loss

CalTRUST - Ending Balance

Total Investments

Total Cash & Investments - Current Month
Total Cash & Investments - Prior Month

Net Change to Cash & Investments This Month

Cash & Investment Summary

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Davis-Grunsky Loan Reserve
USDA Bond Reserve

Total Cash & Investments

1,252,167.83
34.89

(264,481.18)

(641,713.51)

139,925.28

9,197.46

5,131,693.42

1,252,202.72

(906,194.69)

5,477,701.45
5,486,898.91

2,944,764 .12
490,435.89

3,377,764.59

663,032.08

84,006.85

0.36

8,665,906.72
(139,937.38)
(321,923.65)

10,185,688.71

31,058.66

(Interest and Market Valuation will be re-calculated as part of the year-end close, if material)

139,925.28

3,435,200.01

3,377,764.59

663,032.08

84,007.21
(20,836.39)

8,204,045.69

10,216,747.37

26,099,885.84

31,586,784.75
31,181,143.20

405,641.55

30,891,365.26
611,412.28
84,007.21

31,586,784.75




McKinleyville Community Services District
Consolidated Balance Sheet by Fund
as of December 31, 2022

ASSETS

Current Assets
Unrestricted cash & cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses & other current assets
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Restricted cash & cash equivalents
Other noncurrent assets
Capital assets (net)
Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE/NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable & other current liabilities

Accrued payroll & related liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Fund Balance/Net Assets
Fund balance
Net assets
Investment in captial assets, net of related debt
Total Fund Balance/Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE/NET ASSETS

Investment in General Capital Assets

General Long-term Liabilities
PG&E Streetlights Loan
Meas. B Loan: Teen/Community Center
OPEB Liability
CalPERS Pension Liability/Deferred Inflows-Outflows
Accrued Compensated Absences

TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds
Total
(Memorandum
Parks & General Measure B Streetlights Water Wastewater Only)

$  950,810.71 $ (552,626.41) $ 12210515 $ 8,748,905.54 13,418,104.58  $ 22,687,299.57
38,108.41 - 4,894.84 412,768.07 529,935.89 985,707.21
48,159.32 8,004.56 7,845.17 212,109.06 164,815.65 440,933.76
1,037,078.44 (544,621.85) 134,845.16 0,373,782.67 14,112,856.12 24,113,940.54
216,277.48 - - 5,125,119.09 3,774,346.44 9,115,743.01

- - - 1,126,783.53 1,149,881.60 2,276,665.13

- - - 9,369,683.65 30,779,826.42 40,149,510.07
216,277.48 - - 15,621,586.27 35,704,054.46 51,541,918.21

$ 1,253,355.92 $ (544,621.85) $ 134,84516 $ 24,995,368.94 49,816,910.58 $ 75,655,858.75
$  83,331.52 $ 1,284.30 $ 397.08 $  237,523.09 6,606.44 $ 32914243
112,551.77 - - 63,268.39 63,000.97 238,821.13
195,883.29 1,284.30 397.08 300,791.48 69,607.41 567,963.56

- - - 6,550,058.42 20,800,434.30 27,350,492.72

- - - 5,277,949.43 5,384,295.45 10,662,244.88

- - - 11,828,007.85 26,184,729.75 38,012,737.60
195,883.29 1,284.30 397.08 12,128,799.33 26,254,337.16 38,580,701.16
(3,038,331.35) (545,906.15) 134,448.08 - - (3,449,789.42)
4,095,803.98 - - 10,046,944.38 13,583,181.30 27,725,929.66

- - - 2,819,625.23 9,979,392.12 12,799,017.35
1,057,472.63 (545,906.15) 134,448.08 12,866,569.61 23,562,573.42 37,075,157.59
$ 1,253,355.92 $ (544,621.85) $ 134,84516 $ 24,995,368.94 49,816,910.58 $ 75,655,858.75

$ 3,692,259.50

775,024.00
2,678,440.47
534,291.05
78,689.49

$ 4,066,445.01

OPERB Liability

Non-debt Long-term Liabilities (included in Other Non-current Liabilities above)

CalPERS Pension Liability

2,125,075.07
384,963.21

2,139,107.45
456,504.74

6,942,622.99
1,375,759.00




McKinleyville Community Services District

Activity Summary by Fund, Approved Budget

December 2022

Department Summaries

Water
Water Sales

Other Revenues

Total Operating Revenues
Salaries & Benefits

Water Purchased

Other Expenses
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Net Operating Income
Grants

Interest Income

Interest Expense

Total Non-Operating Income

Net Income (Loss)

Wastewater
Wastewater Service Charges

Other Revenues
Total Operating Revenues
Salaries & Benefits

Other Expenses
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Net Operating Income
Grants

Interest Income

Interest Expense

Total Non-Operating Income

Net Income (Loss)

Enterprise Funds Net Income (Loss)

| 6 | = # of months remaining

% Year Remaining: 50.00%
% of Year | Approved | Over (Under) | Over (Under)
50.00% YTD YTD YTD Total Remaining
December YTD Budget Budget Budget % Budget Budget Budget % | Notes
301,088 2,115,435 2,217,113 (101,678) -4.59% 4,434,226 2,318,791  52.29%
Includes YTD Capacity Fees $46,342,
12,648 137,564 155,900 (18,336) -11.76% 311,800 174,236 55.88% Contrib. Construction $73,570
313,736 2,253,000 2,373,013 (120,013) -5.06% 4,746,026 2,493,026  52.53%
Budget spread evenly across 12 months, but
52,714 467,328 611,749 (144,421) -23.61% 1,223,498 756,169 61.80% actuals vary by schedule
106,561 624,865 605,000 19,865 3.28% 1,210,000 585,135 48.36%
Budget spread evenly across 12 months, but
72,796 418,983 432,349 (13,366) -3.09% 864,698 445,714 51.55% actuals vary by project & expenditure
33,333 199,998 200,000 (2) 0.00% 400,000 200,002  50.00%
265,404 1,711,175 1,849,098 (137,923) -7.46% 3,698,195 1,987,021 53.73%
48,332 541,825 523,915 (257,936) 1,047,831 506,006
- 36,986 799,500 (762,514) 1,599,000 1,562,014  97.69%
7,973 39,239 25,000 14,239 56.96% 50,000 10,761  21.52%
- (25,112) (107,901) (82,789) -76.73% (215,801) (190,689) 88.36%
7,973 51,113 716,599 (831,064) 1,433,199 1,382,086
56,305 592,938 1,240,514 (1,089,000) 2,481,030 1,888,091
322,524 2,046,647 2,185,605 (138,958) -6.36% 4,371,210 2,324,563 53.18%
Includes YTD Capacity Fees $73,400
20,370 151,227 189,471 (38,244) -20.18% 378,942 227,715 60.09% Contrib.Construction $72,510
342,894 2,197,873 2,375,076 (177,203) -7.46% 4,750,152 2,552,279 53.73%
99,641 658,129 643,010 15,119 2.35% 1,286,020 627,891 48.82%
Budget spread evenly across 12 months, but
83,403 391,363 561,753 (170,390) -30.33% 1,123,506 732,143  65.17% actuals vary by project & expenditure
102,083 612,498 612,500 (2) 0.00% 1,225,000 612,502 50.00%
285,127 1,661,990 1,817,263 (155,273) -8.54% 3,634,526 1,972,536 54.27%
57,766 535,883 557,813 (21,930) 1,115,626 579,743
- 381,338 963,875 (582,537) -60.44% 1,927,750 1,546,412 80.22%
12,175 61,648 25,000 36,648 146.59% 50,000 (11,648) -23.30%
- (34,362) (203,159) (168,797) -83.09% (406,318) (371,956) 91.54%
12,175 408,624 785,716 377,092 1,571,432 1,162,808
69,941 944,507 1,343,529 (399,022) 2,687,058 1,742,551
126,246 1,537,445 2,584,043 (1,046,598) 5,168,088 3,630,642

14



McKinleyville Community Services District

December 2022

Comparison of Water Fund Operating Revenues & Expenses to Budget

$5,000,000

$4,500,000

/I

$4,000,000

$3,500,000

A~

$3,000,000

~~
e

$2,500,000

$2,000,000

$1,500,000

$1,000,000

$500,000

s$-

Budgeted Surplus to cover :
*Pay-Go Capital Projects
*Debt Service

*Reserves

I Water Operating Revenues
[ Water Operating Expenses
«=fl== Operating Revenue Budget

=== Operating Expense Budget




McKinleyville Community Services District
December 2022

Comparison of Wastewater Fund Operating Revenues & Expenses to Budget

$5,000,000
$4,500,000 /.
Budgeted Surplus to Cover:
*Pay-Go Capital Projects
$4,000,000 *Debt Service
) » *Reserves
$3,500,000 A~

$3,000,000 /.// /
$2,500,000 /
$2,000,000

$1,500,000

mmm Wastewater Operating
Revenues

[ Wastewater Operating
Expenses

«=fi== Operating Revenue Budget

$1,000,000
=== Operating Expense Budget
$500,000
$' T T T T T T 1
P A Y T T S
00 W Q@ @Q v.Q @0 \\)




*Parks & Recreation
Budget spread evenly across 12 months, but

Program Fees 64,141 162,675 118,940 43,735 36.77% 237,880 75,205 31.61% actuals vary by schedule
Rents & Facility Related Fees 4,966 31,871 34,325 (2,454) -7.15% 68,650 36,779  53.57%
Property Taxes 352,167 352,167 356,288 (4,121) -1.16% 712,575 360,409 50.58%

Budget spread evenly across 12 months, but
actuals vary by schedule, includes $33,633 in

Other Revenues 59,631 92,332 834,322 (741,990) -88.93% 1,668,644 1,676,312 94.47% grantrevenue
Interest Income 6,934 33,994 17,501 16,493 94.24% 35,002 1,008 2.88%
Total Revenues 487,838 673,040 1,361,376 (688,336) -50.56% 2,722,751 2,049,712 75.28%
Salaries & Benefits 84,557 554,459 292,129 262,330 89.80% 584,258 29,799  5.10%
Other Expenditures 22,260 137,171 305,586 (168,415) -65.11% 611,171 474,000 77.56%
Budget spread evenly across 12 months, but
Capital Expenditures 25,515 65,934 762,500 (696,566) -91.35% 1,525,000 1,459,066  95.68% actuals vary by project schedule
Total Expenditures 132,332 757,563 1,360,215 (602,652) -44.31% 2,720,429 1,962,865 72.15%
Excess (Deficit) 355,506 (84,524) 1,161 (85,685) 2,323

*Measure B Assessment

Total Revenues 139,137 143,521 113,652 29,869 26.28% 227,304 83,783  36.86%
Budget spread evenly across 12 months;
Salaries & Benefits 6,181 49,250 33,644 15,606 46.39% 67,288 18,038 26.81% actuals vary by maintenance schedule
Budget spread evenly across 12 months, but
Other Expenditures 1,285 13,605 33,034 (19,429) -58.82% 66,069 52,464 79.41% actuals vary seasonally
Budget is spread evenly across 12 months.
Capital Expenditures/Loan Repayment - 48,515 46,837 1,678 3.58% 93,674 45159 48.21% Loan pmts are October & April
Total Expenditures 7,466 111,370 113,515 (2,145) -1.89% 227,030 115,661 50.95%
Excess (Deficit) 131,671 32,151 137 32,014 274

*Street Lights

Total Revenues 10,586 63,803 62,240 1,563 2.51% 124,480 60,677  48.74%
Budget spread evenly across 12 months;
Salaries & Benefits 3,092 20,274 26,872 (6,598) -24.55% 53,744 33,470 62.28% actuals vary by maintenance schedule
Other Expenditures 4,040 27,083 18,387 8,696 47.30% 36,775 9,692 26.35%
Budget spread evenly across 12 months, but
Capital Expenditures/Loan Repayment - - 23,500 (23,500) -100.00% 47,000 47,000 100.00% actuals vary by project
Total Expenditures 7,132 47,357 68,759 (21,402) -31.13% 137,519 90,162 65.56%
Excess (Deficit) 3,454 16,446 (6,519) (22,965) (13,039)
Governmental Funds Excess (Deficit) 490,631 (35,927) (5,221) (30,706) (10,443)

*Governmental Funds use a modified accrual basis of accounting per GASB



McKinleyville Community Services District
December 2022

Comparison of Parks & Recreation Total Revenues & Expenditures to Budget

$3,000,000
$2,500,000
$2,000,000
$1,500,000 mmm Parks Revenues
mmm Parks Expenditures
$1.000.000 === Revenue Budget
’ ’ et Expenditure Budget
$500,000
$- T T T T T T 1
SO T R R S B R
eo QQI W QQ @0 v.Q @'b \\)




McKinleyville Community Services District
December 2022

Comparison of Measure B Fund Total Revenues & Expenditures to Budget

$300,000

$250,000

$200,000

$150,000

$100,000

$50,000

—

B Measure B Revenues
mm Measure B Expenditures

e=fl==Revenue Budget

=yt Expenditure Budget

O A R N S R T B R B
» & Py o® 8 & W «° & X R\ o




McKinleyville Community Services District
December 2022

Comparison of Street Light Fund Total Revenues & Expenditures to Budget

$160,000

$140,000

$120,000

$100,000

$80,000

$60,000

$40,000

$20,000

$-

I Street Light Revenues
[ Street Light Expenditures
e=fl==Revenue Budget

=yt Expenditure Budget




McKinleyville Community Services District
Capital Expenditure Report
as of December 31, 2022

YTD FY 22-23 Remaining
December Total Budget Budget $  Budget % Notes
Water Department
Norton Tank Tree Service - 10,000 10,000 100%
Water Tank Painting 264,993 637,909 749,000 111,091 15% Water Tank Painting & Cathodic
4.5m New Water Tank 67,665 285,136 2,132,000 1,846,864 87% Drilling, LACO Assoc.
Production Meter Replacements - - 8,000 8,000 100%  Production Meter Replacement
McCluski Tank3 Replace Roof Vents - - - - #DIV/0!  McCluski Tank3 Replace Roof Vents
Emergency Generator-Cochran - - 50,000 50,000 100%  CochranEmergency Generator
Fire Hydrant System Upgrade - - 7,000 7,000 100%  Fire Hydrant System Upgrade
Blake Station Upgrades - - - - #DIV/0! Blake Station Upgrades
Digital Control & Radio Telemetry Upgrade - - 10,000 10,000 100% Radio Telemetry upgrade
Water Main Rehab & Replacement 1,209 38,294 2,500,000 2,461,706 98% Water Main Rehab
Property Purchase- Tank Site - - - - Property Purch/Imprv.Tank Site
Subtotal 333,866 961,339 5,466,000 4,504,661 82%
Wastewater Department
Sewer Main Rehab & Replacement 1,170 54,110 1,500,000 1,445,890 96% Sewer Main Rehab
WWMF Sludge Disposal - next - - 200,000 200,000 100%  Sludge handling/disposal
WWMF Engineering Study - - 70,000 70,000 100%
WWMF Pond Armoring - - 75,000 75,000 100% WWMF Pond Armoring
WWMF Secondary Effluent Motor - - 6,000 6,000 100% WWMF Secondary Effluent Motor
Collection Upgrades-UndercrossingsProj - - 1,149,000 1,149,000 100%  Collection System upgrades
Fischer Lift Station Generator - - 40,000 40,000 100%  Fischer Lift Stn Generator
Solar Project - CWSRF Grant/Loan 2,340 83,212 1,060,000 976,788 92% WWMF Solar Project
WWMF - CEQA/ NPDES Permit - - 25,000 25,000 100% NPDES Permit Project
Underground pipe locator & camera - - 5,000 5,000 100%  Underground pipe locator & camer
SCBA Apparatus and Bottles - - 6,000 6,000 100% WWMF Lab Cabinets
Sewer Main Camera Replacement - - 30,000 30,000 SwrLiftStnUpgrade-Letz
Subtotal 3,510 137,323 4,166,000 4,028,677 97%
Water & Wastewater Operations
Heavy Equipment - - 130,000 130,000 100%  backhoe, aircompressor
Utility Vehicles - - 40,000 40,000 100%  CCTV truck, 3/4 or 1-ton Pickup
Office, Corporate Yard & Shops - 4,000 170,000 166,000 98% Facilities upgrade/sealcoat
Computers & Software - - 18,000 18,000 100%  Server, PCs, GIS/SEMS/CADD
Fischer Ranch - Reclamation Site Upgrade (tree fa 1,244 15,822 100,000 84,178 84% Match to 3rd party grant funding
Fischer Ranch - Barn & Fence upgrades, Irrig 1,439 11,249 50,000 38,751 78% Barn/ house/ fence, Irrig. pipe, Unc
Office Remodel 2,169 2,169 360,000 357,831 99% Purch property behind main offc
Small Equipment & Other - - 20,000 20,000 100%  Misc,response, & GPS surveying
Subtotal - 33,240 888,000 854,760 96%
Enterprise Funds Total 342,229 1,131,902 10,520,000 9,388,098 89%
Parks & Recreation Department
BMX Park 25,215 58,234 800,000 741,766 BMX Park
Hiller Park & Sports Complex - - - - Hiller Sports Sealcoat-CountyGrant
Pierson Park - Landscaping & signage - - 98,000 98,000 Pierson Pk-Landscape & signage
Azalea Hall Projects - - 187,000 187,000 100%  Major appliance replacemt
McKinleyville Activity Center Upgrades - - - - #DIV/0!  Flooring replacement
Law Enforcement Facility Improvements - - 16,000 16,000 100%  LEF flooring/Library Carpet
Projects Funded by Quimby/Grants/ Other - - 400,000 400,000 100% CommForest,SkatePk,LandAcq
Other Parks Projects & Equipment - - 24,000 24,000 100%  Utility truck from Ops?
Subtotal 25,215 58,234 1,525,000 725,000 48%
Streetlights
LED Repairs - - 5,000 5,000
Pole Inspection - - 42,000 42,000 Pole Inspection/Replacement
Subtotal - - 47,000 47,000
Governmental Funds Total 25,215 58,234 1,572,000 772,000 49%
All Funds Total 367,444 1,190,135 12,092,000 10,160,098 84%




McKinleyville Community Services District
Summary of Grants
as of December 31, 2022

L Total Grant Required District| Estimated District
District Grants Amount Match Asset Value
CalOES Hazard Mitigation Grant - 4.5 mg Tank $ 7,576,448 | $ 1,894,112
Northcoast Resource Partnership - 4.5 mg Tank $ 879,209 [ $ - 9,553,440
CalOES Hazard Mitigation Grant - Sewer Undercrossings | $ 2,538,300 | $ 846,100 2,137,000
SWRCB Energy Efficiency Grant/Loan $ 2,500,000 | $2,500,000 Loan 4,100,000
CA State Dept of Parks & Rec - Habitat Conservation
Fund $ 56,600 | $ - 56,600
State of CA Prop 68 - BMX Track 2,331,375 - 2,331,375
State of CA Prop 68 Per Capita - Azalea Hall Upgrades b 177,952 | $ - 177,952
Recycled Water Grant $ 150,000 | $ - -
. Total Grant Required District| Estimated District
Non-District Grants Amount Match Asset Value
CalTrout US Fish & Wildlife - Mad River Restoration $ 20,000 | $ - 20,000
CalTrout NOAA - Mad River Restoration $ 490,167 [ $ 48,000 300,000
Trust for Public Lands $ 3,858,378 | $ - 3,858,378




McKinleyville Community Services District
Summary of Long-Term Debt Report
as of December 31, 2022

Water Fund:
I-Bank
Interest

State of CA Energy Commission (ARRA)
Interest

State of CA (Davis Grunsky)
State of CA (Davis Grunsky) Deferred Interest
Interest

COPS - Series 2021A, Water Fund
Interest

Total Water Fund-Principal
Total Water Fund-Interest

Total Water Fund

Wastewater Fund:
WWMF SRF Loan

Interest

Chase Bank (Pialorsi Property)
Interest

COPS - Series 2021B, Wastewater Fund
Interest

Total Wastewater Fund-Principal
Total Wastewater Fund-Interest

Total Sewer Fund

Meas. B Fund: Teen/Comm Center Loan

Total Principal
Total Interest

Total

Non-debt Long Term Liabilities, District-wide

Principal Maturities and
Scheduled Interest

OPEB Liability

CalPERS Pension Liability

Maturity Balance- Nov. Balance- Dec.
% Date 30, 2022 31, 2022 FY-23 Thereafter
8/1/30 P 476,538.79 476,538.79 - 476,538.81
3.37% I 8,029.69 67,028.60
12/22/26 P 48,700.45 48,700.45 5,982.58 42,717.67
1.0% I 516.85 859.98
11/33 P 1,087,383.49 1,087,383.49 - 1,087,383.49
11/33 P 170,345.85 170,345.85 - 170,345.85
2.5% I 14,654.49 155,047.44
8/1/51 P 4,270,000.00 4,270,000.00 - 4,270,000.00
293% 8/1/51 | - - 84,405.56 2,555,737.50
6,052,968.58 6,052,968.58 5,982.58 6,046,985.82
107,606.59 2,778,673.52
6,052,968.58 6,052,968.58 113,589.17 8,825,659.34
7/131/47 P 13,573,682.87 13,573,682.87 - 14,034,677.46
1.6% I - 3,002,119.13
3/8/35 P 1,289,500.00 1,289,500.00 - 1,243,600.00
2.9% I - - - 153,015.55
9/15/51 P 3,485,000.00 3,485,000.00 - 3,485,000.00
293% 9/15/51 | - - 58,512.50 2,056,175.00
18,348,182.87 18,348,182.87 - 18,763,277.46
- 5,211,309.68
18,348,182.87 18,348,182.87 - 23,974,587.14
11/1/29 P 775,024.00 775,024.00 50,252.00 733,552.00
3.55% I 13,912.52 94,344.18
25,176,175.45 25,176,175.45 56,234.58 25,543,815.28
121,519.11 8,084,327.38
25,176,175.45 25,176,175.45 177,753.69 33,628,142.66

6,942,622.99

1,375,759.00




McKinleyville Community Services District

Cash Disbursement Report

For the Period December 1 through December 31, 2022

Check Check Vendor Net
Number Date Number Name Amount Invoice # Description
Accounts Payable Disbursements
12012 12/16/2022 AND2V ~ ANDO2 STALE DATED 7/10/14 (281) C21216H ANDO2 VOID STALE DATED CH
12774 12/16/2022 BEA1VY  BEAO1 STALE DATED 5/8/201 (22) C21216H VOID BEAO1 STALE DATED 5/
13748 12/16/2022 YOU1V  YOUO1 STALE DATED 5/26/16 (64) C21216H VOID YOUO01 STALE DATED 5-
13783 12/16/2022 YOU1V  YOUO1 STALE DATED 5/26/16 (61) C212162H VOID YOU1V STALE DATED 6-
14769 12/16/2022 SAV1V ~ SAVO01 STALE DATED 8/10/17 (39) C21216H VOID SAV01 STALE DATED 8-
30538 12/16/2022 HO13V ~ \HO13 STALE DATED 9/5/201 (92) C21216H VOID \HO013 STALE DATED 9-
30550 12/16/2022 S018V ~ \S018 STALE DATED 1/4/201 (100) C21216H VOID \S018 STALE DATED 1-
30670 12/16/2022 BO30V ~ \B030 STALE DATED 2/1/16 (34) C21216H VOID \B030 STALE DATED 2-
31176 12/16/2022 S002V ~ \S002 STALE DATED 6/6/201 (56) C21216H VOID \S002 STALE DATED 6-
31422 12/16/2022 0006V ~ \O006 STALE DATED 8/1/201 (92) C21216H \0006 STALE DATED 8-1-201
31542 12/16/2022 C022V  \C022 STALE DATED 9/7/201 (21) C21216H VOID \C022 STALE DATED 9-
32216 12/16/2022 LOO3V ~ \LO03 STALE DATED 2/6/201 (120) C21216H VOID \L003 STALE DATED 2-
32321 12/16/2022 S012V ~ \S012 STALE DATED 3/7/201 (100) C21216H VOID \S012 STALE DATED 3-
32522 12/16/2022 LOO5V ~ \LO05 STALE DATED 5/1/201 (16) C21216H VOID \L005 STALE DATED 5-
32679 12/16/2022 A013V ~ \A013 STALE DATED 6/25/20 (30) C21216H VOID \A013 STALE DATED 6-
33060 12/16/2022 GOO9V ~ \G009 STALE DATE 9/5/2017 (92) C21216H VOID \G009 STALE DATE 9-5
33412 12/16/2022 D011V~ \DO11 STALE DATED 12/4/17 (104) C21216H VOID \DO11 STALE DATED 12
33696 12/16/2022 M035V ~ \M035 STALE DATED 2/5/201 (46) C21216H VOID \M035 STALE DATED 2-
33806 12/16/2022 FO12V ~ \F012 STALE DATED 3/5/201 (28) C21216H VOID \FO12 STALE DATED 3-
34199 12/16/2022 M001V ~ \MO0O1 STALE DATE 6/4/2018 (74) C21216H VOID \M001 STALE DATED 6-
34206 12/16/2022 W015V ~ \WO015 STALE DATED 6/4/201 91) C21216H VOID \W015 STALE DATED 6-
34318 12/16/2022 C019V ~ \C019 STALE DATED 7/2/201 (16) C21216H VOID \C019 STALE DATED 7-
34320 12/16/2022 FO15V ~ \FO15 STALE DTAED 7/2/18 (20) C21216H VOID \FO15 STALE DATED 7-
34459 12/16/2022 GOO3V ~ \G003 STALE DATED 8/7/201 (60) C21216H VOID \G003 STALE DATED 8-
34689 12/16/2022 JO18V \J018 STALE DATED 10/2/18 (27) C21216H VOID \J018 STALE DATED 10
34693 12/16/2022 R012V ~ \RO12 STALE DATED 10/2/18 (93) C21216H VOID \R012 STALE DATED 10
35108 12/16/2022 0051V *0051 STALE DATED 1/21/20 (100) C21216H VOID *0051 STALE DATED 01
35110 12/16/2022 0053V *0053 STALE DATED 1/21/20 (117) C21216H VOID *0053 STALE DATED 01
35199 12/16/2022 0001V ~ \O001 STALE DATED 2/11/20 (92) C21216H VOID \O001 STALE DATED 2-



35201

35203

35402

40469

40490

40491

40492

40493

40494

40495

40496

40497

40498

40499

40500

40501

40502

40503

40504

40505

40506

40507

40508

40509

40510

40511

40512

40513

40514

40515

40516

40517

12/16/2022 PO17V

12/16/2022 RO09V

12/16/2022 M040V

12/16/2022 *0036

12/2/2022 *0036

12/2/2022 *0037

12/2/2022 ACWO01

12/2/2022 ALV04

12/2/2022 BLAO1

12/2/2022 CPRO1

12/2/2022 EURO7

12/2/2022 FAS02

12/2/2022 GHDO1

12/2/2022 HELO1

12/2/2022 HUMO1

12/2/2022 MAY02

12/2/2022 RCS01

12/2/2022 SIX03

12/2/2022 SMA02

12/2/2022 STAO3

12/2/2022 STA22

12/2/2022 STRO1

12/2/2022 TPX01

12/2/2022 VERO1

12/2/2022 \C009

12/2/2022 \DO11

12/2/2022 \J012

12/2/2022 \JO13

12/2/2022 \L012

12/2/2022 \M018

12/2/2022 \S001

12/2/2022 \S023

\P017 STALE DATED 2/11/20
\RO09 STALE DATED 2/11/19
\M040 STALE DATED 4/8/201
AH DEPOSIT REFUND
DALENE DENTON

AH DEPOSIT REFUND
CB&T/ACWA-JPIA

FLEX SPENDING REIMB - CHI
FLEX SPENDING REIMBURSENM
CALIFORNIA PARK & RECREAT
Eureka Rubber Stamp Co.
FASTRAK INVOICE PROCESSII

GHD

Check Total:

12/9/22 JUNIOR HIGH DANCE
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL W
DENNIS MAYO

RC SYSTEMS, INC.

SIX RIVERS MECHANICAL
SMARTHIRE

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
SWRCB

STREAMLINE

TPx COMMUNICATIONS
VERIZON WIRELESS

MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR
MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR
MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR
MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR
MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR
MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR
MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR

MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR

25

(16)
(29)
(109)
(100)
100
100
12,683
105
60
555
79
7
2,510

10,246
5,591

18,347

500
104,027
125
550
135

20
17,035
2,417
300
2,806
76

34

13
26
13

276

120

C21216H VOID \P017 STALE DATED 2-

C21216H VOID \R009 STALE DATED 2-

C21216H VOID \M040 STALE DATED 4-

C21121u Ck# 040469 Reversed

116961 AH DEPOSIT REFUND

116962 AH DEPOSIT REFUND

695336 GRP. HEALTH INS

C21202

C21201

C21202

A35418

FLEX SPENDING REIMB - CHI

FLEX SPENDING REIMBURSEME

MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL

OFFICE SUPPLIES

282746588 RSR BRIDGE TOLL

23016 WATER RECYCLING PLANNING
23129 CENTRAL MAINLINE REPLACEM
23246 MICROGRID

C21202

C21202

C21202

12/9/22 JUNIOR HIGH DANCE

WTR PURCHASED

11/2/2022 BOARD MEETING

19391 SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL

14848

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

53949 N SCHWENN CREDIT CHECK

0150016X

C21202

DAVIS-GRUNSKY ACT

4.5 MG WATER TANK PROJECT

25 SUBSCRIPTIONS

85466 INTERNET SERVICES

C21201

000C21201

000C21201

000C21201

000C21201

000C21201

000C21201

000C21201

000C21201

CELL PHONES/TABLET

MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR CA

MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR DA

MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR JI

MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR JO

MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR LA

MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR MA

MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR SO

MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR ST



40518

40519

40520

40521

40522

40523

40524

40525

40526

40527

40528

40529

40530

40531

40532

40533

40534

40535

40536

40537

40538

40539

40540

40541

40542

40543

40544

40545

40546

12/2/2022 \U001

12/8/2022 *0038

12/8/2022 *0039

12/8/2022 *0040

12/8/2022 AMAO1

12/8/2022 BADO1

12/8/2022 BLAO2

12/8/2022 GRA02

12/8/2022 HARO03

12/8/2022 HAR13

12/8/2022 HUMO08

12/8/2022 1BS01

12/8/2022 INFO2

12/8/2022 INFO3

12/8/2022 LDAO1

12/8/2022 MAY02

12/8/2022 MCKO04

12/8/2022 MENO1

12/8/2022 MILO1

12/8/2022 MIT02

12/8/2022 NORO3

12/8/2022 NOR13

12/8/2022 NORS35

12/8/2022 SECO03

12/8/2022 SOU03

12/8/2022 STA02

12/8/2022 THO02

12/8/2022 USA01

12/8/2022 VALO1

MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR
YOUTH SPORTS CAMP REFUN
YOUTH SPORTS CAMP REFUN
CALIFORNIA TRIBAL PARTNEFR
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES
BADGER METER, Inc.

BLACK DOG OUTFITTERS
GRAINGER

HARPER MOTORS CO.

The Hartford - Priority A

HUMBOLDT SANITATION

Check Total:

IBS OF THE REDWOODS
INFOSEND

INFINITE CONSULTING SERVI
LDA PARTNERS

DENNIS MAYO

MCK ACE HARDWARE
MENDES SUPPLY CO.

Miller Farms Nursery

MITEL

LOOMIS BASIN EQUINE MEDIC
NORTHERN CALIFORNIA SAFE
NORTHERN HUMBOLDT
Check Total:

SECURITY LOCK & ALARM
APRIL SOUSA

Check Total:

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ENERC
Thomas Home Center

USA BLUEBOOK

VALLEY PACIFIC PETROLEUM

33

30

30

115

36

361

540

183

89

446

672

642

320
642

2,277

141
3,139
3,830
4,000
104
804
1,750
2,484
780
189
120

992
678

1,669

223
641
43
684
6,225
366
440

852

000C21201 MQ CUSTOMER REFUND FOR UR
C21207 YOUTH SPORTS CAMP REFUND
C21207 YOUTH SPORTS CAMP REFUND
C21207 YOUTH BASKETBALL/SPORTS C
C21207 SUPPLIES
80113611 HOSTING SERVICES
511 OPS CLOTHING
527969589 SUPPLIES AND REPAIRS
838586/1 REPAIRS
189989313 GRP. HEALTH INS
2BX02694 1656 SUTTER RD - GARBAGE
2BX02695 1705 GWIN RD - GARBAGE SE
2BX02696 675 HILLER RD - GARBAGE S
2BX02827 1620 PICKET RD - GARBAGE
180027398 SUPPLIES
225207 POSTAGE AND MAILING
10323 HOSTING SERVICES
16350222 ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES
C21207 TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENT - BO
C21207 REPAIRS/SUPPLY
C21207 REPAIRS/SUPPLY
C21207 REPAIRS/SUPPLY
41971761 PHONE SERVICES
1380078 REPAIRS/SUPPLY TREATMENT
28661 MONTHLY FEES
ES23-059 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
ES23-060 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
220011577 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
C21207 NORTH COAST APP - DISHWAS
189107534 FLEX SPENDING REIMBURSEME
11549 LOAN REPAYMENT
C21207 REPAIRS/SUPPLY
190847 LAB TREATMENT

22571253 GAS/OIL/LUBE



40547

40548

40549

40550

40551

40552

40553

40554

40555

40556

40557

40558

40559

40560

40561

40562

40563

40564

40565

40566

40567

40568

40569

40570

40571

40572

12/8/2022 VAL02

12/14/2022 ACCO04

12/14/2022 ADVO01

12/14/2022 ALV04

12/14/2022 BINO2

12/14/2022 BORO1

12/14/2022 CAL10

12/14/2022 COMO04

12/14/2022 CWEO1

12/14/2022 DEP05

12/14/2022 FEDO1

12/14/2022 FEDO2

12/14/2022 HARO3

12/14/2022 LESO01

12/14/2022 MITO1

12/14/2022 NORO1

12/14/2022 NOR13

12/14/2022 PGEO1

12/14/2022 PGE09

12/14/2022 PGE11

12/14/2022 PGE12

12/14/2022 SECO03

12/14/2022 SEQO1

12/14/2022 STA11

12/14/2022 THAO01

12/14/2022 UMPO1

VALLEY PACIFIC

ACCURATE DRUG TESTING SE
ADVANCED SECURITY SYSTEI
NICOLE ALVARADO

SCOTT BINDER

BORGES & MAHONEY CO.

Check Total:

CALIFORNIA HEATING
COMPLIANCE ASSOCIATES
CWEA

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
FedEx Office

FEDAK & BROWN LLP
HARPER MOTORS CO.
Check Total:

LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER
MITCHELL LAW FIRM
NORTH COAST LABORATORIE

NORTHERN CALIFORNIA SAFE

Check Total:

PG & E (Office & Field)
PGE-STREETLIGHTS

PGE STREETLIGHTS

PGE

SECURITY LOCK & ALARM
BLUE STAR GAS

STAPLES CREDIT PLAN
THATCHER COMPANY, INC.

UMPQUA COMMERCIAL CARD

Check Total:

3,701
130
355
175

80
950

3,695
297

4,942

104
3,150
202
32
189
2,097
85

92
177
48
239
4,200
500
300

400
200

1,400

21,866
102
20

76
326

1

332
2,783
683
2,414
62
516

169
456

4,301

22-570698 GAS/OIL/LUBE
7090 PHYSICAL
630324 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
C21213 CPA LICENSE ETHICS EXAM
C21209 BOARD TRAVEL REIMBURSEMEN
144043
144077 SUPPLIES
144082 SUPPLIES
S13712 LABOR/SUPPLIES
81784 2023 ENROLLMENT FEES
C21214 RENEWAL/MEMBERSHIP
621685 FINGERPRINTING
797235387 LAB TESTS SHIPPING
C21213 ACCT./AUDIT
840452/2 REPAIRS AND SUPPLIES
840547/2 REPAIRS AND SUPPLIES
600515473 REPAIRS AND SUPPLIES
51331 LEGAL
C21209 LAB TESTS
28676 TRAINING
28682 TRAINING
28690 TRAINING
28693 TRAINING
C21209 GAS & ELECTRIC
C21209 GAS & ELECTRIC S.L.- ZONE
C21209 GAS & ELECTRIC SEWER PUMP
C21209 GAS & ELECTRIC HILLER SPO
220011774 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
271651 TANK RENTAL
C21209 OFFICE SUPPLIES
250107702 REPAIRS/SUPPLY TREATMENT
1222BD TRAVEL/TRAINING/SUPPLIES
1222JH TRAVEL/TRAINING/SUPPLIES
1222LF TRAVEL/TRAINING/SUPPLIES
1222NA TRAVEL/TRAINING/SUPPLIES

1222PD TRAVEL/TRAINING/SUPPLIES
1222PK TRAVEL/TRAINING/SUPPLIES



40573

40574

40575

40576

40577

40578

40579

40580

40581

40582

40583

40584

40585

40586

40587

40588

40589

40590

40591

40592

40593

40594

40595

40596

40597

40598

40599

40600

D00079

12/21/2022 *0041

12/21/2022 *0042

12/21/2022 *0043

12/21/2022 *0044

12/21/2022 ARCO7

12/21/2022 BLAO1

12/21/2022 BNYO01

12/21/2022 COAO01

12/21/2022 CORO01

12/21/2022 FEDO1

12/21/2022 GHDO1

12/21/2022 LESO01

12/21/2022 MAUO1

12/21/2022 MPLO1

12/21/2022 OREO1

12/21/2022 PGE10

12/21/2022 SMA04

12/21/2022 STRO1

12/21/2022 SWRO02

12/21/2022 UNI09

12/22/2022 GHDO1

12/22/2022 KENO2

12/22/2022 PGEO5

12/22/2022 PGE06

12/22/2022 PGEQO7

12/22/2022 PGEO8

12/22/2022 PGE09

12/22/2022 PITO1

12/5/2022 BINO1

Total Disbursements, Accounts Payable

CUSTOMER REFUND AZALEA
CUSTOMER REFUND YOUTH ¢
CUSTOMER REFUND AZALEA
CUSTOMER REFUND AZALEA
ARCATA FIRE PROTECTION DI
JOSEPH M. BLAINE

BNY MELLON TRUST COMPAN
COASTAL BUSINESS SYSTEM¢
CORBIN WILLITS SYSTEMS, |
FedEx Office

GHD

LES SCHWAB TIRE CENTER
MAUREEN KANE & ASSOCIATE
MOTION PICTURE LICENSING
O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC.
PGE STREETLIGHTS
SMARTCOVER SYSTEMS, INC.
STREAMLINE

SWRCB FEES

Check Total:

UNIFIED FIELD SERVICES CO
GHD

KENNEDY/JENKS CONSULTAN
PGE

PG&E-STREETLIGHTS

PG&E STREETLIGHTS

PGE STREETLIGHTS
PGE-STREETLIGHTS

PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINAI
BINDER, SCOTT

ORSINI, GREG

COUCH, DAVID

BITEMAN, JAMES
Check Total:

100
23

100
100
7,158
162
75,233
1,016
963
390
2,379
994
1,500
689

3

4
8,842
300
3,453

12,598
794

16,845

210,471
2,340
66,810
460

21
1,327
20

102
767
125
125
125

125
500

640,767

C21219 CUSTOMER REFUND AZALEA HA
C21219 CUSTOMER REFUND YOUTH SPO
C21219 CUSTOMER REFUND AZALEA HA
C21219 CUSTOMER REFUND AZALEA HA
1234 ARCATA FIRE ASSESSMENT FE
C21219 TRAINING
CT2124630 LOAN INTEREST PAYMENT
33038261 OFFC EQUIP LEAS
C212151 SUBSCRIPTIONS
797978385 LAB TESTS TREATMENT
800024396 CENTRAL MAIN REPLACEMENT
5159352 REPAIRS AND SUPPLIES
C21220 PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
504406212 SUBSCRIPTIONS
537117982 REPAIRS/SUPPLY
C21219 GAS & ELECTRIC S.L.- ZONE
24265 RENEWAL
DF9E70025 SUBSCRIPTIONS
WD0212541 ANNUAL PERMIT FEE
WD0212668 ANNUAL PERMIT FEE
WD0212701 ANNUAL PERMIT FEE
1022953 WATER TANK UPGRADE
800024782 MICROGRID
160125 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 4.5
C21222 GAS & ELECTRIC S.L.- ZONE
C21222 GAS & ELECTRIC S.L.- ZONE
C21222 GAS & ELECTRIC
C21222 GAS & ELECTRIC S.L.- ZONE
C21222 GAS & ELECTRIC S.L.- ZONE
22189430 SUPPLIES FOR POSTAGE MACH
C21205 11/2/22 BOARD MEETING
C21205 11/2/22 BOARD MEETING

C21205 11/2/22 BOARD MEETING
C21205 11/2/22 BOARD MEETING



18557

18558

18559

18559

18560

18561

18562

18563

18597

18598

18599

18600

18601

12/8/2022 CAL12

12/8/2022 DIRO1

12/8/2022 EMPO1

12/8/2022 EMPO1

12/8/2022 HEAO1

12/8/2022 HUM29

12/8/2022 ACWO01

12/8/2022 PUBO1

12/21/2022 CAL12

12/9/2022

12/12/2022

12/21/2022 DIR0O1

12/21/2022 EMPO1

12/21/2022 HEAO1

12/21/2022 HUM29

12/23/2022

Payroll Related Disbursements

CalPERS 457 Plan 212

8,689

920

Check Total: 9,821

DIRECT DEPOSIT VENDOR- U¢ 39,329

Employment Development 40

Employment Development 2,051

29

873

18

3

Check Total: 2,974

HEALTHEQUITY, ATTN: CLINT 50

UMPQUA BANK--PAYROLL DEF 180

7,830

328

9,872

77

2,309

59

33

8

Check Total: 20,694

CB&T/ACWA-JPIA 59,540

Public Employees PERS 21,909

CalPERS 457 Plan 8,678

920

Check Total: 9,598

Payroll 13,856

Payroll 3,312

DIRECT DEPOSIT VENDOR- U¢ 39,239

Employment Development 65

2,095

43

869

Check Total: 3,071

HEALTHEQUITY, ATTN: CLINT 50

UMPQUA BANK--PAYROLL DEF 217

8,249

483

9,937

113

2,430

Check Total: 21,427

Payroll 17,463

Total Disbursements, Payroll 262,374
| Total Check Disbursementy 903,142 |

C21201
C21208
1C21208

C21208

C21201

C21208
1C21201
1C21208
2C21201
3C21201

C21208

C21201

C21208
1C21201
1C21208
2C21201
2C21208
3C21201
4C21201
5C21201

C21130

C21130

C21221
1C21221

C21221

C21212
C21221
1C21212
1C21221

C21221

C21212
C21221
1C21212
1C21221
2C21212
2C21221

RETIREMENT
RETIREMENT
PERS 457 LOAN PMT

Direct Deposit
STATE INCOME TAX

STATE INCOME TAX
SDI
SDI
STATE INCOME TAX
SDI

HSA

FEDERAL INCOME TAX
FEDERAL INCOME TAX
FICA

FICA

MEDICARE

MEDICARE

FEDERAL INCOME TAX
FICA

MEDICARE

MED-DENTAL-EAP INSUR
PERS PAYROLL REMITTANCE

RETIREMENT
PERS 457 LOAN PMT

Direct Deposit

STATE INCOME TAX
STATE INCOME TAX
SDI
SDI

HSA

FEDERAL INCOME TAX
FEDERAL INCOME TAX
FICA

FICA

MEDICARE

MEDICARE






McKinleyville Community Services District
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 1, 2023 TYPE OF ITEM: ACTION

ITEM: D.3 Compliance with State Double Check Valve (DCV) Law
PRESENTED BY: James Henry, Operations Director

TYPE OF ACTION: Roll Call Vote — Consent Calendar

Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Board authorize staff to provide the listed customers with
formal notice that their water service will be discontinued in one month if they have not
come into compliance with state law regarding water service cross-connection in
accordance with MCSD Rules 7 and 10.

Discussion:

Customers listed below are currently not in compliance with State Law regarding cross
connection control for water customers with an alternate water supply. These customers
have been notified of their respective violations, as noted, and have been provided
notification of this meeting.

1st Notice October 19, November 4 2022
10 Day Notice January 18, 2023
Board Meeting February 1, 2023
Lock March 6, 2023
Routes 16, 17, 18

Account # Address

16-415-000 | 3305 Barnett Ave

17-955-000 | 3020 Central Ave

17-400-000 3921 Dows Prairie Rd

18-265-000 | 1640 Balboa Rd







McKinleyville Community Services District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 1, 2023

TYPE OF ITEM: ACTION

ITEM: D.4

PRESENTED BY:

TYPE OF ACTION:

Recommendation:

Consider Approval of Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) Between McKinleyville Community Services
District (MCSD) and the McKinleyville Chamber of
Commerce (Chamber) for Beautification and Decoration
within the County Right of Way Along Central Avenue in
McKinleyville, CA

Patrick Kaspari, General Manager

Roll Call Vote

Staff recommends that the Board review information provided and authorize
Board President to execute the MOU between MCSD and the Chamber for
continued beautification and decoration within the County Right of Way along
Central Avenue in McKinleyville, CA, with any recommended modifications,

Attachment 1.

Discussion:

In February 2020 the MCSD Board of Directors approved the renewal an MOU
between MCSD and the McKinleyville Chamber of Commerce for the
beautification and decoration within the County Right of Way along Central Ave.
that was originally established in 2017. Since then the Chamber has maintained
an encroachment permit with the County and has annually installed and
maintained flower baskets on light poles.

The Chamber has requested that the MOU renewal be for a term of 3 years,
which would coincide with the term of the current encroachment permit with the

County.

Alternatives:

Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative
e Take No Action

Fiscal Analysis:

Not applicable

Environmental Requirements:

Not applicable

Exhibits/Attachments:

e Attachment 1 — MOU MCSD and Chamber

33



Item D.4 Attachment 1

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN
MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT and
THE MCKINLEYVILLE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE

FOR BEAUTIFICATION AND DECORATION WITHIN THE COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY ALONG
CENTRAL AVENUE IN McKINLEYVILLE, CA

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into effective February 1, 2023, by and
between the McKinleyville community Services District, herein referred to as (MCSD), the
McKinleyville Chamber of Commerce herein referred to as (CHAMBER).

The term of this agreement shall commence on the above date and shall terminate on February
28, 2026.

Purpose and Background:

The purpose of this MOU is to establish MCSD and CHAMBER respective roles, duties and
responsibilities that each party hereby agrees to perform and undertake with respect to
beautification and decoration within the Central Avenue Open Space Maintenance Zone
(OSMZ), located along Central Avenue, a County right of way.

This cooperation serves the mutual interest of both parties and the public.

The Central Ave. OSMZ extends north along Central Ave., a County right of way, from the
intersection of Central Ave. and Anna Sparks Way to the intersection of Central Ave. and 110
feet north of Bates Ave. Located within the Central Ave. OSMZ are 77 parcels that front Central
Ave. The CHAMBER wishes to hang flower baskets on a select number of poles within the
Central Ave. OSMZ.

MCSD and CHAMBER hereby wish to establish a cooperative relationship under the terms and
conditions set forth below.

Nothing in this MOU shall alter, amend, or otherwise affect the rights and responsibility of those
property owners owning property that fronts Central Ave. within the Central Ave. OSMZ. Those
property owners remain responsible for maintaining the condition of the sidewalk along the
linear footage of their respective properties.

Respective Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of MCSD and CHAMBER:
Section A: As to CHAMBER:

1. CHAMBER agrees to assume responsibility for all labor, equipment and materials
required for the hanging of flower baskets on light poles within the Central Ave. OSMZ.

2. CHAMBER agrees to assume responsibility for all maintenance related to the flower
baskets.

2023 Central Ave. MOU with McKinleyville Chamber of Commerce
Page 1 of 3

34



3. CHAMBER agrees to provide proof of Worker's Compensation coverage for all labor
performed on behalf of CHAMBER within the Central Ave. OSMZ.

4. CHAMBER agrees to not allow the hanging, removal, maintenance or any other activity
related to the flower baskets, to interfere with the open space maintenance
responsibilities of MCSD.

5. CHAMBER agrees to coordinate with MCSD in the scheduling of the installation and
removal of flower baskets to ensure said activities do not interfere with MCSD’s
scheduled maintenance of the Central Ave. OSMZ.

a. Scheduling of the annual installation and removal of flower baskets will be as
follows:
i. Baskets will be hung within the last two weeks of May, prior to Pony
Express Days celebrations and removed by the end of October each
year.

6. CHAMBER agrees to obtain and maintain throughout the term of this agreement,
comprehensive general public liability insurance issued by and insurance carrier
acceptable to MCSD naming the CHAMBER as insured and MCSD as additionally
insured against any injuries or damages to persons or property caused by or arising out
of the CHAMBER'S occupation and/or activities within the Central Ave. OSMZ under this
agreement in amounts of not less than $1,000,000 for any individual claimant and
$2,000,000 per occurrence.

Section B: As to MCSD:

1. MCSD agrees to grant CHAMBER access to requested areas within the Central Ave.
OSMZ for the purposes of hanging flower baskets on light poles and the maintenance
and/or removal of said amenities.

2. MCSD agrees to coordinate maintenance scheduling of the Central OSMZ in order to
facilitate the CHAMBER'’S access to areas as requested by the CHAMBER.

Section C: CHAMBER, MCSD Further Agree and Acknowledge that:

1. MCSD and CHAMBER agree to mutually hold harmless, indemnify and defend the other
party from and against any and all claims for personal injuries or property damages
which arise out of the indemnifying party’s performance of the terms of this agreement.

2. This MOU and the rights, duties, and responsibilities set forth herein are contingent upon
the CHAMBER successfully acquiring a Right of Way Encroachment Permit from the
County of Humboldt Department of Public Works for access to the Central Ave. right of
way.

2023 Central Ave. MOU with McKinleyville Chamber of Commerce
Page 2 of 3

35



3. This MOU and the rights, duties, and responsibilities set forth herein are contingent and
conditioned upon the continued approval of the affected property owners within the
Central Ave. OSMZ.

4. This MOU shall remain effective and renew annually unless and until the Central Ave.
OSMZ is dissolved. MCSD acknowledge that MCSD will seek reauthorization to
continue the Central Ave. OSMZ every five (5) years from the affected property owners.

5. The General Manager of MCSD, the CEO of the CHAMBER agree to review the status
of this MOU every year, within two (2) months of the renewal date.

6. This MOU may be revised or modified only with the written consent of both parties.

SIGNATURES

By: Date:

Gregory P. Orsini, President of the Board
McKinleyville Community Services District

By: Date:

Jesse Miles, CEO
McKinleyville Chamber of Commerce

2023 Central Ave. MOU with McKinleyville Chamber of Commerce
Page 3 of 3

36



McKinleyville Community Services District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 1, 2023 TYPE OF ITEM: Action

ITEM: D.5 Review and Approve the Amendments to the County
Lease for Sheriff’s Facilities

PRESENTED BY: Patrick Kaspari, General Manager

TYPE OF ACTION: Consent Agenda Approval

Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Board review the information provided, approve the
Amendment to the County Lease for Sheriff's Law Enforcement Facilities at 1608
Pickett Road, and Authorize the Board President to sign the lease upon
Humboldt County Board of Supervisor Approval.

Discussion:

On January 26, 2010, the County of Humboldt entered into a Lease with MCSD
for use of the premises located at 1608 Pickett Road as a law enforcement
facility (Attachment 1). The original lease was amended on March 8, 2011 to
also include the use of Sheriff's Work Alternative Program (SWAP) crews by
MCSD to perform maintenance and upkeep of their facilities. The original lease
expired January 31, 2015, and was renegotiated and extended to February 28,
2021 in February 2018. The Second Amendment to the Lease extended the
terms of the lease out for seven years from the March 1, 2015 date or until
February 28, 2022 with a third amendment extending the lease out to February
28, 2023. The Fourth Amendment to the Lease is included as Attachment 2 and
extends the lease out through February 28, 2024. The Amendment also details
the lease amount annual adjustment based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI).
All other terms and conditions of the lease remain unchanged from the previous
lease, including the provisions that the Sheriff will continue to provide Sheriff
Work Alternative Program (SWAP) workers on a weekly basis to perform work at
any district, park, facility or open space maintenance zone owned by the MCSD.

Alternatives:
Take No Action

Fiscal Analysis:

The extension of the lease with the Sheriff has no additional fiscal impacts except
for a minor increase in monthly income from $201.60/month to $216.14/month.

Environmental Requirements:

Not applicable



Exhibits/Attachments:

e Attachment 1 — Original Lease and Previous Amendments for Law
Enforcement Facility
e Attachment 2 — Fourth Amendment to LEF Lease



Item D.5 Attachment 1
RECEIVED

COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT FEB 2 32015

PUBLIC WORKS
McK. C.S.D.

Real Property Division Thomas K. Mattson, Director
1106 Second Street Ronda Kime
Eureka, CA 95501-0579 Senior Real Property Agent
(707) 268-2667 (707) 445-7409 fax

February 19, 2015

McKinleyville Community Services District
Attn: Jason Sehon

P.O. Box 2037

McKinleyville, CA 95519

Re: 1608 Pickett Road, Lease
Dear Jason:

Enclosed is the executed lease, in duplicate, with the County of Humboldt for the law
enforcement facility at 1608 Pickeft Road. Please have both originals signed and
dated where designated on Page 16. Upon full execution, please return one original to
me for County files.

If you have any questions, please contact me.

Sincerely,
JMLCLKAM
RONDA KIME
Senior Real Property Agent



ORIGINAL

LEASE
Effective this 1st day of March 2015, the McKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT (MCSD), herein called “Lessor,” hereby leases to COUNTY OF
HUMBOLDT, herein called “Lessee,” the Premises located at 1608 Pickett Road, as
described herein, on the following terms and conditions:

ARTICLE 1. LEASED PREMISES

Description of Premises. A description of the leased premises (herein “Premises”),

located in the County of Humboldt, State of California, is described as Parcel B on

Exhibit A, attached hereto, and includes that Parcel, and all improvements thereon.

ARTICLE 2. PARKING AREA USE

Non-Exclusive Parking Rights. Lessee shall have the non-exclusive right to use,

consistent with the defined use of the Premises, the parking area(s), (herein called

“Parking Area") described as Parcel A on Exhibit A, attached hereto.

ARTICLE 3. TERM OF LEASE

3.1 Term. This Lease shall be for a term of three (3) years commencing on March
1, 2015 ("Commencement Date”), and ending at midnight on February 28,

2018, (“Termination Date”).

3.2 Renewal. At the conclusion of the term of this Lease or earlier if requested
by either Lessor or Lessee, Lessor and Lessee agree to discuss and negotiate
terms and conditions of a lease extension or renewal, without any express or
implied obligations on the part of either to reach agreement on any such lease

extension or renewal.



3.3

4.1

Hold Over. Should Lessee hold over and continue in possession of said
Premises after expiration of the term of this Lease, Lessee’s continued
occupancy of said Premises shall be considered a month-to-month tenancy
subject to all terms and conditions of this Lease except that Lessor may

terminate Lessee’s hold over tenancy upon 30 days written notice.
ARTICLE 4. RENT

Rent. Lessee shall pay rent to Lessor in the minimum sum of One Hundred
Seventy-Three Dollars and Two Cents ($173.02) per month throughout the term
of this Lease. This amount is due and payable on the Tenth (10”‘) day of each
month of occupancy. This monthly rent amount will be re-evaluated by Lessor
and may be increased at Lessor's sole discretion annually, but in no event
decreased, on February 1 of each year during the term of this Lease based on
the percentage increase (if any) in the Consumer Price Index in an amount not
to exceed 3% per year for all items (1982-84 =100), U.S. City Average, West
Cities B-C, as published by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of
Labor Statistics (called “the index” in this Lease) for the prior calendar year. In
calculating this percentage increase, the most current Index available on the
date of commencement of the prior term and the most current Index available
immediately preceding the date of annual adjustment during the extended term
shall be used. In the event the Index is either unavailable, is no longer
published, or is calculated on a significantly different basis following the date of
this Lease, the most comprehensive official Index published which most closely
approximates the rate of inflation shall be substituted in place of the Index.
November shall be the base month for this adjustment. On adjustment of the
rent in accordance with this section, LESSEE shall execute a letter stating the
adjustment. In no event shall the rent be less than One Hundred Seventy
Three Dollars and Two Cents ($173.02) per month. Regardless of the CPI
percentage change, the increase shall be no more than three percent (3%)

annually.



Lessee shall provide a minimum of two (2) to a maximum of six (6) Sheriff's
Work Alternative Program (SWAP) SWAP crew members to Lessor each week
as participant levels allow. Each crew member shall work a minimum of six (6)
hours for each day assigned. SWAP participants shall be assigned to Lessor
and report to the Lessor's Supervisor on the day they are assigned. Lessor’s
staff shall maintain written records of each SWAP participant’s work record and
send copies of the records on a weekly basis to the Humboldt County Sheriff’s
Office, Custody Services Division, SWAP Supervisor, at 825 Fifth Street,
Eureka CA 95501.

ARTICLE 5. USE OF PREMISES

Use. Said Premises shall, during the term of this Lease and any
extensions thereof, be used as a law enforcement facility and for uses
normally incident to such purposes, and for no other purpose. Said uses
shall comply with all applicable zoning requirements and permit

procedures.

Covenant of Continuing Use. Lessee shall not leave the Premises

unoccupied or vacant, and must continuously occupy the Premises
during the entire term of this Lease. Lessee shall actively conduct on the
Premises the public services described herein. This provision shall not
obligate the Lessee to provide 24-hour law enforcement service, but only
to provide more or less day-to-day services continuously during the term
of the Lease and any renewal or extension thereof, with specific hours of

operation to be determined by the Lessee.

Waste or Nuisance. Lessee shall not commit or permit the commission by

others of any waste on said Premises; Lessee shall not maintain, commit, or
permit the maintenance or commission of any nuisance as defined in Section
3479 of the California Civil Code on said Premises; and Lessee shall not use or

permit the use of said Premises for any unlawful purpose.

42



54

Compliance With Law. Lessee shall comply with all statutes, ordinances,

regulations, and requirements of all governmental entities, federal, state, county
or municipal, relating to Lessee's use and occupancy of said Premises whether
such statutes, ordinances, regulations, and requirements be now in force or
hereinafter enacted. Lessee's obligations shall include, without limitation, all
alterations and modifications of the Premises required to enable Lessee to
continue its use thereof for the purposes provided in the Lease. Costs and
expenses necessary for such compliance shall be the responsibility of Lessee
except for necessary costs or expenses incurred in major alteration or
modification of the primary structure of the Premises' building, including the
foundation, walls and roof, which shall be the responsibility of Lessor, and
Lessor shall be fully responsible for making alterations and modifications to the

Premises which may be required as a result of changes in the law.

ARTICLE 6. UTILITIES

Payment of Utility Charges. Lessee shall pay, and hold Lessor and the property of

Lessor free and harmless from all charges for the furnishing of gas, water, electricity,

telephone service, other public utilities to said Premises, and for the removal of

garbage and rubbish from said Premises during the term of this Lease or any

extension thereof.

7.1

ARTICLE 7. ALTERATIONS AND REPAIRS

Condition of Premises at Commencement; Notice to Lessor. Lessee's taking
possession of the Premises shall be conclusive evidence as against the Lessee
that the Premises was in good order and satisfactory condition when the
Lessee took possession. At all times during the term of this Lease or any
extension thereof, Lessee agrees to give Lessor prompt notice of any defective

condition in or about the Premises.



7l

7.3

7.4

7.5

Maintenance by Lessor. Lessor shall, at its own cost and expense, maintain in

good condition and repair the major structural elements of the Premises which
are defined to constitute the foundation, walls, and roof; provided, however, that
Lessee shall pay the cost and expense of any structural repairs required
because of the negligence or other fault of Lessee or its employees, agents or
sublessee, if any. Lessor shall be responsible for providing limited janitorial
services for the Premise not to exceed two (2) hours per week, with Lessee
responsible for stripping and waxing the vinyl floors twice annually, and

cleaning of carpets once annually.

Maintenance by Lessee. Except as otherwise expressly provided in Section 7.2

of this Lease, Lessee shall at its own cost and expense keep and maintain all
portions of said Premises as well as improvements of said Premises and all
facilities appurtenant to said Premises in good order and repair and in as safe
and clean a condition as they were when received by Lessee from Lessor,

normal wear and tear excepted.

Maintenance of Parking Area. Lessee and Lessor will share equally in the use

of the Parking Area. Lessee and Lessor will therefore share equally in the cost
of maintenance of the Parking Area. Each shall bear fifty percent (50%) of the
costs to maintain the Parking Area in as good 6ondition and repair as it was in
at the commencement of the lease, except that Lessee and Lessor will be
separately responsible for cost and expense of any repairs required because of
the negligence, wear and tear or other fault, other than normal and proper use,

of themselves or their employees, agents or sublessee(s), if any.

Alterations and Liens. Lessee shall not make or permit any other person to

make any alterations to said Premises or to any improvement thereon or facility
appurtenant thereto without the written consent of Lessor first had and
obtained. Lessee shall keep the Premises free and clear from any and all liens,
claims, and demands for work performed, materials furnished, or operations

conducted on said Premises at the instance or request of Lessee. Furthermore,



7.6

7.7

8.1

any and all alterations, additions, improvements and fixtures, except furniture
and trade fixtures, made or placed in or on said Premises by Lessee or any
other person shall on expiration or sooner termination of this Lease become the
property of the Lessor and remain in said Premises; provided, however, that
Lessor shall have the option on expiration or sooner termination of this Lease of
requiring Lessee, at Lessee's sole cost and expense, to remove any or all such

alterations, additions, improvements or fixtures from said Premises.

Inspection by Lessor. Lessee shall permit Lessor or Lessor's agents,

representatives, or employees to enter said Premises at all reasonable times
which do not interfere with the Lessee's operation of a law enforcement facility,
for the purpose of inspecting said Premises, to determine whether Lessee is
complying with the terms of this Lease and for the purpose of doing other lawful
acts that may be necessary to protect Lessor's interest in said Premises under

this Lease or to perform Lessor's duties under this Lease.

Surrender of Premises. On expiration or sooner termination of this Lease, or

any extensions or renewals of this Lease, Lessee shall promptly surrender and
deliver said Premises to Lessor in as good condition as they were at the
commencement of this Lease, reasonable wear and tear and repairs herein

required to be made by Lessor excepted.

ARTICLE 8. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

Lessee Responsibility. Lessee agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Lessor

and the property of Lessor, including said Premises, free and harmless from
any and all claims, liability, loss, damage, or expenses resulting from Lessee' s
occupation and use of said Premises; specifically including, without limitation,

any claim, liability, loss, or damage arising by reason of:

8.1.1 The Death or injury of any person or persons, including Lessee or any

person who is an employee or agent of Lessee, or by reason of damage



8.2

8.3

8.4

to or destruction of any property, including property owned by Lessee or
any person who is an employee or agent of Lessee, and caused or
allegedly caused by either the condition of said Premises for which
Lessee is responsible, or some act or omission of Lessee or of some
agent, contractor, employee, servant, sublessee, or concessionaire of

Lessee on said Premises;

8.1.2 Any work performed on said Premises or materials furnished to said
Premises at the instance or request of Lessee or any agent or employee
of Lessee; and

8.1.3 Lessee’s failure to perform any of its obligations under this Lease.

Lessor Responsibility. Lessor agrees to defend, indemnify and hold Lessee

and the property of Lessee, free and harmless from any and all claims, liability,
loss, damage or expenses resulting from any condition of the Premises for
which Lessor is responsible or due to any act or omission of Lessor, its agents,

contractors, employees.

Liability Insurance. Lessor and Lessee shall each cause the other party to be

added to the existing policies of liability insurance maintained by each party in
the ordinary course of its governmental functions. Each party shall be added to
the other's insurance coverage as additional insureds, and certificates
evidencing the fact of such coverage shall be provided by each party to the

other party prior to the Lease Commencement Date.

Lessee’s Fire Insurance. In order that the business of Lessee may continue

with as little interruption as possible, Lessee shall, during the full term of this
Lease and any renewals or extensions thereof, maintain at Lessee 's own cost
and expense an insurance policy issued by a reputable company authorized to
conduct insurance business in California insuring a minimum of 80% of

replacement cost of all fixtures and equipment that are, at any time during the

46 7



8.5

8.6

8.7

9.1

term of this Lease or any renewal or extension thereof, in or on said Premises

against damage or destruction by fire, theft, or the elements.

Premises’ Fire Insurance. Lessor shall carry fire and extended coverage

insurance, insuring the building and improvements upon the Premises. The
insurance coverage will be in the amount of the full replacement value of the
Premises. On said insurance coverage, Lessor and Lessee are to be jointly
designated as loss payees, as their interests may appear, and the proceeds
shall be utilized in accordance with the provisions of Article 10 of this Lease,

as applicable.

Certificate of Insurance. Upon commencement of the Lease, Lessee agrees

to deliver to Lessor a certificate of insurance, evidencing all insurance

required to be maintained by Lessee under this Lease.

Waiver of Subrogation. The parties agree to release each other, and their

respective authorized representatives, from any claims for damage to any
person, the Premises or any improvements on the Premises, or Lessee's
trade fixtures, equipment, merchandise, or personal property located on the
Premises, caused by or resulting from risks insured against under any
insurance policies carried by the parties pursuant to this Lease that are in
force at the time of any such damage to the extent of the available insurance
proceeds. Each party shall cause each insurance policy carried pursuant to
this Lease by that party to be written to provide that the insurance company
waives all right of recovery by way of subrogation against either party in

connection with any damage covered by the policy.

ARTICLE 9. SIGNS AND TRADE FIXTURES

Installation and Removal of Trade Fixtures. Lessee shall have the right at any

time and from time to time during the term of this Lease and any renewal or

extension of such term, at Lessee's sole cost and expense, to install and affix



9.2

9.3

10.1

in, to, or on said Premises such items, herein called “trade fixtures" for use by
Lessee as Lessee may, in its sole discretion, deem advisable. Any and all such
trade fixtures that can not be removed without structural damage to said
Premises or any building or improvements on said Premises shall, subject to
Section 7.5 of this Lease, remain the property of Lessor and may not be
removed by Lessee at any time or times prior to the expiration or sooner

termination of this Lease.

Un-removed Trade Fixtures. Any trade fixtures described in this Article that are

not removed from said Premises by Lessee within thirty (30) days after the
expiration or sooner termination, regardless of cause, of this Lease shall be
deemed abandoned by Lessee and shall automatically become the property of

Lessor as owner of the real property to which they are affixed.

Signs. Lessee may not install, or permit any other person to install, any sign,
awning, canopy, marquee, or other advertising on any exterior wall, door, or
window of the Premises without Lessor's prior written consent. On the
expiration or sooner termination of this Lease, or any extension thereof, Lessor
may remove and destroy any items which were permitted to be installed

according to the terms of this section unless removed as set forth in section 9.1.

ARTICLE 10. DESTRUCTION AND CONDEMNATION

Partial Destruction. If, during the term of this Lease or any renewals or

extensions thereof, the Premises are totally or partially destroyed from any
cause, rendering the Premises totally or partially inaccessible or unusable,
Lessor shall, as conditioned herein, restore the Premises to substantially the
same condition as they were in immediately before destruction if the restoration
can be made under the existing laws and can be completed within one (1) year
after the date of the destruction, except that Lessor shall have no obligation to
restore any improvements upon the Premises unless such restoration can be

accomplished with the use of insurance proceeds or other funding, not involving

48 9



10.2

10.3

use of Lessor's funds or other assets. Such destruction shall not terminate this
Lease; however, Lessee shall not be responsible for Lease payments during
the time the Premises is inaccessible or unusable if such impairment was not
caused by the Lessee. If the restoration cannot be made in the time stated in
this section, then within fifteen (15) days after the parties determine that the
restoration cannot be made in the time stated in this paragraph, either party can
terminate this Lease immediately by giving written notice to the other party. If
either party fails to terminate this Lease and if restoration is permitted under the
existing laws, including any laws limiting use of Lessor's funds to restore the
Premises, Lessor shall restore the Premises within a reasonable time and this
Lease shall continue in full force and effect as provided herein. If the existing
laws do not permit the restoration, either party can terminate this Lease

immediately by giving notice to the other party.

Insurance Proceeds. Any insurance proceeds received by Lessor because of

the total or partial destruction of said Premises or the building on said Premises
shall be utilized by Lessor or Lessee, as the case may be, to restore the

Premises.

Lessor's Restoration. Should Lessor be required under Section 10.1 of this

Lease to repair and restore said Premises to their former condition following

partial or full destruction of said Premises:

10.3.1 Lessee shall not be entitled to any damages for any loss or
inconvenience sustained by Lessee by reason of the making of such

repairs and restoration; and

10.3.2 Lessor shall have full right to enter said Premises and take possession of
so much of said Premises, including the whole of said Premises, as may
be reasonably necessary to enable Lessor promptly and efficiently to

carry out the work of repair and restoration.



10.4

10.5

114

Condemnation. Should, during the term of this Lease or any renewal or

extension thereof, title and possession of all of said Premises be taken under
the power of eminent domain by any public or quasi-public agency or entity, this
Lease shall terminate as of the date actual physical possession of said
Premises is taken by the agency or entity exercising the power of eminent
domain and both Lessor and Lessee shall thereafter be released from all
obligations. If a lesser portion of the Premises is taken, the Lease will terminate
as to the part taken, except that if the remaining portion is not reasonably
suitable for Lessee's continuing use, then Lessee shall have the option to

terminate the Lease in its entirety.

Condemnation Award. Should, during the term of this Lease or any renewal or

extension thereof, title and possession of all or any portion of said Premises be
taken under the power or eminent domain by any public or quasi-public agency
or entity, the compensation or damages for the taking shall belong to and be the
sole property of the Lessor, except that Lessee shall be entitled to that portion
of the compensation which represents the value of Lessee's improvements or
alterations made to the Premises by Lessee in accordance with this Lease,
which improvements or alterations Lessee has the right to remove from the

Premises, but elects not to remove.

ARTICLE 11. DEFAULT, ASSIGNMENT AND TERMINATION

Subleasing or Assigning as Breach. Lessee shall not encumber, assign, or

otherwise transfer this Lease, any right or interest in this Lease, or any right or
interest in said Premises or any of the improvements that may now or hereafter
be constructed or installed on said Premises without the express written
consent of Lessor. Neither shall Lessee sublet said Premises or any part
thereof without the prior written consent of Lessor. A consent by Lessor to one
assignment, one subletting, or occupation of said Premises by another person
shall not constitute consent to any such action involving others. Any

encumbrance, assignment, subletting, or transfer without the prior written

50 11



11.2

12.1

consent of Lessor, whether it be voluntary or involuntary, by operation of law or
otherwise, is void and shall, at the option of Lessor, terminate this Lease. The
consent of Lessor to any assignment of Lessee's interest in this Lease or the
subletting by Lessee of said Premises or parts of said Premises shall not be

unreasonably withheld.

Default by Lessee. Lessee’s failure to pay rent when due, if the failure

continues for five (5) days after written notice of the failure from Lessor to
Lessee, shall constitute a default. Should Lessee default in the performance of
any of the covenants, conditions, or agreements contained in this Lease other
than the obligation to pay rent, then Lessee shall have breached the Lease and
shall be in default unless such default is cured within ten (10) days of written
notice from Lessor to Lessee. In the event of any default, not cured by Lessee
within the time limits herein set forth, Lessor may, reenter and regain
possession of said Premises in the manner provided by the laws of unlawful
detainer of the State of California then in effect. In addition, Lessor may, in the
event of default by Lessee, elect to exercise any of the remedies described in
California Civil Code sections 1951.2 and 1951.4.

Cumulative Remedies. The remedies given to Lessor in this Article shall not be

exclusive but shall be cumulative and in addition to all remedies now or

hereafter allowed by law or elsewhere provided in this Lease.

Waiver of Breach. The waiver by Lessor of any breach by Lessee of any of the

provisions of this Lease shall not constitute a continuing waiver or a waiver of
any subsequent breach by Lessee either of the same or another provision of
this Lease.

ARTICLE 12. MISCELLANEOUS

Force majeure — Unavoidable Delays. Should the performance of any act

required by this Lease to be performed by either Lessor or Lessee be prevented

or delayed by reason of an act of God, strike, lockout, labor troubles, inability to

51 L2



12.2

12.3

12.4

secure materials, restrictive governmental laws or regulations, or any other
cause except financial inability not the fault of the party required to perform the
act, the time for performance of the act will be extended for a period equivalent
to the period of delay and performance of the act during the period of delay will
be excused; however, should Lessee not have the financial ability to fund the
maintenance and/or operation of a law enforcement facility on the Premises, the
Lease can be canceled in its entirety with not less than Ninety (90) days written

notice from the Lessee.

Termination Without Cause. Either party may, without cause, terminate the

Lease effective the first day of July of any year upon four (4) months written

notice to the other party.

Attorney's Fees. Should any litigation be commenced between the parties to

this Lease concerning said Premises, this Lease or the rights and duties of
either in relation thereto, the party, Lessor or Lessee, prevailing in such
litigation shall be entitled, in addition to such other relief as may be granted in
the litigation, to a reasonable sum for attorney's fees in such litigation which
shall be determined by the court in such litigation or in a separate action

brought for that purpose.

Notice. Except as otherwise expressly provided by law, any and all notices or
other communications required by this Lease or by law to be served on or given
to either party hereto by the other party hereto shall be in writing and shall be
deemed duly served and given when personally delivered to the party to whom
they are directed, or in lieu of such personal service, when deposited in the

United States mail, first class postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

To Lessee:

County of Humboldt
Real Property Division
1106 Second Street
Eureka, CA 95501



12.5

12.6

12.7

12.8

To Lessor:

McKinleyville Community Services District
P.O. Box 2037
McKinleyville, CA 95519

Either party, Lessee, or Lessor, may change its address for the purpose of this
section by giving written notice of such change to the other party in the manner

provided in this section.

Binding On Successors. This Lease shall be binding on and shall inure to the

benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto, Lessor and Lessee,
but- nothing in this section contained shall be construed as a consent by Lessor
to any assignment of this Lease or any interest therein by Lessee except as

provided in Article 11 of this Lease.

Partial Invalidity. Should any provision of this Lease be held by a court of

competent jurisdiction to be either invalid, void, or unenforceable, the remaining
provisions of this Lease shall remain in full force and effect unimpaired by the

holding.

Sole_and Only Agreement. This instrument constitutes the sole and only

agreement between Lessor and Lessee respecting said Premises, the leasing
of said Premises to Lessee, or the lease term herein specified, and correctly
sets forth the obligations of Lessor and Lessee to each other as of its date. Any
agreements or representations respecting said Premises or their leasing by

Lessor to Lessee not expressly set forth in this instrument are null and void.

Nuclear Free Contractor. Lessor certifies by its signature below that Lessor is

not a Nuclear Weapons contractor, in that Lessor is not knowingly or
intentionally engaged in the research, development, production, or testing of

nuclear warheads, nuclear weapons systems, or nuclear weapons components

53 14



129

12.10

12.11

12.12

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
U
I
I
i
I

as defined by the Nuclear Free Humboldt County Ordinance. Lessor agrees to
notify Lessee immediately if it becomes a nuclear weapons contractor, as
defined above. Lessee may immediately terminate this (Lease if it determines
that the foregoing certification is false or if Lessor becomes a nuclear weapons

contractor.
Smoking. Pursuant to Humboldt County Ordinance #1993, Lessee owned,
leased or occupied premises are smoke free. Lessor shall comply with the

ordinance.

Library License Agreement. This Lease does not affect or supersede the

license agreement for the library previously entered into between the County of

Humboldt and the McKinleyville Community Services District.

Time of Essence. Time is expressly declared to be of the essence of this Lease.

Modification. This Lease may not be altered, changed, or amended except by

an instrument in writing signed by Lessee and Lessor.



Executed on Fe\"rd ¢='ﬂ'\ 2 S

County, California.

LESSOR:

LESSEE:

McKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Chlest

ohn W. Corbett, President MCSD Board of Directors

MCKINLE LLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

Gﬁér@rsml General Manager

COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT M

LA bnt

Chairperson, Board of Supervisors
County of Humboldt, State of California

(SEAL)
Attest:
Clerk of the’B

, 2015, at Mc¢ )L:(‘)Q":j V) ))-Q ., Humboldt

16



Exhibit A

. LEGAL DESCRIPTION

ALL THAT REAL PROPERTY SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT, STATE OF
CALIFORNIA DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BETNG A PORTION OF THE LANDS DEEDED TO THE COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT AS SHOWN
ON THE RECORD OF SURYEY DATED AUGUST, 1992 AS RECORDED MARCH 30, 1993 IN
BOOK 54 OF SURVEYS AT PAGE 2, HUMBOLDT COUNTY RECORDS, BEING MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED A5 FOLLOWS:

" PARCEL‘A™

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LANDS; THENCE SOUTHERLY
ALONG THE EAST LINE OF $a)0 LANDS SOUTH 0°0930" WEST 152.00 FEET TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SATD EAST LINE SOUTH 0°09'30" WEST £8.00
FEET; THENCE LEAVING SAID EAST LINE NORTH 89°50730" WEST 68.00 FEET; THENCE
NORTHERLY ALONG A LINE LYING WESTERLY OF, PARALLEL WITH AND 68.00 FEET
DISTANT MEASURED AT RIGHT ANGLES FROM SATD EASTERLY LINE NORTH 00°05'307
EAST 88.00 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 85°5030" EAST 63.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING 5,984 SQUARE FEET OF LAND, MORE OR LESS

PARCEL ‘B’

COMMENCING AT THE AFOREMENTIONED POINT OF BEGINNING OF SAID PARCEL ‘A%
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID PARCEL ‘A" NORTH 89°5030" WEST
68.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID-FOINT BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER
OF SAID PARCEL *A’; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG TEE WEST LINE OF THE SAID FARCEL
A" SOUTH 00°09'30" WEST 88.00 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID PARCEL 'A";
THENCE LEAVING SAID WEST LINE NORTH §9°5030" WEST 150.82 FEET TO A POINT LYING
ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID LANDS DEEDED TO THE COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT; THENCE
NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST LINE THE FOLLOWING THREE (3) COURSES:

1) HORTH 11.65 FEET;

) THENCE NORTH 85°50'30" WEST 0.96 FEET;

3) THENCE NORTH 00°33'20" WEST 76.35 FEET,
THENCE LEAVING SATD WEST LINE SOUTH 89°50'30" EAST 152.77 FEET TO THE POINT OF

BEGINNING
CONTAINING 13,386 SQUARE FEET OF LAND, MORE OR LESS.

LEGAL DESCRIFTION PREFARED BY:

PHILIP AfGUTIERREZ JR,
LS. 7245 .

EXHIBITA © 133

17



Exhibit A

PICKETT  ROAD
1 P.0.C.

P.0.B

PARCEL '

SBES0'30E  220.77'(T,
277

Y
NOO'33'20"W

NES'50'30 W~
0.96"

d ég

LEGAL DESCRIFIION PIAT 2 11
OF AFORTIONOF -
THE LANDS DEEDED TQ THE COUNTY OF HUMBOLIT h
A5 BHOWN ON BOOK 34 OF SURVEYS, PAQE 2. MARCH 13,1998
HUMBULOT COUNTY CALIFORNIA SCALE: "=30"



AMENDMENT TO LEASE

This First Amendment to the Lease entered into on February 25, 2015, by and between the
COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT, a political subdivision of the State of California, hereinafter called
LESSEE, and MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT (MCSD), a special
district of the County of Humboldt, State of California, hereinafter called LESSOR, is entered into

this 1 day of PMUW ,2018.

v

WHEREAS, the parties entered into a Lease for the use of the premises at 1608 Pickett
Road, McKinleyville for the purpose a law enforcement facility; and

WHEREAS, LESSEE and LESSOR desire to extend the term of the Lease until February
28,2021; and

WHEREAS, LESSEE and LESSOR desire to adjust the rent for the extended term to
reflect adjustments based on the Consumer Price Index; and

WHEREAS, California Civil Code section 1938 requires commercial property owners to
state on every lease executed on or after January 1, 2017, whether or not the subject premises have
undergone inspection by a Certified Access Specialist (CASp), and the parties wish to comply with
this requirement;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed as follows:
1. Section 3.1, Term, of this Lease shall be amended to read as follows:

This Lease shall be extended for a term of three (3) years commencing on March 1, 2018
“Commencement Date,” and ending at midnight on February 28, 2021, (“Termination Date™).

2. Section 4.1, Rent, of this Lease shall be amended to read as follows:

LESSEE shall pay rent to LESSOR in the minimum sum of One Hundred Eighty-One
Dollars and Zero Cents ($181.00) per month throughout the term of this Lease. This amount is
due and payable on the Tenth (10th) day of each month of occupancy. This monthly rent amount
will be re-evaluated by LESSOR and may be increased at LESSOR’S sole discretion annually, but
in no event decreased, on February 1 of each year during the term of this Lease based on the
percentage increase (if any) in the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for all items (1982-84 =100), U.S.
City Average, West Cities B-C, as published by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of
Labor Statistics (called “the Index” in this Lease) for the prior calendar year. In calculating this
percentage increase, the most current Index available on the date of commencement of the prior
term and the most current Index available immediately preceding the date of annual adjustment
during the extended term shall be used. In the event the Index is either unavailable, is no longer
published, or is calculated on a significantly different basis following the date of this Lease, the
most comprehensive official Index published which most closely approximates the rate of
inflation shall be substituted in place of the Index. November shall be the base month for this
adjustment. On adjustment of the rent in accordance with this section, LESSEE shall execute a
letter stating the adjustment. In no event shall the rent be less than Hundred Eighty-One Dollars
and Zero Cents ($181.00) per month. Regardless of the CPI percentage change, the increase shall

[real property\1608 pickett rd mekinleyville\2018 amendment to leasegg 1608 picket rd.docx 1



AMENDMENT TO LEASE

be no more than three percent (3%) annually.

3. Section 12.13, Premises Inspection By Certified Access Specialist, shall be added
to the Lease, to read as follows:

The premises have not undergone inspection by a Certified Access Specialist.

A Certified Access Specialist (CASp) can inspect the subject premises and determine
whether the subject premises comply with all of the applicable construction-related accessibility
standards under state law. Although state law does not require a CASp inspection of the subject
premises, the commercial property owner or lessor may not prohibit the lessee or tenant from
obtaining a CASp inspection of the subject premises for the occupancy or potential occupancy of
the lessee or tenant, if requested by the lessee or tenant. The parties shall mutually agree on the
arrangements for the time and manner of the CASp inspection, the payment of the fee for the
CASp inspection, and the cost of making any repairs necessary to correct violations of
construction-related accessibility standards within the premises.

4. In all other respects, the Lease between the parties entered into on February 25,
2015, shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have executed this First Amendment to
Lease dated February 25, 2015, on the date indicated above.

LESSEE: COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT LESSOR: MCKINLEYVILLE
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

i e WY

CHAIR, Ryoin Sundber: Davitd & ik, poaed Precident
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR

TITLE:

ATTEST:

(SEAL) BY:

TITLE: Q. W\

CLERK OF BO

E"lan Shﬂv{), :P{P»d"? Clerie oF the Beerel

f:\real property\ 1608 pickett rd mekinleyville\2018 amendment to lcas%g.} 1608 picket rd.docx 2



SECOND AMENDMENT TO LEASE

This Second Amendment to the Lease entered into on March 1, 2015, by and
between the COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT, a political subdivision of the State of California,
hereinafter referred to as LESSEE, and MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES
DISTRICT (MCSD),a special district of the County of Humboldt, State of California,
hereinafter called LESSOR, is entered into this day of
, 2021.

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2015, the parties entered into a Lease for COUNTY use
of the premises at 1608 Pickett Road, McKlInleyville for the purpose of a law enforcement
facility; and

WHEREAS, on February 7, 2018, the parties entered into a First Amendment to
Lease for LESSEE continued use of the premises; and

WHEREAS, LESSEE and LESSOR desire to extend the term of the Lease until
February 28, 2022; and

WHEREAS, LESSEE and LESSOR desire to adjust the rent for the extended term.
NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually agreed as follows:
1. Section 3.1, Term, of this Lease shall be amended to read as follows:

This Lease shall be for a term of seven (7) years commencing on March 1, 2015
(“Commencement Date”) and ending at midnight on February 28, 2022 (“Termination
Date™). '

2. Section 4.1, Rent, of this Lease shall be amended to read as follows:

LESSEE shall pay rent to the LESSOR in the amount of One Hundred Eighty-Eight
Dollars and Fifty - Five Cents ($188.55) per month throughout the term if this Lease. This
amount is due and payable on the Tenth (10%) day of each month of occupancy. This
amount is based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI) for all items (1982-84 = 100), U.S.
City Average, West Cities B-C, as published by the United States Department of Labor,
Bureau of Labor Statistics (called “the Index” in this Lease) for the prior calendar year.
In calculating this percentage increase, the most current index available on the date of
the commencement of the prior term and the most current Index available immediately
receding the date of annual adjustment during the extended term shall be used.
November shall be the base month for this adjustment. For clarity purposes, the rent is
calculated as follows:

Waest-Size Class B/C, Nov. 2020, All Urban CPI = 161.069
West-Size Class B/C, Nov. 2018, All Urban CPI = 154.625
Difference = 161.069 — 154.625 = 6.444

% Difference = 6.444/154.625 x 100 = 4.17%

1




SECOND AMENDMENT TO LEASE
New Rent = $181.00 (previous years rent) x 0.0417 + 181.00 = $188.55 per month
3. Section 12.13, Counterparts, shall be added to read follows:

This Agreement, and any amendments hereto, may be executed in one (1) or more
counterparts, each which shall be deemed to be an original and all of which, when taken
together, shall be deemed to be one (1) and the same agreement. A signed copy of this
Agreement, and any amendments hereto, transmitted by email or by other means of
electronic transmission shall be deemed to have the same legal effect as delivery of an
original executed copy of this Agreement, and any amendments hereto, for all purposes.

4, In all other respects, the Lease between the parties entered into on
February 25, 2015, and its First Amendment to the Lease entered into on February 7,
2018 shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Second
Amendment to the Lease dated February 25, 2015 on the date indicated above.

LESSEE: COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT LESSOR: MCKINLEYVILLE
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

BY: Z ;
BY: Eosmme

NAME:
NAME: "D evrninis YNy o
TITLE: CHAIR v

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TITLE: Boerc A Prens dandt
COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT

(SEAL)
BY:
NAME:
ATTEST:
TITLE:

NAME: RYAN SHARP

TITLE: DEPUTY CLERK OF THE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS



Item D.5 Attachment 2

FOURTH AMENDMENT
LEASE AGREEMENT
BY AND BETWEEN
COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT
AND
MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
FOR FISCAL YEARS 2014-2015 THROUGH 2023-2024

This Fourth Amendment to the Lease Agreement dated February 25, 2015, as amended on February
7, 2018, February 23, 2021 and February 15, 2022, by and between the County of Humboldt, a political
subdivision of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as “LESSEE,” and the McKinleyville
Community Services District, a special district of the County of Humboldt, State of California, hereinafter
referred to as “LESSOR,” is entered into on this day of , 2023.

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2015, LESSEE and LESSOR entered into a Lease Agreement for the
premises located at 1608 Pickett Road, McKinleyville, California for the purpose of LESSEE operating a
law enforcement facility; and

WHEREAS, on February 7, 2018, LESSEE and LESSOR agreed to amend the Lease Agreement in
order to extend the term thereof and increase the monthly rental payments required thereunder; and

WHEREAS, on February 23, 2021, LESSEE and LESSOR agreed to amend the Lease Agreement in
order to extend the term thereof and increase the monthly rental payments required thereunder; and

WHEREAS, on February 15, 2022, LESSEE and LESSOR agreed to amend the Lease Agreement in
order to extend the term thereof and increase the monthly rental payments required thereunder; and

WHEREAS, LESSEE and LESSOR now desire to once again amend the Lease Agreement in order
to further extend the term thereof and increase the monthly rental payments required thereunder.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows:
1. Section 3.1 — Term of the Lease Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:
3.1 Term.

This Lease shall begin on March 1, 2015 (“Commencement Date”) and shall remain in
full force and effect until midnight on February 28, 2024 (“Termination Date”), unless
extended by a valid amendment hereto or sooner terminated as set forth herein.

2. Section 4.1 — Rent of the Lease Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:
41 Rent.

LESSEE shall pay rent to the LESSOR in the amount of Two Hundred Sixteen Dollars
and Fourteen Cents ($216.14) per month after approval of this Fourth amendment for
the remainder of this Lease. This amount is due and payable on the Tenth (10™") day
of each month of occupancy. This amount is based on the Consumer Price Index (CPI)
for all items (1982-84 =100), U.S. City Average, West Cities B-C, as published by the
United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics (called “the Index” in
this Lease) for the prior calendar year. In calculating this percentage increase, the
most current index available on the date of the commencement of the prior term and

62
McKinleyville Community Services District FY 14/15-23/24 Page 1 of 2



the most current Index available immediately receding the date of annual adjustment
during the extended term shall be used. November shall be the base month for this
adjustment. For purposes of clarity, the rent is calculated as follows:

West-Size Class B/C, Nov. 2022, All Urban CPI = 184.626
West-Size Class B/C, Nov. 2021, All Urban CPI = 172.214
Difference = 184.626 — 172.214 = 12.412

% Difference = 12.412/172.214 x 100 = 7.21%

Increase = $201.60 (previous years rent) x .0721 (7.21%) = $14.54
New Rent = $201.60 (previous years rent) + $14.54 = $216.14

3. Except as modified herein, the Lease Agreement dated February 25, 2015, as amended on February 7,
2018, February 23, 2021 and February 15, 2022, shall remain in full force and effect. In the event of
a conflict between the provisions of this Fourth Amendment and the original Lease Agreement, or any
prior amendments thereto, the provisions of this Fourth Amendment shall govern.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into this Fourth Amendment as of the first
date written above.

MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT:

By: Date:

Name:

Title:

COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT:

By: Date:
Steve Madrone, Chair

Humboldt County Board of Supervisors

INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION REQUIREMENTS APPROVED:

By: Date:
Risk Management

63
McKinleyville Community Services District FY 14/15-23/24 Page 2 of 2






McKinleyville Community Services District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 1, 2023 TYPE OF ITEM: ACTION- Consent

ITEM: D.6 Consider Resolution 2023-02 Concurring Resolution in
Nomination to the Executive Committee of the
Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers
Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA) for J. Bruce Rupp

PRESENTED BY: Pat Kaspari, General Manager

TYPE OF ACTION: Roll Call — Consent Calendar

Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Board review the information provided and approve
Resolution 2023-02 concurring the nomination to the Executive Committee of the
ACWA/JPIA for J. Bruce Rupp.

Discussion:

The District was notified of J. Bruce Rupp’s intent to seek renomination to the
Executive Committee of the ACWA/JPIA Executive Committee. Mr. Rupp is a
Board Member on the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District's (HBMWD) board
and has served on that Board for the last 27 years. He has also represented the
North Coast region currently on the Association of California Water Agencies,
Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA) Executive Committee for the last
8-years. His resume (see Attachment 2) details his other Professional and
community service experience. He is seeking reappointment to the ACWA/JPIA
Executive Committee for the next four years. MCSD is a member of ACWA/JPIA
and has been and continues to be well represented by Mr. Rupp. Resolution
2023-02 (Attachment 1) is a concurring nomination for Mr. Rupp to the
ACWA/JPIA Board. A minimum of three concurring nominations from member
agencies are required. HBMWD has nominated Mr. Rupp, and the Boards of
Mesa Water District and Rincon del Diablo Municipal Water District are expected
to pass concurring resolutions as well.

Alternatives:

Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative:

e Take No Action

Fiscal Analysis:

Not applicable

Environmental Requirements:

Not applicable



Exhibits/Attachments:

e Attachment 1 — Resolution 2023-02
e Attachment 2 — Rupp Resume




Item D.6 Attachment 1

RESOLUTION 2023 - 02

A RESOLUTION OF THE McKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT BOARD OF
DIRECTORS CONCURRING IN NOMINATION TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
OF THE ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES JOINT POWERS
INSURANCE AUTHORITY ("ACWA/JPIA™)

WHEREAS, the McKinleyville Community Services District is a member district of the
ACWA/JPIA; and

WHEREAS, the Bylaws of the ACWA/JPIA provide that in order for a nomination to be made to
ACWA/JPIA's Executive Committee, three-member districts must concur with the nominating
district, and

WHEREAS, another ACWA/JPIA member district, the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District,
has requested that this district concur in its nomination of its member of the ACWA/JPIA Board
of Directors to the Executive Committee of the ACWA/JPIA.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the McKinleyville
Community Services District that this district concur with the nomination of J. Bruce Rupp of
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District to the Executive Committee of the ACWA/JPIA.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board Secretary is hereby directed to transmit a certified
copy of this resolution to the ACWA/JPIA at P.O. Box 619082, Roseville, CA 95661-9082,
forthwith.

ADOPTED, SIGNED AND APPROVED at a duly called meeting of the Board of Directors of the
McKinleyville Community Services District on February 1, 2023, by the following polled vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Gregory P. Orsini, Board President

Attest:

April Sousa, MMC, Board Secretary

Resolution 2023 — 02 February 1, 2023 Page 1 of 1

67



JOHN BRUCE RUPP
(BRUCE)

DIRECTOR OF HUMBOLDT BAY
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT FOR
27 YEARS; TWO TERM

PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD.

RETIRED REAL ESTATE BROKER &
SMALL BUSINESS OWNER

MARRIED 51 YEARS: WIFE
MARILYN, FORMER REAL ESTATE
AGENT AND PARALEGAL

FAMILY: ONE SON, TWO
DAUGHTERS AND ELEVEN
GRANDCHILDREN

CONTACT INFO
828 7t Street
Eureka, CA 95501

T:707-443-5018

E: rupp@hbmwd.com

Item D.6 Attachment 2

CAREER HISTORY

Five years as United States Army officer, combat veteran Vietnam;
Bronze Star, Jump Wings, Vietnamese Cross of Gallantry

Seven years of progressively more responsible positions in Alameda
County Government, San Francisco Bay Area

Ten years as City Manager, City of Alameda, CA
Four years as County Administrative Officer, Humboldt County, CA

Twelve years as Real Estate Broker and owner of Rupp & Associates
Realty

EDUCATION

San Rafael High School, San Rafael, CA

San Jose State University, BA, Public Administration

Graduate Officers Candidate School, Defense Language Institute

PROFESSIONAL & COMMUNITY SERVICE

Member ACWA/JPIA Executive Committee

Chair ACWA-JPIA Employee Benefits Committee

Vice-Chair of ACWA/PIA Finance Committee

Member ACWA Board & Board Executive Committee

Chair of ACWA Region 1

Rotary Member for 44 years; twice Club President; Paul Harris Fellow
Member Eureka Elks Lodge

Member City of Eureka Finance Advisory Committee

Past Chair Redwood Region Economic Development Commission
Past President, Humboldt Association of Realtors

Former State Governor appointment to North Coast Regional Water
Control Board

Past Board Member League of California Cities

68



McKinleyville Community Services District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 1, 2023

TYPE OF ITEM: ACTION

ITEM: E.1

PRESENTED BY:

TYPE OF ACTION:

Recommendation:

Consider Approval of Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) Between The Wiyot Tribe, Humboldt County, and
McKinleyville Community Services District (MCSD) to
Establish a Cooperative Government-to-Government
Relationship to Implement a McKinleyville Regenerative
and Transformative Climate Community Grant.

Patrick Kaspari, General Manager

Roll Call

Staff recommends that the Board review information provided and authorize
Board President to execute the MOU between the Wiyot Tribe, Humboldt County
and MCSD to cooperatively implement a TCC grant to create a planning process
for affordable housing that lowers greenhouse gas emissions and creates
neighborhoods that reduce automobile usage.

Discussion:

The Wiyot Tribe submitted a Transformative Climate Communities (TCC) grant
application to the California Strategic Growth Council early in 2022. The District
and the County worked with the Tribe to prepare letters of support for the Grant
Application and reviewed a Draft Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) at that
time. In October, the California Strategic Growth Council (SGC) informed the
Tribe that the Council approved a TCC Planning grant of $299,800 to the Wiyot
Tribe for the “McKinleyville Regenerative and Transformative Community Plan”.
Previously funded by California’s Cap-and-Trade Program, Round 4 of TCC is
funded by a FY 2021-2022 budget appropriation from the General Fund. The
award letter stated: “This program funding empowers the communities most
impacted by pollution to choose their own goals, strategies, and projects to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions and local air pollution. “

The scope of work of the Planning Grant states:

e The project will engage in pre-planning for affordable housing development in
west McKinleyville, CA and the unincorporated areas north and west of Arcata,
CA as outlined on the project map (See Figure in Attachment 1).

e The activity under this agreement involves planning for affordable housing,
renewable energy, ecologically regenerative workforce training, and climate
smart transportation. This includes, but is not limited to:



o Property evaluation and selection, including environmental, historical, and
cultural evolution, title issues etc.

o Pre-development planning, including engineering, architectural, traffic
analysis, landscape architecture, and restoration planning.

o Community interaction and participation activities, including outreach
meetings, translations, newsletters and updates on-line and/or in print,
and tribal citizen participation opportunities.

o Creating a Collaborative Governance Structure.

o Creating a masterplan for the development of several connected projects
to be implemented over the following 5 years after the planning grant has
been concluded, and work to get them shovel ready by the end of the
planning process.

The District’s “Commitments, Obligations and Responsibilities” are outlined in
Paragraph 4 of the MOU (Attachment 1). They generally consist of assisting the
Tribe in identifying potential properties and providing Staff assistance and
representation in the planning process and at project meetings.

Alternatives:

Staff analysis consists of the following potential alternative
e Take No Action

Fiscal Analysis:

MCSD Staff, likely to be mainly Parks & Recreation Director Frisbee, will be
reimbursed by the grant at their fully loaded payrate for their time working on the
TCC Grant.

Environmental Requirements:

Not applicable

Exhibits/Attachments:
e Attachment 1 — MOU between The Wiyot Tribe, Humboldt County, MCSD




I. Parties

Item E.1 Attachment 1

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN
THE WIYOT TRIBE
HUMBOLDT COUNTY
MCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

The Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") is made on ____ (date), between the Wiyot Tribe, a
federally recognized Indian tribe (“Tribe”); and County of Humboldt, a political subdivision of the State
of California (“County”); and the McKinleyville Community Services District, an independent special
district established in 1970, in the County of Humboldt, a political subdivision of the State of California
(“District”) (each, a “Party”, and collectively referred to as the “Parties”).

RECITALS

A. The Parties intend to establish a cooperative government-to-government
relationship regarding a McKinleyville Regenerative and Transformative
Community (MRTC). The MRTC project will create a planning process for affordable
housing that lowers greenhouse gas emissions and creates neighborhoods that
reduce automobile usage.

B. Initial funding is sought from the California Strategic Growth Council’s Transformative Climate
Communities Program.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties, in order to achieve these purposes, agree as follows:

1. Scope of Agreement.

i.  The planning process will be completed within 2 years of the date of the Award.

ii. The project will engage in pre-planning for affordable housing development in west
McKinleyville, CA and the unincorporated areas north and west of Arcata, CA as
outlined on the project map (Appendix 1).

iii. The activity under this agreement involves planning for affordable housing, renewable
energy, ecologically regenerative workforce training, and climate smart
transportation. This includes, but is not limited to:

Vi.

Property evaluation and selection, including environmental, historical, and
cultural evolution, title issues etc.

Pre-development planning, including engineering, architectural, traffic analysis,
landscape architecture, and restoration planning.

Community interaction and participation activities, including outreach
meetings, translations, newsletters and updates on-line and/or in print, and
tribal citizen participation opportunities.

Creating a Collaborative Governance Structure for a Transformative Climate
Communities Implementation Grant (if it is secured).

Creating a masterplan for the development of several connected projects to be
implemented over the following 5 years after the planning grant has been
concluded, and work to get them shovel ready by the end of the planning
process.

Other activities outlined in the project application or such activities that arise

1of6

71



during the execution of the project activities.

2. Tribe’s Commitments, Obligations, Responsibilities

Wiyot Tribe, Grantee/Lead Applicant — The Wiyot tribe is the Lead applicant and
Grantee for the TCC (Transformative Climate Communities) grant. They will be
responsible for all the grant administration, including fiscal and legal responsibilities
towards the Strategic Growth Council.

The Tribe will be responsible for coordinating and managing the planning activities
as outlined in the grant application, including community outreach, pre-
development, and collaborative governance. This includes resolving any challenges
arising from having multiple jurisdictions contained within the Project Area.

The Tribe will develop and implement appropriate policies for this initial planning
work, and the future management of the projects.

The Wiyot Tribe will supply one (100%) Full Time Equivalent, as staff and/or
subcontractors, to execute the planning grant, if it is awarded.

Each Party is responsible for their own subcontractors and other commitments they
make outside of this MOU, in conjunction with the TCC (Transformative Climate
Communities) grant.

3. County’s Commitments, Obligations Responsibilities.

vi.

Humboldt County, Partner/Co-applicant - Humboldt County is a co-applicant and
will support the planning process with a staff position at five percent (5%) for a
Planner Il at a rate of $50.81/hour or as may be modified by the Board of
Supervisors, subcontracted under the Tribe from the grant if it is awarded. They will
participate in the collaborative governance of the project at regular meetings.

The county is offering supportive services from the planning department and any
other relevant departments, to identify properties, any planning policy or zoning
blocking the use of these properties for purposes consistent with the awarded grant
and this MOU, public transportation possibilities, and other relevant planning
activities.

They will also be Interfacing with other county departments that might be necessary
to include in the planning activities. The County will support the tribe in navigating
the regulations and administration of planning and pre-development.

If the parties find it necessary the County will process applications to develop and
implement policies, including changes to planning documents or zoning, as far as
they are able. This does not include a commitment by the Zoning Administrator, Planning
Commission or Board of Supervisors to act on a project in any given way.

Representatives from the County may participate in the community outreach part of
the project but are not required to under this MOU.

Each Party is responsible for their own subcontractors and other commitments they
make outside of this MOU, in conjunction with the TCC grant.

20f6



4. Dlstrlct's Commitments, Obligations Responsibilities.

Vi.

McKinleyville Community Services District, Partner/Co-applicant — The District is a
co-applicant and will support the planning process with a staff position at a 5% FTE
at a fully loaded rate of $68.90/hr, subcontracted under the Tribe from the grant, if
it is awarded. They will participate in the collaborative governance of the project at
regular meetings.

The District will provide supportive services from any relevant departments, to
identify potential properties, any policies blocking the use of these properties,
public transportation possibilities, and other relevant planning activities.

They will be interfacing with their internal departments that might be necessary to
include in the planning activities. The District will support the tribe in navigating the
regulations and administration of planning and pre-development

If the parties find it necessary, the District will develop and implement appropriate
policies, as far as they are able.

Representatives from the District may participate in the community outreach part of
the project but are not required to under this MOU.

Each Party is responsible for their own subcontractors and other commitments they
make outside of this MOU, in conjunction with the TCC grant.

5. Mutual Support

The Parties to this MOU agree to work cooperatively toward the common goals as
set forth in the TCC grant application.

The Parties mutually agree to meet on a regular basis or as needed and to share
information and necessary documents relevant to the grant objectives.

The County and District will provide the Tribe with all necessary reports on its work
as needed to comply with the grant requirements.

6. Voluntary Resolution; Reference to Other Means of Resolution.

The Parties will use their best efforts to resolve any disputes that may occur under
this Agreement by good faith negotiations whenever possible. Therefore, without
prejudice to the right of either Party to seek injunctive relief against the other to
enforce terms and conditions of this Agreement when circumstances are deemed
to require immediate relief, the Parties hereby establish a threshold requirement
that disputes between the Tribe, the County, and MCSD first be subject to a
process of meeting and conferring in good faith to foster a spirit of cooperation
and efficiency in the performance and compliance with this Agreement as follows:
Any Party will give the others, as soon as possible after the event giving rise to the
concern, a written notice setting forth, with specificity, the issues to be resolved.
The Parties will meet and confer in a good faith attempt to resolve the dispute
through negotiation no later than ten (10) days after receipt of the notice, unless
both Parties agree to an extension of time in writing.

If the dispute is not resolved to the Parties' satisfaction within thirty (30) calendar
days after the first meeting, then either Party may seek to terminate the
Agreement.

This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon written notice. Notice of
termination must be delivered to all parties at least thirty (30) calendar days prior
to the intended date of termination. Notice of termination does not nullify
obligations already incurred prior to the date of termination.

30of6

73



vi.

No Waiver or Preclusion of Other Means of Dispute Resolution. This Section may not
be construed to preclude, limit, or restrict the ability of the Parties to pursue, by
mutual Agreement any other method of dispute resolution, including, but not
limited to, mediation, provided, that neither Party is under any obligation to agree
to such alternate method of dispute resolution.

7. Tribal Sovereignty.

o

The County and District acknowledge and agree that the Tribe:

is a federally recognized Indian tribe;

on trust lands is not generally subject to the jurisdiction of the County and/or
District or its laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances;

has the right to have land taken into trust by the United States for the benefit of the
Tribe; and

has not submitted to, and nothing in this Agreement is intended to constitute,

or shall be construed as constituting, a submission by the Tribe to, the

jurisdiction of the County and/or District.

8. Limited Waiver of Sovereign Immunity.

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of sovereign
immunity except the limited waiver of sovereign immunity for the purpose of
enforcement of the terms of this MOU.

9. Notices. Any notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing and may be
personally delivered, or delivered by United States Postal Service, first-class mail, or by a
reputable overnight delivery service, addressed as follows or to other such places as either
Party may designate by written notice to the other.

Points of Contact for Tribe:

Michelle Vassel, Tribal Administrator
Wiyot Tribe

1000 Wiyot Drive

Loleta, California 95551

Phone: 707-733-5055

Point of contact County

Michael Richardson, Supervising Planner

Humboldt County Planning and Building Department
3015 H Street

Eureka, CA 95501

Phone: (707) 268-3723

Points of Contact District

Lesley Frisbee, Parks & Recreation Director
McKinleyville CSD

1656 Sutter Rd

McKinleyville, CA 95519

Phone: 707-839-3251

4 of 6


tel:707-733-5055

10. Miscellaneous Provisions.

vi.

Vii.

viii.

Term of Agreement. This Agreement will take effect immediately upon execution
by the Parties and will remain in effect for two years from the date of execution of
the Agreement or until modified by written consent of all the Parties.
No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is not intended to, and will not be
construed to, confer a benefit or create any right for any person or entity that is not
a Party.
Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument
signed by all the Parties.
Waiver. The waiver by either Party or any of its officers, agents or employees or the
failure of either Party or any of its officers, agents or employees to act with respect
to any right conferred by, or any breach of any obligation or responsibility of this
Agreement, will not be deemed to be a waiver of such obligation or responsibility,
or subsequent breach of the same, or of any terms, covenants or conditions of this
Agreement.
Authorized Representatives. The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the
Parties hereto affirmatively represent that each has the requisite legal authority to
enter into this Agreement on behalf of their respective Party and to bind their
respective party to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The persons
executing this Agreement on behalf of their respective Party understand that both
Parties are relying on these representations in entering into this Agreement.
Successors in Interest. The terms of this Agreement will be binding on all
successors in interest of each Party.
Non-Severability. It is the express intent of the Parties to this Agreement that if any
provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction, following
exhaustion of all appeals, to be invalid or unenforceable, then that provision shall
be severed from this Agreement and the remainder of the Agreement shall remain
in full force and effect. The Parties shall enter into good faith negotiations to
replace the invalid or unenforceable provision with a valid provision, the economic
effect of which comes as close as possible to the invalid or unenforceable provision.
Timely Performance. The Parties acknowledge that time is of the essence in the
performance of this Agreement. Each Party hereby covenants to act diligently and
in good faith, and without undue delay in the performance of any of its obligations
under this Agreement.
Entire Agreement.
1. This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the
Parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or
other agreements, whether written or oral.
2. Inthe event of a dispute between the Parties as to the language of this

Agreement or the construction or meaning of any term hereof, this

Agreement will be deemed to have been drafted by the Parties in

equal parts so that no presumptions or inferences concerning its terms

or interpretation may be construed against any party to this

Agreement.

11. Contingency

This agreement and the details here in are contingent on edits made in the post
award consultations with the Strategic Growth Council or their representatives and
will be finalized if the grant has been awarded.

50f6

75



IN WITNESS THEREOQF, the Parties hereby execute and enter this Agreement with
the intent to be bound thereby through their authorized representatives, whose signatures
are affixed below.

Execution Signatures:

For the Wiyot Tribe: For the County of Humboldt:
Signature Signature
Date: Date:

For the McKinleyville Community Service District:

Signature
Date:

6 0of 6



[ TCC Planning Area

TCC Planning Grant Boundary

0 0.25 05 1 Miles
| ] ] ] |







McKinleyville Community Services District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 1, 2023 TYPE OF ITEM: ACTION

ITEM: E.2 Establish Section 115 Trust for Other Post-Employment
Benefits (OPEB)

PRESENTED BY: Nicole Alvarado, Finance Director

TYPE OF ACTION: None

Recommendation:

Staff recommends the Board:

e Establish a Section 115 Trust with CalPERS California Employers Retiree
Benefit Trust Program (CERBT)

e Set a funding target of 60% of the actuarial determined liability

e Approve an initial transfer of $2.5 million

e Authorize staff to fund the Trust annually in an amount equal to the “Pay-
As-You-Go” amount with additional contributions to be determined during
the annual budget process

e Authorize the Finance Director and General Manager to invest funds in the
Trust utilizing Strategy 3 — More Conservative

e Authorize the Finance Director and General Manager to execute the
necessary agreements, certifications and other related documents to
establish the Trust

Discussion:

The District currently offers a health insurance plan for retirees which is
commonly referred to as other-post employment benefits or (OPEB). Each yearr,
the District’s actuary, Govinvest calculates the cost of these benefits over a 30
year horizon. This cost is then recorded as a liability on the District's books. Over
the next decade, approximately 25% of the District’s current workforce will be
eligible for this plan.

Public agencies have two options for covering OPEB costs. The first option is to
“pay-as-you-go” where the District pays the monthly premium for retirees out of
its current year operating budget. This is the District’s current method. The
current annual pay-go amount is approximately $160k. The second option is
“pre-funding” where funds are set aside in a Section 115 Trust account dedicated
to the payment of these liabilities. If this method is chosen, the District can fund



the trust based on the actuarially determined annual contribution or elect an
annual contribution up to a percentage of the total actuarially determined liability.

The California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) has established
a program called the California Retirement Benefit Trust (CERBT), which is a
Section 115 Trust set up for the sole purpose of receiving employer contributions
for OPEB costs. If the District chooses to participate in CERBT, future costs can
be financed through investment earnings from the Section 115 Trust, as well as,
annual contributions. The District maintains an approximately $2.9M reserve
designated for the funding of OPEB liabilities, these funds are currently held at
Humboldt County and CalTrust where they earn minimal interest income.

To establish a Section 115 Trust with CERBT, the Board of Directors must
authorize the following:

e Agreement and Election to Prefund Other Post Employment Benefits
through CalPERS

e Delegation of Authority to Request Disbursements
e Certification of the Program Funding Policy

The Audit & Finance Committee met December 12, 2022 and January 17, 2023
to discuss the establishment of the Trust. Through these discussions, the Audit &
Finance Committee recommends:

e A funding target for the Trust of 60% of the actuarial determined liability

e An initial transfer of $2.5 million from OPEB reserves

e Annual funding equal to the “Pay-As-You-Go” amount with additional
contributions determined by the budget process

e Utilization of investment CERBT Strategy 3 — More Conservative

Alternatives:

Take no action, fund at current levels and pay-as-you-go and allow funds to
remain at Humboldt County and CalTrust.

Fiscal Analysis:

Benefits of a Section 115 Trust:

e Broader array of investment options — Per state statutes, the
District is restricted in the types of investments it can hold. By
placing funds in the Section 115 Trust, the District would be
allowed to invest in a broader array of investments options which
can potentially yield higher returns over the long term. The CERBT



has averaged 4.57% yield over the past 10 years, this includes
recent market activity.

e Reduce unfunded liabilities and future contributions — The CERBT
provides the District the ability to utilize interest earned from the
Trust investments to pay the annual contribution and unfunded
OPERB liability.

e Improve financial reporting outcomes — If the District establishes a
Section 115 Trust with CERBT, Govinvest will utilize the CERBT’s
discount rate instead of the Treasury Bond Buyer Rate, which
lowers the District’s overall OPEB liability.

e CalPERSs low administrative fee of 10 basis points (.1%) —
CalPERS CERBT program is the largest provider of Section 115
Trusts with the lowest administrative fee at 10 basis points.
CalPERs will not invoice the District for their services, the cost
would debit out of the interest earned.

As with all investments, CERBT comes with risk in that the funds would be more
prone to market and economic volatility compared to the District’s current
investments at Humboldt County and CalTrust. Also, an IRS Section 115 Trust is
irrevocable, meaning the investment can only be utilized for OPEB costs and not
to pay for operations or catastrophic events.

CERBT offers 3 investment strategies:
Strategy 1 — Less Conservative, Expected Return 6%, Risk 12.1%
Strategy 2 — Conservative, Expected Return 5.5%, Risk 9.9%
Strategy 3 — More Conservative, Expected Return 5%, Risk 8.4%

Exhibits/Attachments:

e Attachment 1 - Agreement and Election to Prefund Other Post
Employment Benefits Through CalPERS

e Attachment 2 - Delegation of Authority to Request Disbursements

e Attachment 3 - Certification of the Program Funding Policy

e Attachment 4 — MCSD 2022 GASB 75 Report

e Attachment 5 — FY21-22 Reserve Calculations

e Attachment 6 — Notes from the 12/12/2022 & 1/17/2023 Audit & Finance
Committee



Item E. 2 Attachment 1

CALIFORNIA EMPLOYERS’ RETIREE BENEFIT TRUST PROGRAM ("CERBT")

AGREEMENT AND ELECTION
OF

McKinleyville Community Services District
(NAME OF EMPLOYER)

TO PREFUND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS THROUGH CalPERS

WHEREAS (1) Government Code Section 22940 establishes in the State Treasury the
Annuitants' Health Care Coverage Fund for the prefunding of health care coverage for
annuitants (Prefunding Plan); and

WHEREAS (2) The California Public Employees' Retirement System (CalPERS) Board
of Administration (Board) has sole and exclusive control and power over the
administration and investment of the Prefunding Plan (sometimes also referred to as
CERBT), the purposes of which include, but are not limited to (i) receiving contributions
from participating employers and establishing separate Employer Prefunding Accounts
in the Prefunding Plan for the performance of an essential governmental function (ii)
investing contributed amounts and income thereon, if any, in order to receive yield on
the funds and (iii) disbursing contributed amounts and income thereon, if any, to pay for
costs of administration of the Prefunding Plan and to pay for health care costs or other
post-employment benefits in accordance with the terms of participating employers'
plans; and

WHEREAS (3) McKinleyville Community Services District
(NAME OF EMPLOYER)

(Employer) desires to participate in the Prefunding Plan upon the terms and conditions
set by the Board and as set forth herein; and

WHEREAS (4) Employer may participate in the Prefunding Plan upon (i) approval by
the Board and (ii) filing a duly adopted and executed Agreement and Election to Prefund
Other Post-Employment Benefits (Agreement) as provided in the terms and conditions
of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS (5) The Prefunding Plan is a trust fund that is intended to perform an
essential governmental function within the meaning of Section 115 of the Internal
Revenue Code as an agent multiple-employer defined benefit plan as defined in
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements for Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans
(OPEB Standards) consisting of an aggregation of single-employer plans, with pooled
administrative and investment functions;

&wﬁ»

Rev 1/12/2022 Page 10f 10 CalPERS
82



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT EMPLOYER HEREBY MAKES THE
FOLLOWING REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTY AND THAT THE BOARD AND
EMPLOYER AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

A. Representation and Warranty

Employer represents and warrants that it is a political subdivision of the State of
California or an entity whose income is excluded from gross income under Section 115
(1) of the Internal Revenue Code.

B. Adoption and Approval of the Agreement; Effective Date; Amendment

(1) Employer's governing body shall elect to participate in the Prefunding Plan by
adopting this Agreement and filing with the CalPERS Board a true and correct original
or certified copy of this Agreement as follows:

Filing by mail, send to: CalPERS
CERBT (OPEB)
P.O. Box 1494
Sacramento, CA 95812-1494

Filing in person, deliver to:
CalPERS Mailroom
CERBT (OPEB)
400 Q Street
Sacramento, CA 95811

(2) Upon receipt of the executed Agreement, and after approval by the Board, the
Board shall fix an effective date and shall promptly notify Employer of the effective date
of the Agreement.

(3) The terms of this Agreement may be amended only in writing upon the agreement
of both CalPERS and Employer, except as otherwise provided herein. Any such
amendment or modification to this Agreement shall be adopted and executed in the
same manner as required for the Agreement. Upon receipt of the executed amendment
or modification, the Board shall fix the effective date of the amendment or modification.

(4) The Board shall institute such procedures and processes as it deems necessary to
administer the Prefunding Plan, to carry out the purposes of this Agreement, and to
maintain the tax exempt status of the Prefunding Plan. Employer agrees to follow such
procedures and processes.

&wﬁ»

Rev 1/12/2022 Page 2 of 10 CalPERS
83



C. Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) Cost Reports and Employer Contributions

(1) Employer shall provide to the Board an OPEB cost report on the basis of the
actuarial assumptions and methods prescribed by the Board. Such report shall be for
the Board’s use in financial reporting, and shall be prepared at least as often as the
minimum frequency required by applicable GASB OPEB Standards. This OPEB cost
report may be prepared as an actuarial valuation report or, if the employer is qualified
under GASB OPEB Standards, may be prepared as an Alternative Measurement
Method (AMM) report.

(@) Unless qualified under GASB OPEB Standards, to provide an AMM
report, Employer shall provide to the Board an actuarial valuation report.
Such report shall be for the Board's use in financial reporting, and shall be
prepared at least as often as the minimum frequency required by GASB
OPEB Standards, and shall be:

1) prepared and signed by a Fellow or Associate of the Society of
Actuaries who is also a Member of the American Academy of
Actuaries or a person with equivalent qualifications acceptable to the
Board;

2) prepared in accordance with generally accepted actuarial practice and
GASB OPEB Standards; and,

3) provided to the Board prior to the Board's acceptance of contributions
for the valuation period or as otherwise required by the Board.

(b) If qualified under GASB OPEB Standards, Employer may provide to the
Board an AMM report. Such report shall be for the Board’s use in
financial reporting, shall be prepared at least as often as the minimum
frequency required by GASB OPEB Standards, and shall be:

1) affirmed by Employer’s external auditor, or by a Fellow or
Associate of the Society of Actuaries who is also a Member of the
American Academy of Actuaries or a person with equivalent
qualifications acceptable to the Board, to be consistent with the
AMM process described in GASB OPEB Standards;

2) prepared in accordance with GASB OPEB Standards; and,

3) provided to the Board prior to the Board's acceptance of
contributions for the valuation period or as otherwise required by
the Board.

(2) The Board may reject any OPEB cost report for financial reporting purposes

submitted to it, but shall not unreasonably do so. In the event that the Board

Rev 1/12/2022 Page 3 of 10 A
84



determines, in its sole discretion, that the OPEB cost report is not suitable for use in the
Board's financial statements or if Employer fails to provide a required OPEB cost report,
the Board may obtain, at Employer's expense, an OPEB cost report that meets the
Board's financial reporting needs. The Board may recover from Employer the cost of
obtaining such OPEB cost report by billing and collecting from Employer or by deducting
the amount from Employer's account in the Prefunding Plan.

(3) Employer shall notify the Board of the amount and time of contributions which
contributions shall be made in the manner established by the Board.

(4) Employer contributions to the Prefunding Plan may be limited to the amount
necessary to fully fund Employer's actuarial present value of total projected benefits, as
supported by the OPEB cost report for financial reporting purposes acceptable to the
Board. As used throughout this document, the meaning of the term "actuarial present
value of total projected benefits" is as defined in GASB OPEB Standards. If Employer’s
contribution causes its assets in the Prefunding Plan to exceed the amount required to
fully fund the actuarial present value of total projected benefits, the Board may refuse to
accept the contribution.

(5) No contributions are required. Contributions can be made at any time following the
effective date of the Agreement provided that Employer has first complied with the
requirements of Paragraph C.

D. Administration of Accounts, Investments, Allocation of Income

(1) The Board has established the Prefunding Plan as an agent plan consisting of an
aggregation of single-employer plans, with pooled administrative and investment
functions, under the terms of which separate accounts are maintained for each
employer so that the Employer's assets will provide benefits only under the Employer's
post-employment benefit plan(s).

(2) All Employer contributions and assets attributable to Employer contributions shall be
separately accounted forin the Prefunding Plan (Employer’s Prefunding Account).

(3) Employer’s Prefunding Account assets may be aggregated with prefunding account
assets of other employers and may be co-invested by the Board in any asset classes
appropriate for a Section 115 Trust.

(4) The Board may deduct the costs of administration of the Prefunding Plan from the
investment income or Employer’s Prefunding Account in a manner determined by the
Board.

(5) Investment income shall be allocated among participating employers and posted to
Employer’s Prefunding Account as determined by the Board but no less frequently than
annually.

Rev 1/12/2022 Page 4 of 10 A

85



(6) If Employer's assets in the Prefunding Plan exceed the amount required to fully fund
the actuarial present value of total projected benefits, the Board, in compliance with
applicable accounting and legal requirements, may return such excess to Employer.

E. Reports and Statements

(1) Employer shall submit with each contribution a contribution report in the form and
containing the information prescribed by the Board.

(2) The Board shall prepare and provide a statement of Employer’s Prefunding Account
at least annually reflecting the balance in Employer's Prefunding Account, contributions
made during the period and income allocated during the period, and such other
information as the Board determines.

F. Disbursements

(1) Employer may receive disbursements not to exceed the annual premium and other
costs of post-employment healthcare benefits and other post-employment benefits as
defined in GASB OPEB Standards.

(2) Employer shall notify CalPERS in writing in the manner specified by CalPERS of the
persons authorized to request disbursements from the Prefunding Plan on behalf of
Employer.

(3) Employer's request for disbursement shall be in writing signed by Employer's
authorized representative, in accordance with procedures established by the Board.
The Board may require that Employer certify or otherwise establish that the monies will
be used for the purposes of the Prefunding Plan.

(4) Requests for disbursements that satisfy the requirements of paragraphs (2) and (3)
will be processed monthly.

(5) CalPERS shall not be liable for amounts disbursed in error if it has acted upon the
written instruction of an individual authorized by Employer to request disbursements. In
the event of any other erroneous disbursement, the extent of CalPERS' liability shall be
the actual dollar amount of the disbursement, plus interest at the actual earnings rate
but not less than zero.

(6) No disbursement shall be made from the Prefunding Plan which exceeds the
balance in Employer’s Prefunding Account.

G. Costs of Administration

Employer shall pay its share of the costs of administration of the Prefunding Plan, as
determined by the Board.

Rev 1/12/2022 Page 5 of 10 A
86



H. Termination of Employer Participation in Prefunding Plan
(1) The Board may terminate Employer’s participation in the Prefunding Plan if:
(a) Employer gives written notice to the Board of its election to terminate;

(b) The Board finds that Employer fails to satisfy the terms and conditions of
this Agreement or of the Board's rules or regulations.

(2) If Employer’s participation in the Prefunding Plan terminates for any of the foregoing
reasons, all assets in Employer’s Prefunding Account shall remain in the Prefunding
Plan, except as otherwise provided below, and shall continue to be invested and accrue
income as provided in Paragraph D.

(3) After Employer’s participation in the Prefunding Plan terminates, Employer may not
make contributions to the Prefunding Plan.

(4) After Employer’s participation in the Prefunding Plan terminates, disbursements
from Employer’s Prefunding Account may continue upon Employer’s instruction or
otherwise in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

(5) After the Employer’s participation in the Prefunding Plan terminates, the governing
body of the Employer may request either:

(@)  Atrustee to trustee transfer of the assets in Employer’s Prefunding
Account; provided that the Board shall have no obligation to make such
transfer unless the Board determines that the transfer will satisfy
applicable requirements of the Internal Revenue Code, other law and
accounting standards, and the Board’s fiduciary duties. If the Board
determines that the transfer will satisfy these requirements, the Board
shall then have one hundred fifty (150) days from the date of such
determination to effectthe transfer. The amount to be transferred shall be
the amount in the Employer's Prefunding Account as of the date of the
transfer (the “transfer date”) and shall include investment earnings up to
an investment earnings allocation date preceding the transfer date. In no
event shall the investment earnings allocation date precede the transfer
date by more than 150 days.

(b) A disbursement of the assets in Employer’'s Prefunding Account; provided
that the Board shall have no obligation to make such disbursement unless
the Board determines that, in compliance with the Internal Revenue Code,
other law and accounting standards, and the Board’s fiduciary duties, all of
Employer's obligations for payment of post-employment health care
benefits and other post-employment benefits and reasonable
administrative costs of the Board have been satisfied. If the Board
determines that the disbursement will satisfy these requirements, the

Rev 1/12/2022 Page 6 of 10 A

87



Board shall then have one hundred fifty (150) days from the date of such
determination to effectthe disbursement. The amount to be disbursed
shall be the amount in the Employer’s Prefunding Account as of the date
of the disbursement (the “disbursement date”) and shall include
investment earnings up to an investment earnings allocation date
preceding the disbursement date. In no event shall the investment
earnings allocation date precede the disbursement date by more than 150
days.

(6) After Employer’s participation in the Prefunding Plan terminates and at such time
that no assets remain in Employer’s Prefunding Account, this Agreement shall
terminate.

(7) If,for any reason, the Board terminates the Prefunding Plan, the assets in
Employer’s Prefunding Account shall be paid to Employer after retention of (i) amounts
sufficient to pay post-employment health care benefits and other post-employment
benefits to annuitants for current and future annuitants described by the employer’s
current substantive plan (as that term is used in GASB OPEB Standards), and (ii)
amounts sufficient to pay reasonable administrative costs of the Board.

(8) If Employer ceases to exist but Employer’s Prefunding Plan continues to exist and if
no provision has been made by Employer for ongoing payments to pay post-
employment health care benefits and other post-employment benefits to annuitants for
current and future annuitants, the Board is authorized to and shall appoint a third party
administrator to carry out Employer's Prefunding Plan. Any and all costs associated
with such appointment shall be paid from the assets attributable to contributions by
Employer.

(9) If Employer should breach the representation and warranty set forth in Paragraph
A., the Board shall take whatever action it deems necessary to preserve the tax-exempt
status of the Prefunding Plan.

|. General Provisions
(1) Books and Records.

Employer shall keep accurate books and records connected with the performance of
this Agreement. Employer shall ensure that books and records of subcontractors,
suppliers, and other providers shall also be accurately maintained. Such books and
records shall be kept in a secure location at the Employer's office(s) and shall be
available for inspection and copying by CalPERS and its representatives.

(2) Audit.

() During and for three years after the term of this Agreement, Employer shall
permit the Bureau of State Audits, CalPERS, and its authorized

&wﬁ»

Rev 1/12/2022 Page 7 of 10 CalPERS

88



(b)

(3) Notice.

(@)

Rev 1/12/2022

representatives, and such consultants and specialists as needed, at all
reasonable times during normal business hours to inspect and copy, at the
expense of CalPERS, books and records of Employer relating to its
performance of this Agreement.

Employer shall be subject to examination and audit by the Bureau of State
Audits, CalPERS, and its authorized representatives, and such
consultants and specialists as needed, during the term of this Agreement
and for three years after final payment under this Agreement. Any
examination or audit shall be confined to those matters connected with the
performance of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, the costs of
administering this Agreement. Employer shall cooperate fully with the
Bureau of State Audits, CalPERS, and its authorized representatives, and
such consultants and specialists as needed, in connection with any
examination or audit. All adjustments, payments, and/or reimbursements
determined to be necessary by any examination or audit shall be made
promptly by the appropriate party.

Any notice, approval, or other communication required or permitted under
this Agreement will be given in the English language and will be deemed
received as follows:

1. Personal delivery. When personally delivered to the recipient.
Notice is effective on delivery.

2. First Class Mail. When mailed first class to the last address of the
recipient known to the party giving notice. Notice is effective three
delivery days after deposit in a United States Postal Service office

or mailbox.

3. Certified mail. When mailed certified mail, return receipt requested.
Notice is effective on receipt, if delivery is confirmed by a return
receipt.

4. Overnight Delivery. When delivered by an overnight delivery
service, charges prepaid or charged to the sender's account, Notice
is effective on delivery, if delivery is confirmed by the delivery
service.

5. Telex or Facsimile Transmission. When sent by telex or fax to the
last telex or fax number of the recipient known to the party giving
notice. Notice is effective on receipt, provided that (i) a duplicate
copy of the notice is promptly given by first-class or certified mail or
by overnight delivery, or (ii) the receiving party delivers a written

Page 8 of 10 &wb
CalPERS

89



confirmation of receipt. Any notice given by telex or fax shall be
deemed received on the next business day if it is received after
5:00 p.m. (recipient's time) or on a nonbusiness day.

6. E-mail transmission. When sent by e-mail using software that
provides unmodifiable proof (i) that the message was sent, (ii) that
the message was delivered to the recipient's information processing
system, and (iii) of the time and date the message was delivered to
the recipient along with a verifiable electronic record of the exact
content of the message sent.

Addresses for the purpose of giving notice are as shown in Paragraph B.(1) of this
Agreement.

(b)  Any correctly addressed notice that is refused, unclaimed, or
undeliverable because of an act or omission of the party to be notified
shall be deemed effective as of the first date that said notice was refused,
unclaimed, or deemed undeliverable by the postal authorities, messenger
or overnight delivery service.

(c)  Any party may change its address, telex, fax number, or e-mail address by
giving the other party notice of the change in any manner permitted by this
Agreement.

(d)  All notices, requests, demands, amendments, modifications or other
communications under this Agreement shall be in writing. Notice shall be
sufficient for all such purposes if personally delivered, sent by first class,
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, delivery by courier
with receipt of delivery, facsimile transmission with written confirmation of
receipt by recipient, or e-mail delivery with verifiable and unmodifiable
proof of content and time and date of sending by sender and delivery to
recipient. Notice is effective on confirmed receipt by recipient or 3
business days after sending, whichever is sooner.

(4) Survival

All representations, warranties, and covenants contained in this Agreement, or in any
instrument, certificate, exhibit, or other writing intended by the parties to be a part of

their Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement until such time as all

amounts in Employer's Prefunding Account have been disbursed.

(5) Waiver
No waiver of a breach, failure of any condition, or any right or remedy contained in or

granted by the provisions of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is in writing and

Rev 1/12/2022 Page 9 of 10 A
90



signed by the party waiving the breach, failure, right, or remedy. No waiver of any
breach, failure, right, or remedy shall be deemed a waiver of any other breach, failure,
right, or remedy, whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver constitute a continuing
waiver unless the writing so specifies.

(6) Necessary Acts, Further Assurances

The parties shall at their own cost and expense execute and deliver such further
documents and instruments and shall take such other actions as may be reasonably
required or appropriate to evidence or carry out the intent and purposes of this
Agreement.

A majority vote of Employer’s Governing Body at a public meeting held on the 1

day of the month of February in the year 2023 , authorized entering

into this Agreement.

Signature of the Presiding Officer:

Printed Name of the Presiding Officer: Gregory P. Orsini

Name of Governing Body: Board of Directors

Name of Employer McKinleyville Community Services District

Date:

BOARD OF ADMINISTRATION
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

BY

MELODY BENAVIDES

DIVISION CHIEF, PENSION CONTRACTS AND PREFUNDING PROGRAMS
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

To be completed by CalPERS

The effective date of this Agreement is:

Rev 1/12/2022 Page 10 of 10 A
91



Item E. 2 Attachment 2

M. CalPERS

California Public Employees’ Retirement System California Employers’
Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT)

400 Q Street, Sacramento, CA 95811
www.calpers.ca.gov

Delegation of Authority to Request Disbursements
California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust
(CERBT)

RESOLUTION
OF THE

Board of Directors

(GOVERNING BODY)
OF THE

McKinleyville Community Services District

(NAME OF EMPLOYER)

. Board of Directors

(GOVERNING BODY)

General Manager

Th delegatestothe incumbents

in the positions of and
(TITLE)
Finance Director and/or
(TITLE)
Human Resources Manager Juthority torequeston

(TITLE)

behalf of the Employer disbursements from the Other Post Employment Prefunding

Plan and to certify as to the purpose for which the disbursed funds will be used.

By

e Board President

Witness

Date




Item E.2 Attachment 3

CERBT Valuation Packet

The California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) Fund is an Internal Revenue Code Section 115,
multiple-employer OPEB trust fund and has a fiduciary responsibility for financial reporting in accordance
to the Governmental Accounting Standards Statement No. 74. As such, we request all participating
employers to submit a renewal OPEB Valuation or AMM Report at least every two years, along with this
valuation packet consisting of the Certification of Funding Policy, the Summary of Actuarial Information,
and the Certification of Actuarial Information. The information provided in the OPEB valuation or AMM
report is essential to the accuracy of the administration and reporting of the CERBT Fund.

McKinleyville Community Services District

Employer Name

06/30/2021

Valuation Date

Renewal Valuation Checklist

Please email a copy of your agency’s final OPEB valuation or AMM report, along with this completed
packet to CERBT4U@calpers.ca.gov. If you have any questions, contact us at CERBT4U@calpers.ca.gov.

OPEB Valuation or AMM Report (Final version)

Certification of Funding Policy (pages 2-3, completed and signed)

Summary of Actuarial Information (pages 4-5, completed)

Certification of Actuarial Information (page 6, completed and signed)

. CalPERS

Rev. 10/1/2022
Page 1 of 6


mailto:CERBT4U@calpers.ca.gov
mailto:CERBT4U@calpers.ca.gov

CERBT Valuation Packet
Certification of Funding Policy (1 of 2)

McKinleyville Community Services District

Employer Name

06/30/2021

Valuation Date

CERBT Asset Allocation Strategy Selection

As the employer, | certify that my agency chooses the following CERBT asset allocation strategy:

CERBT Asset Allocation Long-Term Expected Expected Volatility
Strategy Rate of Return (Standard Deviation)
Strategy 1 6.0% 12.1%
Strategy 2 5.5% 9.9%
Strategy 3 5.0% 8.4%

Funding Method
As the employer, | certify that our OPEB funding method and intent for the period covered by our

current OPEB valuation or AMM report is to contribute consistently an amount that is equal to:

ADC funding method: % of the Actuarially Determined Contribution (ADC)
as determined in our OPEB valuation or AMM report.

>< Other funding method: We will contribute to the trust using an approach not directly
related to the ADC. Please describe in the comment section below.

If applicable, please provide ADC amounts and periods covered as determined in the report:

First Fiscal Year-End : 06/30/2022 S 804,012
MM/DD/YYYY ADC Amount
06/30/2021 S 741,540

Second Fiscal Year-End:

MM/DD/YYYY ADC Amount

Comments

McKinleyville Community Services District will contribute to the Trust the total of annual premiums
for plan participates, as well as, an excess amount determined annually by the District's budget

process.

Rev. 10/1/2022
Page 2 of 6



CERBT Valuation Packet
Certification of Funding Policy (2 of 2)

Contribution and Reimbursement Method

As the employer, | certify that we intend to make CERBT contributions and request eligible
reimbursements in the following manner:

Contribute full ADC payments to the trust and seek reimbursements for pay-go costs.

Contribute ADC payments to the CERBT net of pay-go costs and not seek
reimbursement (ADC minus pay-go = Trust Contribution).

>< Other contribution and/or reimbursement method, e.g. initial/ ad hoc lump sum
contribution. Please describe in the comment section below.

Comments

McKinleyville Community Services District will seek an annual reimbursement for pay-go costs.

Employer Certification

As the employer, we understand that we must obtain an OPEB valuation or AMM report on at least
a biennial basis.

We understand that we will be asked to provide accounting information to CalPERS as required to
facilitate CalPERS compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements
for Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post-Employment Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans
(OPEB Standards) reporting requirements and we agree to make any information requested
available to CalPERS on a timely basis.

We understand that CalPERS will provide us the Schedule of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position by
Employer, which can be used to prepare our GASB OPEB Standards reporting. CalPERS will report
information pertaining to GASB OPEB Standards for Agent OPEB Plans.

McKinleyville Community Services District

Employer Name

06/30/2021

Valuation Date

Board President

Name Title

Signature Date

Rev. 10/1/2022
Page 3 of 6



CERBT Valuation Packet
Summary of Actuarial Information (1 of 2)

McKinleyville Community Services District

Employer Name

06/30/2021

Valuation Date

Actuarial Firm Contact Information

Evi Laksana Govinvest
Actuary/Contact Name Actuarial Firm
evi@govinvest.com (424) 877-2393
Email Phone Number

Person Completing this Form

Nicole Alvarado McKinleyville CSD
Contact Name Organization
nalvarado@mckinleyvillecsd.com (707) 839-3251
Email Phone Number

If using a GASB 75 accounting valuation or AMM report, complete sections |, Il, IV, and V. If using a
funding valuation, complete sections I, lll, IV, and V. If using a blended valuation, complete all
sections, as applicable.

Section I: Actuarial Data

1. Valuation type (Accounting, Funding, or both) Accounting

2. Valuation frequency (Annual or Biennial) Annual

3. Total Present Value of Future Benefits (PVFB) $12,408,602.00
06/30/2022

i. Date PVFB was calculated as of

Section Il: GASB 75 Accounting Valuation or AMM (complete if using a GASB 75 accounting valuation or AMM)

4. Measurement Date 06/30/2023
5. Total OPEB Liability (TOL) $6,942,623.00
6. Fiduciary Net Position (FNP) at Measurement Date $0.00
7. Net OPEB Liability (TOL-FNP) $6,942,623.00
8. This report provides financial reporting data for the following period:
Fiscal Year-End for your GASB 75 reporting 06/30/2022
MM/DD/YYYY

Rev. 10/1/2022
Page 4 of 6



CERBT Valuation Packet

Summary of Actuarial Information (2 of 2)

Section lll: Funding Valuation (complete if using a funding valuation)
9. Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL)

10. Actuarial Value of Assets (AVA)

11. Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL-AVA)

Section IV: Demographic Data (as of valuation date)

12. Number of active plan members

13. Number of inactive plan members currently receiving benefit payments

14. Number of inactive plan members entitled to

but not yet receiving benefit payments

Section V: Benefit Payment Data

Year ending date
of projected
benefit payments

(MM/DD/YYYY)
202

Year 1 06/30/2023

06/30/2024
Year 2 /30/
Year 3 06/30/2025
Year 4 06/30/2026
Comments

Projected employer
paid retiree premium
payments
(Do not include implicit
rate subsidy)

$159,049.00
$ 149,334.00
$ 140,606.00
$126,478.00

24

Projected implicit rate
subsidy payments

$26,674.00

S 44,652.00

$ 65,108.00

$89,615.00

Rev. 10/1/2022
Page 5 of 6



CERBT Valuation Packet
Certification of Actuarial Information (1 of 1)

As Actuary of the plan, | certify that the Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) actuarial
valuation upon which the enclosed summary of actuarial information is based meets the
following criteria:

e The valuation has been prepared and signed by a Fellow or Associate of the Society of
Actuaries, or an Enrolled Actuary of the Joint Board for the Enrollment of Actuaries, and
a Member of the American Academy of Actuaries.!

e The valuation has been prepared in accordance with the Actuarial Standards of Practice.

e [f the valuation is an accounting valuation, then it has been prepared in accordance with
the requirements set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statements related to OPEB reporting.

e [f employer assets to pre-fund other post-employment benefits are invested in an
irrevocable OPEB trust other than the CERBT, the liabilities associated with
those assets are not included in the summary of actuarial information.

| further certify that the discount rate is consistent with the anticipated level of funding
pursuant to the relevant sections in GASB and ASOP, and the employer’s certification.

McKinleyville Community Services District
Employer Name

06/30/2022

Valuation Date

Printed Name of Actuary and Designation

Signature Date

LIn cases where the actuary performing the work does not meet these criteria, the valuation may be acceptable
if the person has equivalent qualifications that are acceptable to the CalPERS Board. Please provide the
qualifications of the actuary performing the valuation.

Rev. 10/1/2022
98
Page 6 of 6



CERBT Valuation Packet
Instructions and Considerations

Certification of Funding Policy

Your agency may want to consider the following points when preparing a Funding Policy:
e Will OPEB liabilities increase or decrease over time?
e When will the OPEB costs reach their peak?
e Funding status goals.
e How much do unfunded liabilities matter?
e How is your agency measuring performance?

CERBT Asset Allocation Strategy Selection
Your CERBT assets will be invested using the asset allocation strategy checked upon your selection. Each
strategy has a different assumed long-term expected rate of return and risk profile.

The following table shows the expected time-weighted compound return for the 1-5 year period, 6-20
year period, the long-term expected rate of return, and the expected volatility (standard deviation) for
each strategy. Please note the CERBT fund is intended to be a long-term investment vehicle.

CERBT Asset Expected Expected Long-Term Expec.t.ed
. Compound Compound Expected Rate Volatility
Allocation
Strate Return Return of Return (Standard
&Y (1-5 Years) (6-20 Years) (1-20 Years) Deviation)
Strategy 1 5.1% 6.3% 6.0% 12.1%
Strategy 2 4.2% 5.9% 5.5% 9.9%
Strategy 3 3.5% 5.5% 5.0% 8.4%

Funding Method

e If your agency’s intent is to fund based on an ADC, indicate the ADC percentage funding as
well as the ADC amount(s).

e If your contributions are not tied specifically to the ADC, then indicate how you expect to
contribute. For example, if you intend to make unreimbursed pay-go payments plus a fixed
dollar amount to the trust, then describe this in the comments space provided.

e Optional: If using a funding valuation, please identify the periods to which your entity will use the
renewal valuation report for funding purposes.

Contribution and Reimbursement Method

Here we ask you to indicate how you expect to make contributions to, and seek reimbursement from, the
trust. All contributions are voluntary and never required.

Rev. 10/1/2022
Page 1 of 2



Employer Certification
Please certify as the employer you understand you must obtain a renewal valuation on at least a biennial

basis.

Summary of Actuarial Information

This form may be completed by your actuary or you and is a summary of data from your actuarial
valuation. If using a GASB 75 accounting valuation or AMM report, complete sections |, II, IV, and V. If using a
funding valuation, complete sections |, Ill, IV, and V. If using a blended valuation, complete all sections, as
applicable.

If certain elements in this form are not found in the actuarial valuation report itself (such as PVFB in

section | or projected benefit payment data in section V), please work with your consulting actuary to
obtain this data. CERBT staff are available to assist if needed.

Certification of Actuarial Information

This form needs to be signed by your consulting actuary.

Rev. 10/1/2022
Page 2 of 2



Item E. 2 Attachment 4

McKinleyville Community
Services District

GASB 75 Disclosures for Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022
Based on OPEB Valuation as of June 30, 2021

CONTACT

Evi Laksana, ASA, MAAA
evi@govinvest.com
(424) 877-2393

Gov S(
The Financial Forecasting Authority
Version 1.0 (

101



Table of Contents

ACtUATIAl CrTifICATION ... ittt ettt s e st e st e st e s bt e st e s b e s st e st e s b e e st e e st e sase s st esanesasesentesssessaenne 1
Section 1: EXECUNIVE SUMIMIAIY .c...uiiiiiiieeeee ettt ettt e e e et et e st e et e et e s et e s mee e e st e s e st e s neeeeaseesenneesenenesaneas 3
SeCtion 2: FINANCIAl DiSCIOSUIES ...c.uiiiiiiiieiieeieeteetee ettt ettt s bt et e st s st e s st e st e s bt e s st e esbe s st esssesssesstesssesasesseesnsesaseenns 6
Section 3: Projected Benefit PAYMENTS ....c..oouiiiiieeeeteteee ettt s st et e st e s st e s st e st e sse e s st e ssessseesseesssesnaenne 12
Section 4: SUDSTANTIVE PIAN ProViSIONS ....cc.iiuiiiiiiiieieeieetteteeteestee sttt s e e st este st e e st e st e s st esstessaesseessnesasesseesneesnsesneenns 14
Section 5: Actuarial Methods and ASSUMPTIONS ..c...ciuiiriiiiiiieeieeetert ettt sttt e st s st e st e sabesbeesaeesasessseesatessessaenne 16
Section 6: PArfiCiPAnt SUMIMIAIY ... ittt ettt ee e st e et e e s bte e e st e s st e e e see e s st e s e st eseseeessaeeenseeseneaenane 22
Appendix - SAMPIE DECrEemMENT RATES ......oiuiiiieiieeeteeeeteete ettt ettt ettt e sat e s bt et e st e s be e st e s beseaeesabesasessstesssesanes 25
APPENAIX = GIOSSATY ..ttt ettt et e e et e et e st e e st e s st e s b e e beesatesabee s st esstesase e st essbesaseesstesasessseesssesaseesstenssesanes 32
102

\ 4

The Financial Fe

ol

orecasting Authority



Actuarial Certification

Ms. Nicole Alvarado

McKinleyville Community Services District
1656 Sutter Road

McKinleyville, CA 95519

Govinvest has been engaged by McKinleyville Community Services District to complete an actuarial valuation of the McKinleyville Community
Services District OPEB Plan as of June 30, 2021 which will be used as the basis of the financial accounting disclosure for fiscal year ending
6/30/2022 in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75 (Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions).

The purpose of this report is o provide the District with the required information needed for financial statement disclosure purposes. The use of
this report for any other purpose may not be appropriate. The content of this report may not be modified, reproduced, or provided to third
parties, either in whole or in part, without our permission. Govinvest is not responsible for usage, inference, or misinterpretation of this report by
third parties.

Results presented in this report are based on the census data, substantive plan provisions, and healthcare cost information provided by the
District and/or their benefit consultants. All information provided has been reviewed for reasonableness and clarifications or corrections have
been requested where appropriate. We have not audited the information at the source, and therefore, do not accept responsibility for the
accuracy or completeness of the data on which the information is based. Assumptions made related to missing data have been identified in this
report. We are satisfied that the information provided is suitable and sufficient for the purpose of the measurement.

The valuation results were prepared using leased actuarial modeling software that produces results consistent with the purpose of this valuation
and meet applicable regulatory requirements. The vendor is responsible for the development, maintenance, and improvement of these models.
The models include comprehensive technical documentations that outline how the calculations are performed along with sample life outputs
that allow the users to confirm with high degree of accuracy how the programmed benefit is applied to an individual with the proposed
decrements and other assumptions. The actuarial team loads the participant data, programs the benefit provisions and proposed assumptions
into the model and review sample life outputs and results under the supervision of credentialed actuaries who are proficient users of the software.
We are not aware of any material limitations in the model nor any material inconsistencies in the assumptions used within the model.

. G oV 2ST
The Financial Fe

orecasting Authority

103 \



The discount rate, other economic, and demographic assumptions have been selected by the District with our recommendations and
concurrence. We believe each assumption is reasonable based on its own merits and in combination represent reasonable expected experience
of the Plan. All calculations have been completed in accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and practices.

Future actuarial measurements may differ significantly from current measurements due to factors such as actual plan experience that differs
from that anticipated by the economic and demographic assumptions as well as changes in future assumptions, substantive plan provisions,
and/or applicable law. We have not analyzed the potential range of such differences due to the limited scope of our engagement. To our
knowledge, there are no significant events prior to the current year’'s Measurement Date or as of the date of this report that may materially
affect the results presented herein.

The undersigned meets the General Qualification Standards of the American Academy of Actuaries for the purpose of issuing Statement of
Actuarial Opinion in the United States. Neither Govinvest nor any of its employees have any relationship with the Plan Sponsor that could impair
or appear to impair the objectivity of this report.

Evi Laksana, ASA, MAAA
August 3, 2022

\ G oV C ol
104 ' The Financial Forecasting Autharity



Section 1: Executive Summary

McKinleyville Community Services District (the “District”) sponsors a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan that provides medical and
prescription drug coverage at retirement. Employees may continue health coverage with the District at retirement for themselves, their spouses,
and dependents for life once they meet certain eligibility requirements and as long as required contributions are made.

The results presented in this report are based on the June 30, 2021 valuation with liabilities and assets measured as of June 30, 2022, for use in
the District’s accrual-based financial statement for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. The June 30, 2021 valuation uses census data of (a) active
employees who will be eligible to receive benefits in the future and (b) existing retirees who are currently receiving these benefits as of June 30,
2021, as well as healthcare cost information effective on January 1, 2021 provided by the Plan Sponsor and/or their healthcare consultant.

The actuarial valuation is based on substantive plan provisions outlined in Section 4. The valuation requires assumptions which are listed in
Section 5. Results from the June 30, 2021 valuation may be rolled-forward for use in the Plan Sponsor’s accrual-based financial statement
disclosure for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 assuming that there are no material changes to the substantive plan provisions and/or the
covered population.

The Plan Sponsor’s next full valuation is as of June 30, 2023 with liabilities and assets measured as of June 30, 2024 for reporting in the Plan
Sponsor’s accrual-based financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.

Changes Since Prior Valuation
The District’s Net OPEB Liability has decreased from $10,010,085 as of June 30, 2021 to $6,942,623 as of June 30, 2022, which is attributable to a

combination of the following factors:

1. Slightly less favorable actual demographic experience that is offset by much lower healthcare cost increase than expected for a net
liability decrease.
2. Assumption changes as outlined in Section 5 that produces a net liability increase.

Gov ST
( The Financial Farecasting Authority



Executive Summary

McKinleyville Community Services District

Summary of Results

Presented below is the summary of results for the current fiscal year compared to the prior fiscal year.

Fiscal Years
Valuation Date (VD)
Measurement Date (MD)

Membership Data as of Valuation Date
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits'
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits
Active employees
Total membership

Discount Rate at Measurement Date
Municipal Bond Index Rate
Long-term Expected Asset Return
Year in which Fiduciary Net Position is projected to be depleted
Single Equivalent Discount Rate (SEDR)

Net OPEB Liability as of Measurement Date
Total OPEB Liability (TOL)
Fiduciary Net Position (FNP)
Net OPEB Liability (NOL = TOL - FNP)
Funded Status (FNP / TOL)

OPEB Expense / (Income) by Fiscal Year
Balance of unamortized Deferred Inflows at MD
Balance of unamortized Deferred Outflows at MD

2021/22
June 30, 2021
June 30, 2022

24

32

3.69%
N/A
N/A

3.69%

6,942,623
(0)

2020/21
June 30, 2019
June 30, 2021

1

24

o

6,942,623
0.0%

467,572
(5,972,970)
2,872,637

35

1.92%
N/A
N/A

1.92%

10,010,085
(0)

o

10,010,085
0.0%

766,980
(2,115,327)
2,375,914

! Prior year inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits enrollment include six retirees/beneficiaries and five spouses. Current years inactive employees or beneficiaries currently

receiving benefits enrollment includes eight retirees/beneficiaries only and exclude spouses covered under the plan to comply with GASB requirements on enrollment reporting.

Page 4

FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation)

106

@ Financial Forecasting Authority

@A Govlnvest
s



Executive Summary McKinleyville Community Services District

Below is a breakdown of the OPEB liability allocated to past and current service as of the Measurement Date compared to the prior Measurement
Date. The liability below includes explicit subsidy (if any) and implicit subsidy. Refer to the Substantive Plan Provisions section for complete
information on the District benefit provisions.

Present Value of Future Benefits (PVFB) As of June 30, 2022 ‘ As of June 30, 2021
Active employees $ 10,191,060 $ 16,866,289
Retired employees 2,217,542 1,908,371
Total PVFB $ 12,408,602 $ 18,774,660
Total OPEB Liability (TOL) As of June 30, 2022 ‘ As of June 30, 2021
Active employees $ 4,725,081 $ 8,101,714
Retired employees 2,217,542 1,908,371
Total TOL $ 6,942,623 $ 10,010,085
AsofjJune 30,2022  As of June 30, 2021
Discount Rate 3.69% 1.92%
OPEB Liability Breakdown ($) OPEB Liability Breakdown (%)
, $20 100%
c
2
E s15 80%
= Active future service .
(PVENC) 60%
810
B Active past service (TOL) 40%
$8.1
$5 $4.7 Retirees 20%
5 $2.2 $1.9 o e 10.2%
As of 6/30/2022 As of 6/30/2021 As of 6/30/2022 As of 6/30/2021
(3.69% DR) (1.92% DR) (3.69% DR) (1.92% DR)

Page 5 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) A
age une u aluarion v govlnvest

1 07 @ Financial Forecasting Authority




Section 2: Financial Disclosures

This section provides the necessary accounting disclosures for the District’s financial reports as shown in the following tables:

Table 1:  Plan Demographics

Table 2: Brief Summary of Assumptions

Table 3: OPEB Expense
Table 4: Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity (Discount Rate)

Summary of Membership and Assumptions

The table below shows the number of employees
covered by the benefit terms as of June 30, 2021.

Table 5: Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity (Healthcare Trend Rates)

Table 6: Historical Deferred Inflows and Outflows

Table 7: Unamortized Balance of Deferred Inflows and Outflows

Table 8: Schedule of Future Amortization of Deferred Inflows and Outflows

The Total OPEB Liability (TOL) as of June 30, 2022 was determined using the

following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement,

unless otherwise specified. For a complete list of assumptions, refer to Section 5.

receiving benefits
Active employees

Inactive employees or beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet

24

Total membership

32

2 Actual premium increases from 2021 to 2022 vary by plan as shown in the table below.

Inflation

Payroll growth

Discount rate

Healthcare trend
rates

2.50%

2.80% wage inflation plus seniority, merit, and promotion
salary increases based on CalPERS Experience Study and
Review of Actuarial Assumptions published in November
2021

3.69%

Based on 2021 Getzen model that reflects actual premium
increases from 2021 to 20222, followed by 5.75% (non-
Medicare) / 5.40% (Medicare), gradually decreasing to
an ultimate rate of 4.04% in 2075

Non-Medicare Medicare
Advantage PPO CalCare HMO CDHP Advantage PPO CalCare HMO CDHP
-5.00% 2.20% -5.00% -18.50% -37.10% -10.40%

\ G oV C ol
' The Financial Forecasting Authority



Financial Disclosures

McKinleyville Community Services District

OPEB Expense

The table below shows a comparison of the OPEB Expense recognized by the District for the current and prior fiscal years.

Fiscal Years
SEDR as of beginning of year
SEDR as of end of year

Service Cost

Interest on TOL and Service Cost

Changes of benefit terms

Projected earnings on OPEB Plan investments

OPEB Plan administrative expenses net of all revenues

Current period recognition of Deferred Inflows /

Outflows of Resources
Difference between expected and actual
experience in the TOL
Changes of assumptions or other inputs

Net difference between the projected and actual

earnings on OPEB Plan investments
Other
Total current period recognition

OPEB Expense

Table 3 - OPEB Expense

2021/22
1.92%
3.69%

618,445
202,404
0

0

0

(713,661)
360,384
0
0

2020/21
2.45%
1.92%

$ 526,898
221,939

0

0

0

) (255,170)
273,313

0

0

(353,277)

467,572

$ 18,143

$ 766,980

Page 7

FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation)

109

%

G

ovinvest

@ Financial Forecasting Authority



Financial Disclosures

McKinleyville Community Services District

Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability

Fiscal Year Ending June 30

Measurement Period Ending June 30

Total OPEB Liability (TOL)

Service Cost S 618,445 S 526,898 S 482,408 S 493,346 S 478,977
Interest on TOL and Service Cost 202,404 221,939 320,814 288,256 253,523
Changes of benefit terms 0 0 0 0 0
Difference b(.a'rween expected & (4,584,910) 11520 (2,563,217) 0 0
actual experience

Changes of assumptions or other

. 870,713 794,185 2,063,476 (102,116) 0
inputs

Benefit payments (174,114) (152,581) (150,475) (138,067) (124,622)
Net change in TOL $ (3,067,462) (] 1,401,961 S 153,006 S 541,419 S 607,878
TOL - beginning $ 10,010,085 $ 8,608,124 $ 8,455,118 $ 7,913,699 $ 7,305,821
TOL - ending $ 6,942,623 $ 10,010,085 $ 8,608,124 $ 8,455,118 $ 7,913,699
Plan Fiduciary Net Position (FNP)

Contributions — employer $ 174,114 $ 152,581 $ 150,476 $ 138,067 $ 124,622
Contributions — employees 0 0 0 0 0
Benefit payments (174,114) (152,581) (150,476) (138,067) (124,622)
Net investment income 0 0 0 0 0
Trust administrative expenses 0 0 0 0 0
Net change in Plan FNP S 0 (] 0 (] 0 S 0 S 0
FNP - beginning S 0 (] 0 (] 0 S 0 S 0
FNP - ending S 0 (] 0 (] 0 S 0 S 0
Net OPEB Liability — ending $ 6,942,623 $ 10,010,085 $ 8,608,124 $ 8,455,118 $ 7,913,699
FNP as % of TOL 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Covered employee payroll - $ 1,548,839 $ 1,389,995 $ 1,362,167 $ 1,511,378 $ 1,470,927
measurement period

NOL as % of covered payroll 448.2% 720.2% 631.9% 559.4% 538.0%

3 Based on explicit benefit payment of $140,756 and estimated implicit subsidy payment of $33,358.
Page 8 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation)

110

The Financial Forecasting Authority

<A
& Govlnvest




Financial Disclosures McKinleyville Community Services District

Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity

The following presents the Net OPEB Liability of the District, as well as what the District’s Net OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated using
a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current discount rate as of June 30, 2022.

Table 4 - Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity (Discount Rate)
1% Increase

(4.69%)
5,960,444

Discount Rate
(3.69%)
6,942,623 )

1% Decrease

(2.69%)
8,172,639 $

Net OPEB Liability / (Asset) $

The following presents the Net OPEB Liability of the District, as well as what the District’s Net OPEB Liability would be if it were calculated using
healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates as of
June 30, 2022.

Table 5 - Net OPEB Liability Sensitivity (Healthcare Trend Rates)

1% Increase
8,606,554

1% Decrease
5,686,642 )

Healthcare Trend Rates®
6,942,623 S

Net OPEB Liability / (Asset) $

* Comparison of Baseline, 1% Decease, and 1% Increase in healthcare trend rates assumptions are as shown below:

Periods

1% Decrease

Baseline

1% Increase

Non-Medicare

The following initial year increases followed by 4.75%
decreasing to 3.04% ultimate rate:

e  Advantage PPO/CDHP: -6.0%

e CalCare HMO: 1.2%

The following initial year increases followed by 5.75%
decreasing to 4.04% ultimate rate:

e  Advantage PPO/CDHP: -5.0%

e  CalCare HMO: 2.2%

The following initial year increases followed by 6.75%
decreasing to 5.04% ultimate rate:

e  Advantage PPO/CDHP: -4.0%

e  CalCare HMO: 3.2%

The following initial year increases followed by 4.40%
decreasing to 3.04% ultimate rate:

The following initial year increases followed by 5.40%
decreasing to 4.04% ultimate rate:

The following initial year increases followed by 6.40%
decreasing to 5.04% ultimate rate:

Medicare e  Advantage PPO: -19.5% e  Advantage PPO: -18.5% e  Advantage PPO: -17.5%
e CalCare HMO: -38.1% e  CalCare HMO: -37.1% e  CalCare HMO: -36.1%
. CDHP: -11.4% . CDHP: -10.4% . CDHP: -9.4%

Page 9 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation)

11

The Financial Forecasting Authority

<A
o Govlnvest




Financial Disclosures McKinleyville Community Services District

Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to OPEB

The tables below show changes in the Net OPEB Liability that have not been included in the OPEB expense for the following items:

1. Differences between expected and actual experience of the OPEB plan
2. Changes in assumptions
3. Differences between projected and actual earnings on the OPEB plan investments

The initial amortization base for the first two items above are amortized linearly over the average expected remaining service lives of active and
inactive employees. The difference between projected and actual earnings on the OPEB plan investments is amortized linearly over five years.

Table 6 - Historical Deferred Inflows and Outflows

Differences between expected and actual experience

. Initial Recognized in OPEB .
Measurement Fiscal Year o e o Unamortized Balance
. . . Initial Balance Amortization  Annual Recognition Expense through
Period Ending Ending ! as of June 30, 2022
Period June 30, 2022
6/30/2018 6/30/2018 $ 0 N/7A $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
6/30/2019 6/30/2019 $ 0 N/A $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
6/30/2020 | 6/30/2020 $  (2,563,217) 10.00 $  (256,322) $  (768,966) $ (1,794,251)
6/30/2021 6/30/2021 $ 11,520 10.00 $ 1,152 $ 2,304 $ 9,216
6/30/2022 6/30/2022 $  (4,584,910) 10.00 $ (458,491 $ (458,491 $ (4,126,419)

Changes in assumptions or other inputs

Initial Recognized in OPEB

Measurement Fiscal Year o o o Unamortized Balance
. . . Initial Balance Amortization  Annual Recognition Expense through
Period Ending Ending ! as of June 30, 2022
Period June 30, 2022

6/30/2018 6/30/2018 $ 0 N/A $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
6/30/2019 6/30/2019 $ (102,116) 8.20 $ (12,454) $ (49,816) $ (52,300)
6/30/2020 6/30/2020 $ 2,063,476 10.00 $ 206,348 $ 619,044 $ 1,444,432
6/30/2021 6/30/2021 $ 794,185 10.00 $ 79,419 $ 158,838 $ 635,347
6/30/2022 6/30/2022 $ 870,713 10.00 $ 87,071 $ 87,071 $ 783,642

Page 10 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) A Govlnvest

1 1 2 v The Financial Forecasting Authority




Financial Disclosures McKinleyville Community Services District

Differences between projected and actual earnings on OPEB plan investments

. Initial Recognized in OPEB .
Measurement Fiscal Year o D, o Unamortized Balance
Initial Balance Amortization  Annual Recognition Expense through
as of June 30, 2022

Period June 30, 2022

Period Ending Ending

6/30/2018 6/30/2018 S 0 5.00 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
6/30/2019 6/30/2019 $ 0 5.00 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
6/30/2020 6/30/2020 $ 0 5.00 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
6/30/2021 6/30/2021 $ 0 5.00 $ 0 $ 0 0
6/30/2022 6/30/2022 $ 0 5.00 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
The table below shows the unamortized balance of Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Schedule of future annual amortizations of
Resources as of June 30, 2022 for financial statement disclosure for the fiscal year ending Deferred Inflows and Outflows that will be
June 30, 2022. recognized in future OPEB expense is as

shown below.

Table 7 - Unamortized Balance of Deferred Inflows and Outflows

Table 8 - Schedule of Future Deferred Inflows and
Deferred Outflows  Deferred Inflows of Outflows Amortization

of Resources Resources

: Measurement
Differences l?e’rween expected and S 9.216 $ (5.920,670) S eriod Endin T G
actual experience )
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 2,863,421 (52,300) 2023 S (353,277)
Net difference between projected and 2024 $ (353,277)
actual earnings on OPEB plan 0 0 2025 $ (353,277)
investments 2026 $ (353,277)
Employer contribution subsequent to the 0 0 2027 $ (343,307)
Measurement Date Thereafter S (1,343,918)
Total $ 2,872,637 $ (5,972,970)

Page 11 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) ‘A I GOV' Nnvest

11 3 The Financial Forecasting Authority




Projected Benefit Payments McKinleyville Community Services District

Section 3: Projected Benefit Payments

The below table shows the projected benefit payments for the next 30 years for a closed group of participants (both active employees and
existing retirees) who are included in the census data as of the June 30, 2021. This exhibit is provided for informational purposes only and is not
a required disclosure under GASB 75. Projected benefit payments below include both explicit (if any) and implicit subsidies (as applicable).

Future Current

Future Current Future Current

FYE

Retirees Retirees Retirees Retirees Retirees Retirees

FYE

2023 |S 26,674 |S 159,049 | S 185,723 2033 | S 234,141 |S 119,085 |$ 353,226 2043 | S 551,386 | S 88,545 |S 639,931
2024 | S 44,652 | S 149,334 | S 193,986 2034 | $ 279,103 | $ 93,491 S 372,594 2044 | S 601,280 |$S 86,441 | S 687,721
2025 | $ 65,108 | § 140,606 | S 205,714 2035 |$ 311,986 | S 94,355 | S 406,341 2045 | S 657,361 $ 84,182 | S 741,543
2026 | S 89,615 |S 126,478 | S 216,093 2036 | S 378,680 |S 94,887 | S 473,567 2046 | S 626,036 | S 81,804 | S 707,840
2027 | S 101,113 | S 134,249 | S 235,362 2037 | S 419,301 |$ 95,075|S 514,376 2047 | S 706,348 | S 79,304 |S 785,652
2028 | $ 115,282 | S 142,035 | S 257,317 2038 | $ 424,356 | S 94,892 | $ 519,248 2048 |S 730,111 |$ 76,687 | S 806,798
2029 |$ 150,727 | S 150,133 | $ 300,860 2039 | $ 499,535 | $ 94,316 | $ 593,851 2049 | S 764,681|S 73,937 |S 838,618
2030 | S 165,783 | $ 130,402 | S 296,185 2040 | $ 516,140 | S 93,358 | $ 609,498 2050 [ S 809,118 | $ 71,019 [ S 880,137
2031 |$ 171,574 | S 136,081 | $ 307,655 2041 | $ 488,215 $ 92,055 |$ 580,270 2051 | $ 842,854 |S 67,900 |$ 910,754
2032 |$ 187,703 | S 141,283 | § 328,986 2042 | $ 562,450 | S 90,438 | $ 652,888 2052 |$ 847,391|S 64,598 | S 911,989
Projected Benefit Payments

g $1.0

£ $0.8

=

$0.6

$0.4

$“——--ll.llllll

50.0 | N1 N1 O NI NI O O O S S el S I I S S R S

2023 2025 2027 2029 2031 2033 2035 2037 2039 2041 2043 2045 2047 2049 2051

Current Retirees M Future Retirees

Page 12 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) A‘, I- GOVl nvest

114 The Financial Forecasting Authority




Projected Benefit Payments McKinleyville Community Services District

The following table splits the projected benefit payments for the next 30 years between the explicit and implicit subsidies for a closed group of
participants (both active employees and existing retirees) who are included in the census data as of June 30, 2021.

FYE Explicit Implicit Total FYE Explicit Implicit Total ‘ FYE ‘ Explicit Implicit Total
2023 | S 144,621 S 41,02 | $ 185,723 2033 | $ 294,072 | S 59,154 | § 353,226 2043 | S 547,061|S 92,870 | S 639,931
2024 | S 153,405 |$S 40,581 |S 193,986 2034 | S 312,217 |S 60,377 | S 372,594 2044 | S 585425|S 102,296 | S 687,721
2025 | S 162,072 | S 43,642 |S 205,714 2035 | $ 337,356 |S 68,985 |S 406,341 2045 | S 628,894 | S 112,649 | S 741,543
2026 | $ 172,059 | $ 44,034 | S 216,093 2036 | S 380,420 | S 93,147 | S 473,567 2046 | S 627,159 | $ 80,681 | S 707,840
2027 | S 186,860 | S 48,502 | S 235,362 2037 | S 410,447 |$ 103,929 | S 514,376 2047 | S 679,348 | S 106,304 | S 785,652
2028 | $ 206,307 | S 51,010 | § 257,317 2038 | § 425,050 | S 94,198 | S 519,248 2048 | S 705,335 |S 101,463 | S 806,798
2029 | S 235076 |S 65784 |S 300,860 2039 | S 471,808 | S 122,043 | S 593,851 2049 | S 730,142 | S 108,476 | S 838,618
2030 | $ 239,251 |$ 56,934 |$ 296,185 2040 | S 490,372 |$ 119,126 | S 609,498 2050 | S 761,564 |8 118,573 | S 880,137
2031 | $ 252,678 |S 54,977 |$ 307,655 2041 | S 484,827 |S 95,443 |S 580,270 2051 | $ 786,288 | S 124,466 | $ 910,754
2032 | $ 273,092 |$ 55894 |$ 328,986 2042 | S 534,327 |S 118,561 | S 652,888 2052 |$§ 795,615|S 116,374 | S 911,989
Projected Benefit Payments (Explicit/Implicit)

g $1.0
= s0.8
b3

$0.6

$0.4

- T

2023 2025 2027 2029 2031 2033 2035 2037 2039 2041 2043 2045 2047 2049 2051

M Explicit ™ Implicit

Page 13 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) A‘, I- GOVl nvest

The Financial Forecasting Authority




Substantive Plan Provisions McKinleyville Community Services District

Section 4: Substantive Plan Provisions

Changes Since Prior Valuation
There are no plan provision changes since the last full valuation.

Eligibility Employees are eligible for lifetime retiree health benefits once they retire within 120 days from date of separation
and the retiree must be receiving benefits from California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS). The
earliest service retirement eligibility requirements under CalPERS are as follows:

Membership Date Requirements

Before 1/1/2013 Age 50 with 5 years of CalPERS service®
On/after 1/1/2013 Age 52 with 5 years of CalPERS service®

CalPERS eligibility requirements for disability benefits are as follows:
e Ordinary Disability: five years of service
e Line of Duty Disability: no age or service requirement

Spouse Benefits Employees are allowed to elect spousal coverage at retirement. Retiree medical coverage continues to surviving
spouses upon death of retirees as long as the required contributions are made and the retiree elects continuation
of retirement benefit option to surviving spouse. Upon death of active employees who are eligible to retire, medical
benefits also continue to surviving spouse.

Ancillary Benefits There is no District-subsidized dental, vision, or life insurance benefit at retirement.

Employer Subsidy Employees hired before January 1, 2017 receive 100% district-paid coverage. Employees hired on or after January 1,
2017 receive 100% of the PPO rate and the District’s share of family coverage is subject to a cap. The District’s
contribution toward family coverage will not increase by more than 5%, or the actual percentage increase in the
cost of dependent coverage. As of January 1, 2021 and 2022, District subsidy for family coverage equals the premium
rates for Family coverage.

5 Note that service includes service across all CalPERS employers and with other retirement systems with which CalPERS has reciprocity agreements.

Page 14 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) - I-\ GOV | vdSt

11 6 The Financial Forecasting Authority



Substantive Plan Provisions McKinleyville Community Services District

Retiree Contributions Retirees are required to contribute the portion of premium rates not covered by the Employer Subsidy.

Premium Rates The monthly premium rates for ACWA/JPIA Other Northern California region used in the valuation effective on
January 1, 2021 and 2022 are as shown below.

Eff. 1/1/2021 Eff. 1/1/2022

Non-Medicare Plans 2-Party 2-Party

Advantage PPO $ 832.48 | $ 1,664.96 | $  2,206.07 | $ 790.85 | $ 1,581.71 | $  2,095.76
CalCare HMO $ 112333 | $  2,246.67 | $ 2,976.84 | $ 1,147.86 | $ 2,295.72 | $ 3,041.83
CDHP $ 756.80 | $ 1,513.60 | § 2,005.52 | $ 718.96 | $ 1,437.92 | $ 1,905.24

Eff. 1/1/2021
Medicare Plans 2-Party

Advantage PPO $ 48173 | $ 963.46 | $ 1,482.88
CalCare HMO $ 623.54 | $ 1,247.08 | $ 1,913.48
CDHP $ 43794 | $ 875.88 | $ 1,348.08

Eff. 1/1/2022

Medicare Plan 2-Party

Medicare Advantage

PPO $ 392.49 | $ 78498 | $ 1,160.47

Page 15 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) ‘A I GOV' Nnvest

117 The Financial Forecasting Authority




Actuarial Methods and Assumptions McKinleyville Community Services District

Section 5: Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Changes Since Prior Valuation
The following assumptions have been updated since the prior valuation:

1. Single Equivalent Discount Rate has been updated from 1.92% as of June 30, 2021 to 3.69% as of June 30, 2022 based on changes in the
municipal bond index, which caused a decrease in the liability.

2. Payroll growth, mortality, disability, termination, and retirement rates have been updated from CalPERS Experience Study and Review of
Actuarial Assumptions published in December 2017 to the most recent study published in November 2021. The net impact of these changes
is a decrease in the liability.

3. Health care trend rates have been updated from an initial rate of 7.00% (non-Medicare) / 4.00% (Medicare) that decreases gradually to
an ultimate rate of 3.84% in 2075 to Getzen 2021 table that reflects actual premium increases from 202110 2022 shown below followed by
5.75% (non-Medicare) / 5.40% (Medicare) that decrease gradually to an ultimate rate of 4.04% in 2075. This change caused a decrease
in the liability.

a. Actual premium increases from 2021 to 2022 vary by plan as shown below:

Advantage PPO CalCare HMO
Pre-Medicare -5.00% 2.20% -5.00%
Medicare -18.50% -37.10% -10.40%

b. As the District subsidy is based on premium rates, the same trend assumption is used for retirees’ District subsidy. For spouses’
District subsidy, the trend has been adjusted so that the District subsidy for family coverage does not increase by more than 5%
annually.

4. Percentage of active employees assumed to elect spousal coverage has been increased from 85% to 100%, which caused an increase in
the liability.

Page 16 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) O\ GOV. N \/est

ial Forecasting Authority
118



Valuation Date
Measurement Date
Reporting Period

Discount Rate

Actuarial Cost Method

Payroll Growth

Mortality

Termination

Disability

Retirement

Health Plan Election

June 30, 2021

June 30, 2022

Fiscal year ending June 30, 2022

For accounting disclosure: 3.69% as of June 30, 2022 and 1.92% as of June 30, 2021

Refer to the Discussion of Discount Rate section for additional information on the discount rate setting.

Entry Age Normal Level Percentage of Pay; a method that allocates the actuarial present value of the projected
benefits of each individual on a level basis over the earnings of the individual between entry age and assumed exit
age(s).
e The portion allocated to a valuation year is called the Normal Cost.
e The portion allocated to past periods is called the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) or Total OPEB Liability
(TOL).

2.80% wage inflation plus seniority, merit, and promotion salary increases based on CalPERS Experience Study and
Review of Actuarial Assumptions published in November 2021 for Public Agency Miscellaneous members. Refer to
the Appendix for sample rates.

Based on CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions published in November 2021 for Public
Agency Miscellaneous members.

Based on CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions published in November 2021 for Public
Agency Miscellaneous members. Refer to the Appendix for sample rates.

Based on CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions published in November 2021 for Public
Agency Miscellaneous members. Refer to the Appendix for sample rates.

Based on CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions published in November 2021 for Public
Agency Miscellaneous members. Refer to the Appendix for sample rates.

Employees are assumed to elect the same health plan option they are currently enrolled in at retirement. Existing
retirees are assumed to remain in the same health plan option they are currently enrolled in for life.

. G oV 2ST
The Financial Fe

orecasting Authority

119 e



Medicare Eligibility

Participation Rate

Spousal Election

Dependent Election

Per Capita Costs

All future and existing retirees (including disabled retirees) are assumed to be eligible for Medicare at age 65.
100% of active employees are assumed to elect health coverage with the District at retirement.

Existing retirees who are currently enrolled in the District’s health plans are assumed to continue coverage until
death. Upon retiree’s death, surviving spouses are assumed to continue coverage in the District’s health plans (all
of them are assumed to receive contingent pension benefit).

For future retirees, 100% of active employees are assumed to elect spousal coverage at retirement. Husbands are
assumed fo be three years older than wives.

For existing retirees, spousal coverage and age are based on actual data.

None assumed.

The valuation projects health care costs for employees who remain enrolled in the District’s benefit plans after
retirement. In accordance with Actuarial Standards of Practice No. 6 (ASOP 6), the actuarial development of health
care costs should preferably use the health plan experience that is considered the best predictor of future claims
experience assuming it is sufficiently credible. In the absence of credible health plan experience data, the actuary
may use other methods such as premiums and normative databases to develop the per capita costs.

As medical/prescription drug costs generally vary by age, age-specific costs should be used in the development of
initial per capita costs and projection of future benefit costs, except in very limited circumstances defined in ASOP
6 Section 3.7.7(c). The development of the age-specific costs should be based on the demographics of the group
being valued and the group’s total expected claims or premiums.

Retiree healthcare costs are, on average, significantly higher than active employees and if the District charges
blended premium rates (determined using active employees and retiree claims experience) to the retirees, the
District is providing an implicit subsidy for these retirees. Under GASB 75, the implicit subsidy must be included in
the post-employment medical benefit obligation. Separate costs should be developed for Medicare-eligible
participants due to Medicare being the primary payer for these retirees, which leads to a reduction to the Plan
Sponsor’s health plan costs.

Gov ST
1 20 ( The Financial Forecasting Authority



Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

McKinleyville Community Services District

Per Capita Costs (Cont’'d)

Page 19

In developing the per capita costs, we have used ACWA/JPIA health plan premium rates effective on January 1, 2021
and aging factors and subscriber enrollments for HMO and PPO plans combined as published in the CalPERS Health
Plan (PEMHCA) Implicit Subsidy Data for Calendar 2019.

The following table shows the sample per capita costs at select ages for calendar year 2021 used in the valuation.
These costs are assumed to increase with health care trend rates.

Advantage PPO CalCare HMO CDHP
Age Male Female Male Female ‘ Male ‘ Female
40 $5,13 $7,832 $6,899 $10,569 $4,648 $7,120
45 $6,639 $8,998 $8,958 $12,142 $6,035 $8,180
50 $8,790 $10,369 $11,861 $13,991 $7,991 $9,426
55 $11,448 SN, 771 $15,448 $15,883 $10,407 $10,700
60 $14,781 $13,778 $19,945 $18,591 $13,437 $12,525
64 $17,530 $15,400 $23,654 $20,780 $15,936 $14,000

We have assumed that ACWA/JPIA health premiums for Medicare eligible retirees are based on Medicare eligible
retiree claims experience and represent the expected true cost of retiree coverage. As such, we have assumed there
is no implicit subsidy for Medicare retirees. The annual costs used on/after age 65 are as shown in the table below.
These costs are assumed to increase with health care trend rates.

Advantage PPO CalCare HMO ‘

Female Male

FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) % GOVl nvest

1 21 The Financial Forecasting Authority




Actuarial Methods and Assumptions McKinleyville Community Services District

Trend Rates Historically, health care costs have increased more rapidly than the rate of inflation. In estimating the value of retiree
health benefits, assumptions must be made on future increases in healthcare costs. The health care trend rates
assumption used in this valuation is based on the Getzen Model of Long-Run Medical Cost Trends, which was first
designed by T.E. Getzen for the Society of Actuaries (SOA) in 2007. The model is designed to make long-run
forecasts and typically used to select medical trend assumptions for retiree medical valuations to present liabilities
disclosed under the appropriate accounting standards, or to determine contributions under a funding policy. The
long-run baseline projection and input variables were developed under the guidance of the SOA Project Oversight
Group. The model is updated annually along with updated documentation and recommended input variables by
the author of the model. The baseline assumptions used in the Getzen model is as shown in the table below.

Inflation Rate 2.5%
Real GDP Per Capita Growth 1.5%
Excess Medical Cost Growth 1.1%
Health Share of GDP Resistance Point 25.0%

Year for Limiting Cost Growth to GDP Growth 2075

The output of the Getzen Model of Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model used in the valuation is as shown below.

Per Capita Costs & Premiums District Subsidy for Spouse

Non-Medicare Medicare Non-Medicare Medicare

2021 Actual* Actual* Actual* Actual*
2022 5.75% 5.40% 4.25% 4.60%
2023 5.50% 5.30% 4.49% 4.70%
2024 5.40% 5.20% 4.59% 4.80%
2025 5.36% 5.20% 4.62% 4.80%
2030 5.18% 5.18% 4.81% 4.81%
2040 5.18% 5.18% 4.80% 4.80%
2050 5.18% 5.18% 4.79% 4.80%
2060 4.83% 4.83% 4.83% 4.83%
2070 4.38% 4.38% 4.38% 4.38%
2075+ 4.04% 4.04% 4.04% 4.04%

The Financial Forecasting Authority

122

Page 20 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) A‘, I- GOVl nvest




Actuarial Methods and Assumptions McKinleyville Community Services District

Trend Rates (Cont’d) * Actual premium increases from 2021 to 2022 used in the valuation are as follows:
Advantage PPO CalCare HMO

Pre-Medicare -5.00% 2.20% -5.00%

Medicare -18.50% -37.10% -10.40%

Discussion of Discount Rates

Under GASB 75, the discount rate used in valuing OPEB liabilities as of the Measurement Date is a single rate that reflects a yield or index rate
for 20-year tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher (or equivalent quality on another rating
scale) for an unfunded plan.

For the current year’s valuation, the municipal bond index as of the prior and current Measurement Dates are as shown below:

June 30, 2021
1.92%

Index June 30, 2022

Fidelity GO AA 20 Years Municipal Index 3.69%

Page 21

FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) % GOVl nvest

1 23 The Financial Forecasting Authority




Participant Summary McKinleyville Community Services District

Section 6: Participant Summary

Active Employees

Actives with Health Coverage Single 2-Party Family Total Avg. Age Avg. Svc Total Salary

Advantage PPO 1 2 7 10 41.8 2.3 S 573,409
CalCare HMO 1 2 9 12 45.8 15.5 S 793,545
Consumer Driven Health Plan (CDHP) 1 1 2 50.0 13.3 S 181,885
Total actives with health coverage 2 5 17 24 44.5 9.8 S 1,548,839

There are no active employees who currently waive coverage with the District reported to us.

Years of Service with the District

10 - 14 15 -19 20 - 24 25-29

<25 0
25 - 29 0
30-34 1 3 1 5
35-39 1 1 2
40 - 44 1 2 1 1 2 7
45 - 49 1 1 1 1 4
50 - 54 1 1 2
55 - 59 1 1 1 1 4
60 - 64 0

65+ 0

Total 2 6 6 3 4 2 1 (] 0 (] 24

Page 22 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) ‘A I Govlnvest

124 The Financial Forecasting Authority




Participant Summary McKinleyville Community Services District

Retired Employees

Retirees with Health Coverage Single 2-Party Family Total Avg. Age Age Retirees
Advantage PPO 1 1 75.3 <50
CalCare HMO 1 6 7 67.0 50 - 54
Total retirees with health coverage 1 7 8 68.0 55 - 59 1
60 - 64 2
Enrollments above include retirees enrolled in the corresponding Medicare plans or those with split enrollment 65 - 69 2
in pre-Medicare and Medicare plans. 70 - 74 1
75-79 2
80 - 84
85 -89
90+
Total 8

Page 23 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) ‘A I Govlnvest

The Financial Forecasting Authority




Participant Summary McKinleyville Community Services District

Comparison of Participant Summary

Below is a comparison of participant summary included in the current valuation and the prior full valuation.

As of June 30, 2021 As of June 30, 2019

Number of Participants

Active employees 24 24

Retired employees® 8 6

Total 32 30
Averages

Active average age 44.5 42.5

Active average service 9.8 1.2

Inactive average age 68.0 68.7

® The enroliments above include retirees and beneficiaries only and exclude spouses and/or dependents who are covered under the District’s health plans.

Page 24 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) ‘A I- GOVl nvest

1 26 The Financial Forecasting Authority




Appendix — Sample Decrement Rates



Appendix - Sample Decrement Rates McKinleyville Community Services District

Mortality Rates

Mortality rates used in the valuation are based on the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions published in November
2021 for Public Agency Miscellaneous members. Sample pre-retirement, post-retirement non-disabled, and post-retirement disabled base
mortality rates are as shown below. These rates are projected fully generationally using 80% of MP-2020 mortality improvement scale.

Post-Retirement Post-Retirement
Non-Disabled Disabled®

Male Female Male Female Male Female
20 0.00039 | 0.00014 | 0.00039 | 0.00014 | 0.00411 | 0.00233
25 0.00033 | 0.00013 | 0.00033 | 0.00013 | 0.00336 | 0.00187
30 0.00044 | 0.00019 | 0.00044 | 0.00019 | 0.00452 | 0.00301
35 0.00058 | 0.00029 | 0.00058 | 0.00029 | 0.00603 | 0.00504
40 0.00075 | 0.00039 | 0.00075 | 0.00039 | 0.00779 | 0.00730
45 0.00093 | 0.00054 | 0.00093 | 0.00054 | 0.01120 0.01019
50 0.00134 | 0.00081 | 0.00271 0.00199 0.01727 | 0.01439
55 0.00198 | 0.00123 | 0.00391 | 0.00325 | 0.02217 | 0.01734
60 0.00287 | 0.00179 | 0.00575 | 0.00455 | 0.02681 0.01962
65 0.00403 | 0.00250 | 0.00856 | 0.00612 | 0.03332 | 0.02276
70 0.00594 | 0.00404 | 0.01340 | 0.00996 | 0.04056 | 0.02910
75 0.00933 | 0.00688 | 0.02400 | 0.01783 | 0.05465 | 0.04160
80 0.01515 0.01149 | 0.04380 | 0.03403 | 0.08044 | 0.06112
85 0.00000 | 0.00000 | 0.08274 | 0.06166 0.11695 0.09385
90 0.00000 | 0.00000 | 0.14539 0.11086 0.16770 0.14396

Attained  Pre-Retirement’

Ages

7 Pre-Retirement rates for all groups are based on the sum of non-industrial death and industrial death rates.
8 Post-Retirement Disabled rates are based on non-industrially disabled rates for Miscellaneous participants.

Page 26 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) A‘ I Govlnvest

12 8 The Financial Forecasting Authority




Appendix - Sample Decrement Rates McKinleyville Community Services District

Salary Increases Disability Rates
The seniority, merit and promotional salary increases used in the valuation The disability rates used in the valuation are based on the
are based on the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions
Assumptions published in November 2021 for Public Agency Miscellaneous published in November 2021 for Public Agency Miscellaneous
members. Sample rates are as shown below. members. Sample rates are as shown below.
Miscellaneous Attained Miscellaneous
Entry Ages Ages Male Female
Service 20 35 40 20 0.000070 | 0.000040

0 0.0764 | 0.0764 | 0.0621 | 0.0621 0.0521 0.0521 0.0521 25 0.000070 | 0.000090

2 0.0576 | 0.0576 | 0.0449 | 0.0449 | 0.0346 0.0346 0.0346 30 0.000170 | 0.000330

4 0.0435 | 0.0435 | 0.0324 | 0.0324 | 0.0229 0.0229 0.0229 35 0.000350 | 0.000650

6 0.0328 | 0.0328 | 0.0234 | 0.0234 | 0.0152 0.0152 0.0152 40 0.000910 0.001190

8 0.0248 | 0.0248 | 0.0170 | 0.0170 0.0101 0.0101 0.0101 45 0.001490 | 0.001850

10 0.0201 | 0.0201 | 0.0126 | 0.0126 0.0108 0.0108 0.0108 50 0.001540 | 0.001930

12 0.0181 | 0.0181 0.0116 | 0.0116 0.0092 0.0092 0.0092 55 0.001390 | 0.001290

14 0.0163 | 0.0163 | 0.0106 | 0.0106 | 0.0078 0.0078 0.0078 60 0.001240 | 0.000940

16 0.0147 | 0.0147 | 0.0098 | 0.0098 | 0.0066 0.0066 0.0066

18 0.0132 | 0.0132 | 0.0090 | 0.0090 | 0.0055 0.0055 0.0055

20 0.0119 | 0.0119 | 0.0083 | 0.0083 | 0.0047 0.0047 0.0047

The Financial Forecasting Authority

129

Page 27 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) ‘A I- GOVl nvest




Appendix - Sample Decrement Rates McKinleyville Community Services District

Termination Rates

This assumption is used to project terminations (voluntary and involuntary) prior fo meeting the minimum eligibility requirements to retire. The
rates are based on the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions published in November 2021 for Public Agency
Miscellaneous members. Sample rates are as shown below.

Miscellaneous (Male) Miscellaneous (Female)
Entry Ages
Service 20 30 35 40 50
0 0.1851 | 0.1769 | 0.1631 | 0.1493 0.1490 0.1487 0.1509 0.1944 | 0.1899 | 0.1824 | 0.1749 0.1731 0.1713 0.1741
2 0.1218 | 0.1125 | 0.0970 | 0.0815 | 0.0771 0.0726 0.0750 | 0.1381 | 0.1307 | 0.1183 | 0.1058 | 0.0998 0.0938 0.0941
4 0.0672 | 0.0616 | 0.0524 | 0.0431 | 0.0392 0.0352 0.0366 | 0.0801 | 0.0752 | 0.0670 | 0.0587 | 0.0523 | 0.0459 | 0.0457
6 0.0669 | 0.0641 | 0.0575 | 0.0509 | 0.0453 | 0.0397 | 0.0383 | 0.0869 | 0.0847 | 0.0757 | 0.0666 | 0.0580 | 0.0494 | 0.0464
8 0.0470 | 0.0453 | 0.0410 | 0.0366 0.03m 0.0255 0.0218 0.0613 | 0.0601 | 0.0545 | 0.0488 | 0.0394 0.0299 0.0294
10 0.0377 | 0.0366 | 0.0337 | 0.0309 | 0.0245 0.0181 0.0032 | 0.0502 | 0.0491 | 0.0446 | 0.0401 | 0.0308 0.0215 0.0046
12 0.0307 | 0.0300 | 0.0282 | 0.0263 | 0.0200 0.0137 0.0027 | 0.0423 | 0.0413 | 0.0368 | 0.0322 | 0.0244 0.0165 0.0037
14 0.0251 | 0.0246 | 0.0226 | 0.0207 | 0.0156 0.0014 0.0017 | 0.0352 | 0.0343 | 0.0292 | 0.0241 0.0181 0.0019 0.0023
16 0.0173 | 0.0173 | 0.0152 | 0.0132 0.0101 0.0000 0.0000 | 0.0235 | 0.0235 | 0.0193 | 0.0151 0.0m2 0.0000 0.0000
18 0.0159 | 0.0159 | 0.0129 | 0.0100 | 0.0067 0.0000 0.0000 | 0.0202 | 0.0202 | 0.0158 | 0.0113 0.0075 0.0000 0.0000
20 0.0141 | 0.0141 | 0.0110 | 0.0079 | 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 | 0.0175 | 0.0175 | 0.0131 | 0.0087 | 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

The Financial Forecasting Authority

130

Page 28 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) ‘A I Govlnvest




Appendix - Sample Decrement Rates McKinleyville Community Services District

Retirement Rates

Retirement rates used in the valuation are based on the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions published in November
2021 for Public Agency Miscellaneous members. Sample rates are as shown below.

Miscellaneous 2% at 55 Miscellaneous 2% at 62
Attained Ages
Service 50 60 (-1 75 50 60 (-1
5 0.0140 0.0450 | 0.0590 0.1670 0.2290 1.0000 0.0000 0.0100 0.0310 0.1080 0.1200 1.0000
10 0.0140 0.0420 | 0.0640 0.1870 0.2290 1.0000 0.0000 0.0190 0.0510 0.1410 0.1560 1.0000
15 0.0170 0.0530 0.0830 0.2100 0.2290 1.0000 0.0000 | 0.0280 0.0710 0.1730 0.1930 1.0000
20 0.0210 0.0860 0.1150 0.2620 0.2290 1.0000 0.0000 | 0.0360 0.0910 0.2060 0.2290 1.0000
25 0.0230 0.0980 0.1540 0.2880 0.2290 1.0000 0.0000 0.0610 0.1110 0.2390 0.2650 1.0000
30 0.0240 0.1230 0.1700 0.2910 0.2290 1.0000 0.0000 0.0960 0.1380 0.3000 0.3330 1.0000
35 0.0240 0.1640 0.1860 0.2910 0.2290 1.0000 0.0000 0.1520 0.1830 0.3480 0.3870 1.0000
40 0.0000 0.1840 0.1880 0.2910 0.2290 1.0000 0.0000 0.1800 0.2040 0.3600 0.4000 1.0000

Page 29 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) ‘A I Govlnvest

1 31 The Financial Forecasting Authority




Appendix - Sample Decrement Rates McKinleyville Community Services District

Decrements lllustration

The table below illustrates how decrements are applied in the valuation and how the decrements affect the liabilities valued. Assuming the Plan
Sponsor has 100 employees aged 30 as of the valuation date, only 48.6 employees will be projected to be employed at age 55 (assumed
retirement eligibility age) using the assumed illustrative termination rates.

A # Actives Annual # Terminated
s BOY Termination %  Actives / Year
30 100.0 10% 10.0
31 90.0 9% 8.1 Application of Termination Rates
32 81.9 8% 6.6 100
33 75.3 7% 5.3
34 70.1 6% 4.2
35 65.9 5% 3.3 80
36 62.6 4% 2.5
37 60.1 3% 1.8 60
38 58.3 2% 1.2
39 57.1 1% 0.6 40
40 56.5 1% 0.6
41 56.0 1% 0.6
42 55.4 1% 0.6 20
43 54.9 1% 0.5
44 543 1% 0.5 0
45 53.8 1% 0.5 30 35 40 45 50 55
46 53.2 1% 0.5
47 52.7 1% 0.5 W Actives # Cumulative Terminated Actives Retfirement Eligible Actives
48 52.2 1% 0.5
49 51.6 1% 0.5 Notes:
50 51.1 1% 0.5
51 50.6 1% 0.5 1. The annual termination percentages shown in the table are for illustrative
52 50.1 1% 0.5 purposes only, not the actual termination rates used in the valuation.
53 49.6 1% 0.5 2. For simplification, only termination decrement is assumed to be applicable while
54 49.1 1% 0.5 actively employed. Actuarial valuation typically applies pre-retirement death
55 48.6 0% 0.0 decrement during employment as well.

Page 30 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) ‘*A I- GOVI | |\/est

1 32 The Financial Forecasting Authority



Appendix - Sample Decrement Rates McKinleyville Community Services District

Decrements lllustration (Continued)

The table below illustrates the number of active employees

assumed to retire at each age based on the illustrative Application of Retirement Rates
retirement rates. 50
A # Actives Annual # Retirements /
ge :]e) ¢ Retirement % Year 40
55 48.6 10% 4.9
56 43.8 5% 2.2 30
57 41.6 5% 2.1
58 39.5 5% 2.0
59 37.5 5% 1.9 20
60 35.6 10% 3.6
61 32.1 10% 3.2 10
62 28.9 25% 7.2
63 21.7 40% 8.7 , N N O B e e N .
64 13.0 40% 5.2 55 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65
65 7.8 100% 7.8
Actives Cumulative Retirements
Notes:

1. The annual retirement percentages shown in the table are for illustrative purposes only, not the actual retirement rates used in the valuation.
2. For simplification, only retirement decrement is assumed to be applicable once the employee is retirement eligible. Actuarial valuation typically applies
pre-retirement death decrement once an employee is eligible to refire.

3. The illustration above assumes that all active employees who are projected to be employed at age 55 elect health coverage with the Plan Sponsor at
retirement.

Page 31 FYE June 30, 2022 (Full Valuation) A‘, I- GOVl nvest

The Financial Forecasting Authority




Appendix — Glossary



Active Employees - Individuals employed at the end of the reporting or measurement period, as applicable.

Actuarial Cost Method - A method to allocate the Actuarial Present Value of Future Benefits into portions attributed to past service (Total
OPEB Liability) and future service (Normal Cost).

Actuarial Present Value of Future Benefits — Projected benefit payments estimated to be payable through the OPEB plan to current
active and inactive employees as a result of their past service and their expected future service, discounted to reflect the expected effects
of time value (present value) of money and the probabilities of payment (which is contingent on events such as death, termination,
retirement, efc). In other words, this is the amount that would have been invested as of the Valuation Date so that it is sufficient to pay
for benefit payments when due.

Deferred Inflows - Gains in the Total OPEB Liability and Fiduciary Net Position (for funded plan only) due to be recognized in the future.

Deferred Outflows - Losses in the Total OPEB Liability and Fiduciary Net Position (for funded plan only) due to be recognized in the
future.

Defined Benefit OPEB — OPEB for which the benefits that the employee will receive at or after separation from employment are defined
by the benefit terms. The OPEB may be stated as (a) a specified dollar amount; (b) an amount that is calculated

Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method — A method that allocates the actuarial present value of the projected benefits of each individual on a
level basis over the earnings or service of the individual between entry age and assumed exit age(s).

e The portion allocated to a valuation year is called the Normal Cost.
e The portion allocated to past periods is called the Total OPEB Liability.
e The portion allocated to future periods after the valuation year is called the present value of future normal costs.

Fiduciary Net Position — OPEB plan assets in a secure Trust that meet the following criteria:

e Contributions from employers to the OPEB plan and earnings on those contributions are irrevocable.

e OPEB plan assets are dedicated to providing OPEB to plan members in accordance with the benefit terms.

e OPEB Plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, OPEB plan administrator, and creditors of the plan
members.

Funded Ratio — The value of the asset expressed as a percentage of the Total OPEB Liability.

Gov CSL
1 ( The Financial Forecasting Authority

n



10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates — The rates of change in per capita health claims costs over time as a result of factors such as medical
inflation, utilization of healthcare services, plan design, and technological developments.

Inactive Employees - Individuals no longer employed by an employer in the OEPB plan or the beneficiaries of those individuals. Inactive
employees also include individuals who have accumulated benefits under the terms of an OPEB plan but are not yet receiving benefit
payments and individuals currently receiving benefits.

Net OPEB Liability — The difference between the Total OPEB Liability and the Fiduciary Net Position.

Payroll Growth — An actuarial assumption on the rate of future increase in the total coverage payroll attributable to wage inflation and
productivity increase; used in the Actuarial Cost Method to determine the Total OPEB Liability.

Plan Members - Individuals covered by the terms of the OPEB plan, which would typically include employees in active service, terminated
employees who have terminated service but are not yet receiving benefit payments, and retired employees who are currently receiving
benefits.

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) — Benefits such as death benefits, life insurance, disability, and long-term care, as well as
healthcare benefits (medical, prescription drug, dental, vision, and other health-related benefits), that are paid in the period after
employment and that are provided separately from a pension plan regardless of the manner in which they are provided. OPEB does not
include termination benefits or termination payments for sick leave.

Service Cost (Normal Cost) — The portion of actuarial present value of projected benefit payments that are attributed to a 12-month
period after a valuation date as determined by the Actuarial Cost Method.

Total OPEB Liability — The portion of the actuarial present value of projected benefit payments that is attributed to past periods of
employee service as of the valuation date as determined by the Actuarial Cost Method.

Gov ST
1 6 ( The Financial Farecasting Authority



N\ QGovlnvest

The Financial Forecasting Authority

8605 Santa Monica Blvd PMB 52465, West Hollywood, CA 90069-4109
info@govinvest.com



McKinleyville Community Services District Reserves Calculations

Working Capital Reserves
Customer Deposits

Pay-Go Capital Proj (cumulative)
CompensatedAbsences

Open Subdivision Deposits
Operating Reserve FY20-21Budget*

MoneyMkt Cash Balance Available:

Restricted Reserves, Externally Held
USDA 1982 SewerBond

SRF WWMF Loan Reserve

Quimby Coastal Funds: Parks CIP-Hiller
Quimby Inland Funds: Parks CIP-All Other

Restricted Reserves: Actuarial Liabilities
2,299,309
6,942,623

Designated Reserves

Capacity Fees (see schedule)

Repair/ Replacement (see schedule)
Mainline Replacement Project
Catastrophe Reserves (curr.assessment)

*Staff Note: moved to Working Capital from Investment acct

Beginning Calculation/  Ending
Balance NetActiv/Adj Balance Bank

113,184 (12,485)| 100,700 | Umpqua

- 1,000,000 | 1,000,000 | Umpqua

284,157 338,553 | Umpqua

7,017 18,095 25,112 | Umpqua

- 665,125 665,125 | Umpqua

Total: 2,129,490
5,906,586

84,004 (0) 84,004 | Humboldt County
619,234 (7,822)] 611,412 | Humboldt County
52,420 807 53,227 | Humboldt County
157,948 5,102 163,050 | Humboldt County

2,048,599 (672,840)( 1,375,759 | CalTrust

2,961,310 - 2,961,310 | CalTrust, LAIF, Humboldt County

4,134,118 730,912 | 4,865,030 | CalTrust

1,360,499 240,000 | 1,600,499 | CalTrust

3,470,000 1,760,000 | 5,230,000 | CalTrust

1,382,777 (39,445)| 1,343,332 | CalTrust

138

Item E.2 Attachment 5

Criteria/ Notes

Amount sufficient to repay Customer Deposits
Cumulative Pay-Go CIP Total per Board
Amount sufficient to pay Vacation/Sick Leave
Amount sufficient to repay Developer Deposits
30 days District Expense per current budget
100% Funded

as of 30 June 2022

100% Funded

adjusted to US bank stmt @ month-end close
set by lender, zero interest, no adjustment
reconciled annually w/County at year-end close
reconciled annually w/County at year-end close

Currently held in CalTRUST, LAIF, County Accts
PERS 100% Funded, FY19-21 Liability Balance
OPEB 43% Funded; will increase w/ 115 Trust

100% Funded

73% of $4,838,374: CapFees placed in Wkg Capital
CIP Sinking Fund - Biosolids Project

From Board Approved 2018 Rate Study
16.6% of FY21-22 Total Expenditures



Item E.2 Attachment 6

Monday, December 12, 2022
3:30 p.m.
Audit and Finance Meeting
NOTES

Members Present: David Couch, Greg Orsini
Staff Present: Nicole Alvarado, Pat Kaspari, April Sousa

Meeting Called to Order at 3:35 p.m..

Public Comment

None

Establish Section 115 Trust for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Finance Director Nicole Alvarado reviewed the agendized item and the calculations
found within the packet.

She noted that the District is currently 100% funded in all reserve categories
except OPEB, which is at 43%.

Options and investment strategies were reviewed and discussed.

It was noted that funding at 100% was not an efficient use of funds.

Staff suggests a funding target of 60%

The difference between “Pay Go” and a 115 Section trust was discussed
Finance committee agreed to the following to be recommended to the Board

(0]

O O O O

60% funding level target

Initial Transfer of $2.5 M

Initial contribution of $200,000 “Pay Go” and $200,000 of reserves

To be reviewed annually

Investment Strategy to us — Strategy 3 — more conservative, expected
return of 5%, risk 8.4%

The committee asked to review the staff note prior to the February Board
meeting, when this item will go to the Board for approval.

Upcoming meeting items were discussed — next meeting on December 21 for
Audit review. Other upcoming meetings needed to discuss a Single Audit review
and information regarding California CLASS.

Director Orsini asked for information on the Fixed Costs during the Budget
process.

Adjourn —4:53 p.m.



Monday, January 17, 2023
4:00 p.m.

Audit and Finance Meeting
NOTES

Members Present: James Biteman, Greg Orsini
Staff Present: Nicole Alvarado, Pat Kaspari, April Sousa

Meeting Called to Order at 4:00 p.m.

Public Comment

None

Establish Section 115 Trust for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Finance Director Nicole Alvarado reviewed the agendized item and the discussion from
December 12, 2022.

It was noted that 25% of MCSD Workforce will be eligible for retirement within the
next 10 years.
Options and investment strategies were reviewed and discussed.
The benefits of setting up the Section 115 Trust were reviewed. These included
higher returned in the long term, reduced unfunded liabilities and improved
financial reporting.
It was noted that once the money is established within the Section 115 Trust,
they become restricted funds.
Currently, reserves for OPEB are at 43% funded.
The committee discussed funding strategies. Currently there is $2.9 million in the
reserves. Staff suggested setting up the Section 115 Trust with $2.5 million and
leaving $400,000 in the current reserves fund.
Finance committee agreed to the following to be recommended to the Board:

0 60% funding level target,

o Initial Transfer of $2.5 M,

o Initial contribution of “Pay Go” amount with additional funds to be

determined through the budget process annually,
o To be reviewed annually,
o0 Investment Strategy to us — Strategy 3 — more conservative, expected
return of 5%, risk 8.4%.

The committee will review the staff note prior to the February Board meeting,
when this item will go to the Board for approval.

Adjourn —5:29 p.m.



McKinleyville Community Services District
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 1, 2023 TYPE OF ITEM: INFORMATIONAL

ITEM: E.3 Review Information for the Draft Capital Improvement
Plan for the Parks & General Fund, FY2023-24

PRESENTED BY: Nicole Alvarado, Finance Director

TYPE OF ACTION: None

Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Board review and discuss the Draft Capital
Improvement Plan for the Parks and General Fund and take public comment.

Discussion:

The detailed draft of the Fiscal Year 2023-24 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for
the Parks & General Fund is attached (Attachment 1), covering the next ten
fiscal years. Budgeted expenditures which are not grant funded are anticipated to
be covered by assessments and user fees. This allows the District to take a
structured approach to future user fees as these projects are undertaken.
Funding for certain projects depends on grants awarded. Smaller projects that do
not meet the definition of capital assets will be treated as regular expenditures
and are anticipated to be paid from operating funds.

The attached Narrative (Attachment 2) provides further detail. The final
summarized CIP will be brought back to the Board for review and approval with
the complete Fiscal Year 2023-24 Budget in June 2023.

Alternatives:

Take Action

Fiscal Analysis:

Not applicable

Environmental Requirements:

Not applicable

Exhibits/Attachments:

e Attachment 1 - Draft Capital Improvement Plan for the Fiscal Years ending
June 30, 2024 — 2034 for the Parks and General Fund

e Attachment 2 — Draft Capital Improvement Plan Narrative for Fiscal Year
2023-24



McKinleyville Community Services District
General Fund (Parks & Recreation) Capital Improvement Project Budget
For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2024 - 2034

Item E.3 Attachment 1

(All numbers in $000s) 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12
June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30,
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034
1.|Hiller Park & Sports Complex Projects
Park landscaping & signage
Playground Structure Replacement 50 25
Concessions/RR Interior 9
Roof Replacement-Concessions/RR
Concessions/RR Exterior
Roof Replacement-Hiller Park west RR 10
Restroom Upgrade-Hiller Park West 30
Parking Lot 12
Totals: 0 80 0 25 12 19 0 0 0 0 0
2.|Pierson Park Projects
Playground Structure Replacement 12 75
Park Restrooms/Garage 100 15
Gazebo Rehabilitation/Replacement 5 6
Pavilion Rehabilitation/Replacement 8
Landscaping 10 8
Totals: 0 110 12 8 83 6 15 0 0 0 0
3.]Azalea Hall Projects
Major Appliance Replacement 8 8 10 10 12 12 14
Replace flooring 5
Roof replacement 25
Exterior Repairs/Replacement 25 80
Parking lot resurfacing 16
Wall/Window Covering replacement
Kitchen equipment replacement 5 6
Replace tables & chairs 11 15

P/A system and audio-visual

MCSDBudgetFY2023-2024

—
N




McKinleyville Community Services District
General Fund (Parks & Recreation) Capital Improvement Project Budget

For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2024 - 2034

(All numbers in $000s) 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12
June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30,
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034
Floor scrubber
Totals: 13 44 26 15 12 27 119 0 6 0 0
4.]McKinleyville Activity Center Projects
Park landscaping & signage
Flooring replacement 85
Gymnasium Walls 15
Roof replacement 100
Siding repair/replacement 70
Equipment rehabilitation/replacement 10
Parking lot resurfacing 16
Bleacher replacement 5
Major Appliance replacement 7 32
Interior fixtures 10
Totals: 7 57 111 75 0 0 100 0 0 0 0
5.|Other Park Projects & Equipment
Mower & landscaping equipment 16 18
Light duty utility truck/van/car 11 11 12 12 17 18
Mobile Radio Upgrade
Totals: 16 11 11 0 12 0 12 18 17 [ 18

MCSDBudgetFY2023-2024




McKinleyville Community Services District
General Fund (Parks & Recreation) Capital Improvement Project Budget
For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2024 - 2034

(All numbers in $000s) 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12
June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30,
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034
6.]Law Enforcement Facility Projects
Flooring 19
Furnace replacement 6
Roof replacement 15
Siding replacement 21
LEF/Library Parking sealing/paving/fencing 5 10
Totals: 0 26 10 0 21 0 0 0 0 0 0
7.]McKinleyville Library Projects
Carpet replacement 15
Furnace replacement 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
Fire Suppression system 20
Roof & Siding replacement 21
Totals: 23 8 28 29 8 8 8 0 0 0 0
8.|Teen & Community Center
Flooring 14 40
Interior rehabilition/replacment 6
Kitchen Equipment & Appliances 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8
Roof & Siding replacement
Equipment rehabilitation/replacement 10
Parking lot resurfacing 10
Furnace & Water Heater 5
Tables & chairs 8
Totals: 8 0 48 8 13 8 8 48 8 8 8
9.|Projects Contingent Upon Grant Funding
Playstructure replacement-Larissa Park 10
Community Forest 80 30 50 40
Hewitt Ranch Parking & Amenities Dev. 120

MCSDBudgetFY2023-2024 144




McKinleyville Community Services District
General Fund (Parks & Recreation) Capital Improvement Project Budget
For the Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2024 - 2034

10.

(All numbers in $000s) 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 12
June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30, | June 30,
2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034
Totals: 80 30 50 50 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Projects Funded by Quimby & Other Funds
Hiller Sports Site - fence
Pole Barn 25
Skate park
Hewitt Ranch improvements
BMX Track and Park Project 1,029 1,152
Granite (Mad River) Property
Skate Park/ Washington property proj Totals:| 1,029 1,152 25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Planned Capital Expenditures 1,176 | 1,518 | 321 210 161 68 262 66 31 8 26
Grant-Funded Capital Projects 1,042 | 1,184 |

Projects

MCSDBudgetFY2023-2024




Item E.3 Attachment 2

Capital Improvement Plan
Parks and General Fund
Fiscal Year 2023-24

General Fund capital asset purchases and projects are significantly dependent upon
property tax revenues and assessments. The Measure B Maintenance Assessment
District -- Renewal for Parks, Open Space, and Recreational Facilities was renewed in
FY2012-13 for 20 years.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PROJECT DISCUSSION

Utility Vehicles and Equipment

In 1998, the Board adopted a Fleet Replacement Plan to ensure that MCSD'’s aging
fleet of service vehicles would be replaced in an approximately ten-year cycle. Where
possible, the District has started to exchange some of the heavier utility vehicles with
light compact trucks for savings in capital and operating costs. One mower is scheduled
to be replaced in fiscal year 2023-24.

Facility Projects

Replacement of the Hewitt Room floor, renovation of the walls in the Hewitt room, and
window covering replacements were covered by Prop 68 funding in fiscal year 2022-23.
$8,000 has been budgeted from these grant funds for replacement of the furnace in
Azalea Hall. If funds are remaining in fiscal year 2023-2024 the front entry door will be
replaced or fixed with a panic bar system for exit while the door is locked. The dish
sanitizer may also be replaced if Prop 68 funds allow.

$8,000 is budgeted from regular funds for the replacement of the furnace at the
McKinleyville Library. A $15,000 grant is being sought for the replacement of the Library
carpet. Quimby funds might also be considered to support the completion of this project.
Replacement of the HVAC system at the McKinleyville Activity Center has also been
budgeted for $7,000 from regular funds, if needed.

Parks and Trails Projects

In 2021, the District was awarded a $2.3 Million grant to construct a BMX Track & Park.
Design began in fiscal year 2022-2023 and construction is scheduled to begin in fiscal
year 2023-2024, $1.3 million has been budgeted for construction.

It is anticipated that Green Diamond will donate a portion of forest land to the District in

fiscal year 2022-2023. $80,000 has been budgeted for the development of the Murray
Road Access Point.

MCSD Budget 2023-24 DRAFT



Small Equipment, Contingency and Other

Nothing has been set aside in the upcoming fiscal year for unanticipated capital
emergency equipment repair or replacement of greater than $5,000. Smaller and less
expensive (more than $500 but less than $5,000) new equipment and emergency
replacement of existing equipment cannot generally be anticipated. These are
considered expenditures, rather than capital assets, and are included in the
repairs/maintenance/supplies line of the Parks & General Fund Operating Budget.

Note on Attachment 2 — Parks & General Fund DRAFT Capital Improvement Plan

The Parks and General Fund Capital Improvement Program’s planned capital
expenditures are shown in thousands: 10 = $10,000. The planning horizon for the
Program is 10 years. It should be noted that all estimated replacement costs are in
current year dollars since future inflation is unknown. Since the CIP is a dynamic plan
that is updated annually, future costs will be regularly evaluated.

MCSD Budget 2023-24 DRAFT






McKinleyville Community Services District
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 1, 2023 TYPE OF ITEM: Action

ITEM: E4 Central Avenue Water & Sewer Mainline Rehabilitation
Project, Award of Construction Contract to GR Sundberg, Inc.

PRESENTED BY: Patrick Kaspari, General Manager

TYPE OF ACTION: Roll Call

Recommendation:

Staff recommends that the Board review the information provided, discuss, take
public comment, and authorize the General Manager to execute a contract and
associated documents with GR Sundberg Inc. in the amount of $2,532,275 with a
10% contingency of $253,228.

Discussion:

The District has been working on Master Planning efforts focusing on the
replacement and rehabilitation of the water and sewer mainlines, since 2017. The
effort included an analysis of all water and sewer mainlines throughout the
system. The original water distribution system was constructed in 1973 and the
original sewer collection system was constructed in 1976. As the system
continues to age, replacement and rehabilitation of existing infrastructure will be
necessary to maintain an effective, functional system. The ultimate goal of the
Master Planning effort was to come up with a cost and prioritized schedule for
replacement/rehabilitation of the mainlines over the course of 50 to 75 years. The
Master Planning effort was successful in this regard, and the District is moving
into the first phase of many construction projects that will help to ensure the
District is able to continue their high level of service to the community well into
the future, without putting an undue rate burden on them.

The first project that was identified as a part of the Master Plan effort was the
rehabilitation of the 8-inch AC sewer main in Central Avenue from Sutter Road to
Hiller Road. This section has degraded to the point where the District’s staff have
observed exposed gaskets, which can lead to leaks and pipe collapse. Some
samples of sewer pipe from similar areas of the collection system that were
tested at a materials laboratory exhibited significant loss of wall thickness and
strength, indicating degradation of pipe integrity. Hence, this section of the sewer
system was identified for replacement/rehabilitation to strive to reduce the
potential for infiltration and inflow (1&1) as well as catastrophic failure of the pipe.

Due to the age of the existing 16-inch AC water main in this area, and the known
degradation characteristics of the AC pipe, it is prudent to rehabilitate the water
main at the same time as the sewer main, thereby minimizing overall disruption



to Central Avenue traffic and minimizing costs of rehabilitation for each system
through this section.

GHD Inc. prepared the design and bid package for the rehabilitation of the water
and sewer mains along Central Avenue from Sutter to Hiller. The proposed
rehabilitation method for the sewer is to line it with cured-in-place pipe (CIPP), an
epoxy impregnated fiberglass type fabric that is used to line the existing pipe.
The proposed replacement method for the watermain is a new parallel watermain
installed in the center turn lane via open cut trenching. The project went out to
bid in December 2022 and bids were due back on January 18, 2023. Three bids
were received, one from GR Sundberg, Inc. (GRS), one from Mercer Fraser, Inc.,
and one from Wahlund Construction. Attachment 1 is the detailed bid
tabulation, but the bids were close, at:

e GRS =$%$2,532,275
e Mercer Fraser = $2,677,990
e Wahlund = $3,009,769

The Engineer’s Estimate for this project was approximately $2.9M. The complete
GRS bid is included as Attachment 2. GHD has reviewed the responsiveness
and responsibility of the bid and has recommended the award to GRS. Their
recommendation memo is included as Attachment 3.

The Board is reminded that the construction of the water and sewer rehabilitation
projects were included in the 2018 & 2022 Rate Studies and $1M per year for
each is currently being set aside to fund these projects. The Board also
authorized the sale of Certificates of Participation to help fund the construction of
the Central Avenue rehabilitation project and included $2M in funding for the
water main rehabilitation and $2M in funding for the sewer main rehabilitation.

Alternatives:

Take No Action and do not award the Construction Contract

Fiscal Analysis:

Construction of the water & sewer main rehabilitation projects will be funded by
the sewer & water main rehabilitation funds set aside for this purpose and
included in the last Rate Analysis. Funding will also be provided by the
Certificates of Participation, Series 2021A-Water & Series 2021B-Sewer. Total
bid results for each portion of the project are:

e General Bid Items - $408,000
e Construction of new parallel water main via open trench - $1,498,325
e Construction of CIPP sewer main lining - $625,950

Environmental Requirements:

A Categorical Exemption has been completed and adopted by the MCSD Board
and filed with Humboldt County.



An encroachment permit has also been started with Humboldt County and the
contract requires the Contractor to finalize that permit with the County.

Additionally, local tribes have been notified, and a Cultural Resources Report for
the project completed. Since this area has already been extensively disturbed,
cultural resources are not anticipated to be encountered.

Exhibits/Attachments:

e Attachment 1 — Central Avenue Water & Sewer Main Rehabilitation
Project, Bid Tabulation, January 18, 2023

e Attachment 2 — GRS Bid for Central Avenue Water & Sewer Main
Rehabilitation Project, January 18, 2023

e Attachment 3 — GHD Award Recommendation Memo, January 20, 2023



Bid Tabulation Results

Owner:

McKinleyville Community Services District

Project Name: Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation

Project Location: McKinleyville, Humboldt County, CA

Date of Bid:

1/18/2023

Prepared by: Nathan Stevens

BASE BID SCHEDULE

Mercer-Fraser GR Sundberg Wahlunt.i
Company Construction
[ Ttem
No. Description Units Quantity | Unit Cost Total Cost | Unit Cost | Total Cost | Unit Cost | Total Cost
1 |Mobilization/Demobilization LS 1 $220,000 $220,000 | $250,000 | $250,000 | $398,000 | $398,000
2 |Traffic Control LS 1 $150,000 $150,000 | $150,000 | $150,000 | $41,500 $41,500
Sediment and Erosion Control including General
3 Revegetating Disturbed areas LS 1 $30,000 $30,000 $5,000 $5,000 $9,000 $9,000
4 E;’:""a' and Disposal of Asbestos Cement LS 1 $10,000 $10,000 | $3,000 | $3,000 | $12,000 | $12,000
5 |Dewatering System / Water Control LS 1 $25,000 $25,000 $50,000 $50,000 $5,000 $5,000
6 |2” Waterline Modifications LS 1 $20,000 $20,000 $25,000 $25,000 $16,000 $16,000
7 |6” PVC Water Pipe and Fittings LS 1 $25,000 $25,000 $30,000 $30,000 $25,000 $25,000
8" PVC Water Pipe and Fittings for Water Line
8 2.0 (Heartwood Drive) LF 245 $200 $49,000 $165 $40,425 $257 $62,965
10" PVC Water Pipe and Fittings for Water Line
9 3.0 (Nursery Way) LF 333 $330 $109,890 $200 $66,600 $233 $77,589
10 |16” PVC Water Pipe and Fittings LF 2,240 $390 $873,600 $290 $649,600 $403 $902,720
11 |6” Water Gate Valves EA 9 $2,200 $19,800 $2,300 $20,700 $2,900 $26,100
12 |8” Water Gate Valves EA 3 $3,500 $10,500 $3,500 $10,500 $3,500 $10,500
13 |10” Water Gate Valves EA 1 $6,000 $6,000 $5,500 $5,500 $4,700 $4,700
14 |12" Water Gave Valves EA 1 $6,200 $6,200 $6,250 $6,250 $5,100 $5,100
15 |16” Water Butterfly Valves EA 7 $14,000 $98,000 $7,650 $53,550 $7,275 $50,925
16 |18” Water Butterfly Valves EA 2 $18,000 $36,000 $10,000 $20,000 $8,000 $16,000 Wat
- - ater
17 gm}?“"" Assembly at Station 27+52 (near Ls 1 $15000 | $15000 | $32,000 | $32,000 | $22,000 | $22,000
18 |Connection Assembly near Station 29+53 LS 1 $15,000 $15,000 $17,000 | $17,000 | $20,000 | $20,000
19 |Connection Assembly at Sutter Road LS 1 $42,000 $42,000 $53,000 | $53,000 | $56,000 | $56,000
Connection Assembly at Central Ave and
20 Heartwood Drive to East LS 1 $20,000 $20,000 $30,000 $30,000 $18,500 $18,500
Connection Assembly at Heartwood Drive at
21 West End of Water Line 2.0 LS 1 $8,000 $8,000 $5,700 $5,700 $3,700 $3,700
22 [Connection Assembly at Holly Drive LS 1 $17,000 $17,000 $15,000 | $15,000 | $18,000 | $18,000
23 |Connection Assemblies at Hiller Road LS 1 $55,000 $55,000 $87,500 | $87,500 | $79,000 | $79,000
24 |1” Water Service Lines EA 10 $4,000 $40,000 $7,600 $76,000 $8,000 $80,000
25 |Multi-Meter Water Service Lines EA 11 $7,500 $82,500 $11,000 | $121,000 | $16,000 | $176,000
26 |Fire Hydrant Services EA 6 $10,000 $60,000 $11,000 $66,000 $21,000 | $126,000
Combination Air Valve Assembly (Including
27 Precast Vault) EA 1 $13,000 $13,000 $17,000 $17,000 $19,000 $19,000
28 |Temporary Sewer Bypass Pumping LS 1 $12,000 $12,000 $25,000 | $25,000 $3,200 $3,200
Pre-Rehabilitation Closed-Circuit Television
29 [(CCTV) Inspection and Pipe Cleaning — Sewer LS 1 $15,000 $15,000 $13,500 $13,500 $15,500 $15,500
Mains
Pre-Rehabilitation Closed-Circuit Television
30 [(CCTV) Inspection and Pipe Cleaning — Sewer EA 24 $1,000 $24,000 $1,000 $24,000 $1,150 $27,600
Service Laterals
31 2:]:?[:” Sewer Main Open Cut Section EA 5 $6,200 | $31,000 $300 $1,500 | $9,000 | $45,000
32 |Sewer Main Open Cut Section Repairs LF 50 $200 $10,000 $700 $35,000 $350 $17,500
33 29‘ up for Sewer Service Lateral Open Cut EA 5 $5500 | $27,500 $300 $1,500 | $8550 | $42,750
eplacement
34 |Sewer Service Lateral Open Cut Replacement LF 150 $285 $42,750 $300 $45,000 $194 $29,100
35 gf;;’; for Chemical Grout Injection info Pipe EA 2 $9,200 | $18400 | $9,200 | $18400 | $10,500 | $21,000
36 |Chemical Grout Injection into Pipe Cracks GAL 20 $2,000 $40,000 $2,000 $40,000 $2,300 $46,000 | Sewer
Set up for Rehabilitation of 4” Sewer Laterals
37 Using Cured-in-Place Pipe Lining Method EA 24 $2,700 $64,800 $275 $6,600 $315 $7,560
Rehabilitation of 4” Sewer Laterals Using Cured|
38 in-Place Pipe Lining Method LF 660 $110 $72,600 $110 $72,600 $126 $83,160
Rehabilitation of 6” Sewer Main Using Cured-in:
39 Place Pipe Lining Method LF 700 $65 $45,500 $65 $45,500 $75 $52,500
Rehabilitation of 8” Sewer Main Using Cured-in:
40 |piace Pipe Lining Method LF 2,015 $70 $141,050 | $70 | $14105 | $80 | $161,200
41 |Rehabilitation of Sewer Manholes EA 9 $6,100 $54,900 $15,500 | $139,500 | $17,500 | $157,500
Post-Rehabilitation Closed-Circuit Television
42 |(CCTV) Inspection and Pipe Cleaning — Sewer LS 1 $10,000 $10,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,900 $6,900
Mains
Post-Rehabilitation Closed-Circuit Television
43 |(CCTV) Inspection and Pipe Cleaning — Sewer EA 24 $500 $12,000 $450 $10,800 $500 $12,000
Service Laterals
General Subtotal $410,000 $408,000 $460,500
Water Subtotal $1,646,490 $1,498,325 $1,820,799
Sewer Subtotal $621,500 $625,950 $728,470
TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT $2,677,990 $2,532,275 $3,009,769

Item E.4 Attachment 1




Item E.4 Attachment 2

McKinleyville Community Services District
Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

BIDDERS' CHECKLIST

This checklist has been prepared and furnished to aid bidders in including all necessary supporting
information with their bid. Bidders' submittals should include, but are not limited to the following:

ITEM
1.
2.

10.

11.

Part 1

Bid Proposal

List of Subcontractors
(Subcontractor Details)

Bid Bond

Authority to Sign Bid Proposal
(if applicable)

Power of Attorney

Non-Collusion Affidavit

Workers Compensation Certification
Anti-Lobbying Certification

Qualifications Statement that meets the
requirements described in Section 1.3.A
of Specification 33 01 31

(CCTV Inspection of Sewers).

Qualifications Statement that meets the
requirements described in Section 1.5.A
of Specification 33 01 32
(Cured-in-Place Pipe Lining).

Qualifications Statement that meets the
requirements described in Section 1.6.A
of Specification 33 01 33
(Manhole Rehabilitation).

PAGE CHECKED
1-9 through 1-14 7
1-15 v ]
1-16through 117  __ V
(Attached to Bid Bond) __ v
(Attached to Bid Bond) L
1-18 v
1-19 v
1-20 _‘/
(Attached to Bid) __L
l/
(Attached to Bid)
(Attached to Bid) '/

Bid Requirements



McKinleyville Community Services District
Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

This page left blank intentionally.

Bid Requirements 1-8 Part 1



McKinleyville Community Services District
Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

BID PROPOSAL

Proposal of G Suwdoecs e
(hereinafter called "Bidder"), organized~and existing under the laws of the State of California,

*

doing business as _4_ (o %Q\- AT

To the McKinleyville Community Services District, (hereinafter called "Owner").

In compliance with your Advertisement for Bids, Bidder hereby proposes to perform all Work for the
Central Avenue Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project in strict accordance with the Contract Documents,
within the time set forth therein, and at the prices stated below.

In the event of a difference between a price quoted in words and a price quoted in figures for the same
quotation, the words shall be the amount bid. In the event that the product of a unit price and an
estimated quantity does not equal the extended amount quoted, the unit price shall govern and the
corrected product of the unit price and the estimated quantity shall be deemed to be the amount bid. If the
sum of two or more items in a bidding schedule does not equal the total amounts quoted, the individual
items amounts shall govern and the corrected total shall be deemed to be the amount bid.

By submission of this bid, each Bidder certifies, and in the case of a joint bid, each party certifies as to its
own organization, that the bid has been arrived at independently, without consultation, communication, or
agreement as to any matter relating to this bid with any other Bidder or with any competitor.

Bidder hereby agrees to commence Work under this Contract on or before a date to be specified in the
Notice to Proceed and to fully complete the project and pay the liquidated damages as provided in
Articles Il and IV of the General Conditions.

*Insert "a corporation," "a partnership," or "an individual" as applicable.

Part 1 1-9 Bid Requirements



McKinleyville Community Services District
Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

SUBCONTRACTOR DETAILS
The Bidder certifies that:

A __ | donot intend to subcontract any Work on this project.
5. g

intend to subcontract portions of the Work on this project.

NOTE: The Bidder shall check box A or box B. If the Bidder does not check a box, it will
be deemed that Bidder has checked box A.

If awarded the Contract, the Bidder proposes to employ the following subcontractors who will perform
Work or labor or render service to the Bidder in or about the Work in an amount in excess of one-half of
one percent (0.5%) of the total amount of Bidder's proposal. If no subcontract Work is proposed, except
within the one-half of one percent (0.5%) limit set forth, the Bidder shall so state.

NAME & ADDRESS DESCRIPTION OF WORK SUBCONTRACTOR'S CALIF. LIC. NO.
OF SUBCONTRACTOR TO BE SUBCONTRACTED AND DIR NO.
S (\DU\(‘.Q/( Bleedie  Trallic Loo \los av 1607 \00O R\ 26

Qoo YA Culdew , A 1SSy

Nor - (ol Q\let\‘\\me Qoo Lokl 425%13  100000L ST
48 Recerve D, C\ve?P , (CTV
Roseu\e A 4S8 Manha\€

Part 1 1-16 Bid Requirements



McKinleyville Community Services District
Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

Bidder agrees to perform all the Work described in the Contract Documents for the following prices.
Bidder is advised to carefully review all sections of the Contract Documents to completely understand the
Work and all constraints, including the schedule and material requirements.

The work for this project generally includes, but is not limited to, miscellaneous demolition; rehabilitation
of the existing operating sewer main, laterals, and manholes; temporary bypass pumping; installation of a
new water main including all associated piping, valves, appurtenances, and connections to existing
waterlines; potholing, construction staking, trenching, shoring, sheeting, and bracing, excavation, grading,
installation of subgrade material, tack coat, placement and compaction of asphalt, traffic control,
stockpiling, cleanup, and all other Work required to complete the modifications as shown in the Contract
Drawings and described in the Specifications.

The following tables have been provided for the Bidder's convenience to assist Bidder in quantifying the
major components of the Work and shall in no way be interpreted to be comprehensive. The bid shall be
comprehensive and shall include all work associated with the project, including all necessary labor,
materials, equipment, supervision, sales tax, and all other applicable taxes and fees.

General Bid Schedule:

BASE BID SCHEDULE
I:\i;n Description Unit Qt. Unit Cost Total Cost

1. | Mobilization/Demobilization LS 1 $250,000 | $.2S0,000

2. |Traffic Control LS 1 $150, 000 $ \'SO, 000
Sediment and Erosion Control -

3. |including Revegetating Disturbed | LS 1 $_5,000 $_ 5,000
areas

4. |Removal and Disposal of Asbestos | | g 1 $ 5,000 $ 3,000
Cement Pipe

GENERAL SUBTOTAL ¢ LR, 600 .00 )

GENERAL SUBTOTAL IN WORDS%ur\AuV\Ar-CO\d‘t\}n\—%ou5aud aud  1ev0 cendts

Water Bid Schedule:

BASE BID SCHEDULE
5 Dewatering System / Water LS 1 $ 50,000 $ 50,000
* | Control
6. |2" Waterline Modifications LS 1 $_.4S, 000 $_25,000
Bid Requirements 1-10 Part 1



McKinleyville Community Services District
Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

BASE BID SCHEDULE
7 6" PVC W?ter Pipe and Fittings LS 1 $ 40,000 $.%40,000
(near Station 14+55)
8" PVC Water Pipe and Fittings for | | 245 .00 Lo uxrs
8. | Water Line 2.0 (Heartwood Drive) S__lkS S
9 10" PVC Water Pipe and Fittings LF 333 $  200.00 $ bbb b00O
for Water Line 3.0 (Nursery Way)
10. |16" PVC Water Pipe and Fittings | LF 2,240 | $_240.00 $_644,600
11. |6" Water Gate Valves EA 9 $.2,200 $.20,7100
12. |8" Water Gate Valves EA 3 $.2,500 $.10,500
13. |10" Water Gate Valves EA 1 $.S,500 $_5.,S00
14, |12” Water Gave Valves EA 1 $.6,2S0 $ 6,250
15. | 16" Water Butterfly Valves EA 7 $71, 650 $53%,550
16. | 18" Water Butterfly Valves EA 2 $\0 ,000 $.20, 00O
Connection Assembly at Station LS 1 ), 000 12,000
17. 127452 (near BMW) $0dy S22
18. (z.tgorggction Assembly near Station | | g 1 $ \1, ©OO $ V1,000
19, ggggection Assembly at Sutter LS 1 $ 5% 000 $ SY ,000
Connection Assembly at Central LS 1 000 000
20. Ave and Heartwood Drive to East $20, 20,
Connection Assembly at
21. |Heartwood Drive at West End of LS 1 $_5\100 $_S,100
Water Line 2.0
22 annection Assembly at Holly LS 1 $\ 00 $ lg 000
Drive
Part 1 1-11 Bid Requirements

—
(0]



McKinleyville Community Services District
Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

BASE BID SCHEDULE
23 ggggection Assemblies at Hiller LS 1 $R7,S0O $ %1, S00
24. |1” Water Service Lines EA 10 $_ 1,600 $1b 000
25. |Multi-Meter Water Service Lines | EA 11 $.1\,000 12\, 000
26. |Fire Hydrant Services EA 6 $_ \\bOO $_bbboO
27, Combination Air Valve Assembly EA 1 $\1,000 $ \17,000
(Including Precast Vault)
WATER SUBTOTAL ¢ 1,49%,%35 .00

)
WATER SUBTOTAL INworps:__One Million four hw\dfed N dnedsy ¢ (‘31’\*'
Thov sqnd +hrep hundr@d -h,-/on-i\i Frue C{’al(&ﬁ*”"

Sewer Bid Schedule:

BASE BID SCHEDULE

8. Tempprary Sewer Bypass LS 1 $ QS 000 $.2S 000
Pumping
Pre-Rehabilitation Closed-Circuit

29. |Television (CCTV) Inspectionand | LS 1 $1,S00 $1%, SO0
Pipe Cleaning — Sewer Mains
Pre-Rehabilitation Closed-Circuit

30. Tglewsmn (CCTV) Inspectlop and EA 24 $ \ \ 1070)0) $g_\-\ 000
Pipe Cleaning — Sewer Service
Laterals

31, | Set up for Sewer Main Open Cut EA 5 § .00 | § \.S00O
Section Repairs

3. Sewer Main Open Cut Section LE 50 $  T00.00 $ LS,000
Repairs

33, Set up for Sewer Service Lateral EA 5 $ 20D .00 $ \,S00O
Open Cut Replacement

34, gewer Service Lateral Open Cut LF 150 $ 00,00 $ L1s,000

eplacement
Bid Requirements 1-12 Part 1



McKinleyville Community Services District
Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

BASE BID SCHEDULE
35 | Set Up for Chemical Grout EA 2 $ 9 00 $ 3,400
Injection into Pipe Cracks
36, | Chemical Grout Injection into Pipe | gaL 20 $ 00O $ 40,000

Cracks

Set up for Rehabilitation of 4"
37. |Sewer Laterals Using Cured-in- EA 24 $__AS.00 $_b1 60O

Place Pipe Lining Method

Rehabilitation of 4" Sewer Laterals
38. |Using Cured-in-Place Pipe Lining | LF 660 $_\\0.00 $ 12, 600

Method

Rehabilitation of 6" Sewer Main
39. |Using Cured-in-Place Pipe Lining | LF 700 $__65.00 $ 1S ,500

Method

Rehabilitation of 8" Sewer Main 0
40. |Using Cured-in-Place Pipe Lining | LF 2,015 $ .00 $\4\ ,0S0

Method

41. |Rehabilitation of Sewer Manholes | EA 9 $1S,S00 $.\29,500

Post-Rehabilitation Closed-Circuit
42. |Television (CCTV) Inspectionand | LS 1 $_6,000 $_0,000
Pipe Cleaning — Sewer Mains

Post-Rehabilitation Closed-Circuit

43, Television (CCTV) Inspectionand | ga 24 $ 1SS0 .00 $ \0(R0O
Pipe Cleaning — Sewer Service
Laterals
SEWER SUBTOTAL ¢ (25,9S0.00 "
N » ' AO\ o
SEWER SUBTOTAL IN WORDS S tauvidi4dduy m\-:g_wb\,\/\o\.\_;_gud mmmmm\%&: awd
L 7ero CQV\)'S

The total base bid price below is the sum of the General Subtotal, Water Subtotal, and Sewer Subtota

TOTAL OF BASE BID 2,552, 21S .00 )

TOTAL OF BASE BID IN WORDS Tuse wi\ion §iveaunm dved i M o Yuousand duoomundied -
&uu\s?‘wn. OO\AYS awdh ELO cent®

The low bidder shall be determined based on the Total of Base Bid.

Receipt of the following Addenda is acknowledged:

A;}E&gndg W %\ Aadz LL!'L\[Z:; ﬂ&&{nds‘mﬂ B Aoted -\\'H\l'ﬁ

AMAevdun B2 dated o1y, dddendum B4 dated Wis\22

Part 1 1-13 Bid Requirements



McKinleyville Community Services District
Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

The representations made herein are made under penalty of perjury.
Respectfully submitted:

ﬁ_" ’q res\t{e\a\—

Signature (Jarik . gu.db_,,,,) x‘h Title

132 04S tinles
License Number Date

A uley

License Expiration Date

\OOO00\ 3\

DIR Registration Number

(SEAL - If Bid is by Corporation)

Bid Requirements 1-14

Part 1



McKinleyville Community Services District
Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

BID BOND

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned,

GR Sundberg, Inc. as Principal, and
Liberty Mutual Insurance Company , as Surety, are hereby held and firmly bound unto
McKinleyville Community Services District , as
Owner, in the penal sum of _ Ten Percent (10%) of Bid Amount for the payment of which, well and truly to

be made, we hereby jointly and severally bind ourselves, successors and assigns.

Signed this 28th day of ___December , 2022

The Condition of the above obligation is such that whereas the Principal has submitted to
McKinleyville Community Services District a certain bid, attached hereto and hereby made a part hereof to enter into
a contract in writing, for the:

Central Avenue Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

NOW, THEREFORE,
(a) If said bid shall be rejected, or

(b) If said bid shall be accepted and the Principal shall execute and deliver a
contract in the Form of Contract attached hereto (properly completed in accordance with
said Bid), and shall furnish a bond for the faithful performance of said contract, and for
the payment of all persons performing labor or furnishing materials in connection
therewith, and shall in all other respects perform the agreement created by the
acceptance of said bid, then this obligation shall be void, otherwise the same shall remain
in force and effect; it being expressly understood and agreed that the liability of the
Surety for any and all claims hereunder shall, in no event, exceed the penal amount of
this obligation as herein stated.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that the obligations of said
Surety and its bond shall be in no way impaired or affected by any extension of the time
within which the Owner may accept such bid; and said Surety does hereby waive notice
of any such extension.

Bid Requirements 1-16 Part 1



McKinleyville Community Services District
Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Principal and Surety have hereunto set their hands and seals, and such of
them as are corporations have caused their corporate seals to be hereto affixed and these presents to be
signed by their proper officers, the day and year first set forth above.

SEAL: GR Sundberg, Inc.
Principal

By: -ﬁ‘

Gracvu R Stwdbean \R,

Title: ‘?T ement

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company

Surety
By: % U
— Title

Emmalyn Nichols, Attorney-in-Fact

IMPORTANT - Surety companies executing bonds must appear on the Treasury Department's most
current list (Circular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact business in the state where the

project is located.

NOTE: Bidder shall provide current “Power of Attorney” for Attorney-in-fact who signs Bid Bond.

Part 1 1-17 Bid Requirements



ACKNOWLEDGMENT

A notary public or other officer completing this
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual
who signed the document to which this certificate is
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or
validity of that document.

State of California .
County of Marin )

on DQCﬁiﬂQbEIC 20 2072 before me Jon Richard Sullivan, Notary Public
(insert name and title of the officer)

personally appeared __EmMmalyn Nichols ;
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are
subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in
his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the
person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing
paragraph is true and correct.

S i W
) JON RICHARD SULLIVAN

%5\ Notary Public - Cahifarnia
255 Marin County

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

Signature WW\ (Seal)

2

ﬁ 5, Commission # 23 7147
=" My Comm, Expires Nov 13, 2024 f3
-'@WWG‘C TRy

T VRN PR




Not valid for mortgage, note, loan, letter of credit,

currency rate, interest rate or residual value guarantees.

This Power of Attorney limits the acts of those named herein, and they have no authority to
bind the Company except in the manner and to the extent herein stated.

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company Certificate No: 8204910-024088
West American Insurance Company

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOWN ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company is a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, that
Liberty Mutual Insurance Company is a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of Massachusetts, and West American Insurance Company is a corporation duly organized
under the laws of the State of Indiana (herein collectively called the “Companies”), pursuant to and by authority herein set forth, does hereby name, constitute and appaint, Emmalyn
Nichols, Jon Richard Sullivan, Karen Rhodes, Susan J. McGowan, Tammy Bates

all of the city of Novato state of CA each individually if there be more than one named, its true and lawfu! attomey-in-fact to make,
execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver, for and on its behalf as surety and as its act and deed, any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety obligations, in pursuance
of these presents and shall be as binding upon the Companies as if they have been duly signed by the president and attested by the secretary of the Companies in their own proper
persons.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Power of Attorney has been subscribed by an authorized officer or official of the Companies and the corporate seals of the Companies have been affixed
theretothis  24th  dayof  February , 2021

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company
West American Insurance Company

State of PENNSYLVANIA
County of MONTGOMERY

Onthis 24th dayof February , 2021 before me personally appeared David M. Carey, who acknowledged himself to be the Assistant Secretary of Liberty Mutual Insurance
Company, The Ohio Casualty Company, and West American Insurance Company, and that he, as such, being authorized so to do, execute the foregoing instrument for the purposes
therein contained by signing on behalf of the corporations by himself as a duly authorized officer

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto subscribed my name and affixed my notarial seal at King of Prussia, Pennsylvania, on the day and year first above written.
ERAS
eb SN

2o ——17¢ _ - -
IAPEETN Commafiwesithi bf Pehnsylvania - Notary Seal
/ 3‘169 NG Teidsa Pl Nolay Pl A~
E Monigamiery Colinty . t Z f
g ) My comimission expirés Mdrch 26, 2025 By: M} 4&
'?é,,\ w7 [ L Comisson uinbef 112604 7 Pastalia Notarv Publ
-\1'0}4}2%@)‘.—' /' “Tiariber Pennsyfana Assoc ko of Nolaries eresa Pastella, Notary Public

This Power of Attomey is made and executed pursuant to and by authority of the following By-laws and Authorizations of The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company, Liberty Mutual
Insurance Company, and West American Insurance Company which resolutions are now in full force and effect reading as follows:

ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS: Section 12. Power of Attorney.

Any officer or other official of the Corporation authorized for that purpose in wnting by the Chairman or the President, and subject to such limitation as the Chairman or the
President may prescribe, shall appoint such attorneys-in-fact, as may be necessary to act in behalf of the Corporation to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety
any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety obligations. Such attorneys-in-fact, subject to the limitations set forth in their respective powers of attorney, shall
have full power to bind the Corporation by their signature and execution of any such instruments and to attach thereto the seal of the Corporation. When so executed, such
instruments shall be as binding as if signed by the President and attested to by the Secretary. Any power or authority granted to any representative or attomey-in-fact under the
provisions of this article may be revoked at any time by the Board, the Chairman, the President or by the officer or officers granting such power or authority

ARTICLE XIIl - Execution of Contracts: Section 5. Surety Bonds and Undertakings

Any officer of the Company authorized for that purpose in writing by the chairman or the president, and subject to such limitations as the chairman or the president may prescribe,
shall appoint such attorneys-in-fact, as may be necessary to act in behalf of the Company to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety any and all undertakings,
bonds, recognizances and other surety obligations. Such attomneys-in-fact subject to the limitations set forth in their respective powers of attorney, shall have full power to bind the
Company by their signature and execution of any such instruments and to attach thereto the seal of the Company. When so executed such instruments shall be as binding as if
signed by the president and attested by the secretary.

Certificate of Designation - The President of the Company, acting pursuant to the Bylaws of the Company, authorizes David M. Carey, Assistant Secretary to appoint such attorneys-in-
fact as may be necessary to act on behalf of the Company to make, execute, seal, acknowledge and deliver as surety any and all undertakings, bonds, recognizances and other surety
obligations.

Authorization — By unanimous consent of the Company's Board of Directors, the Company consents that facsimile or mechanically reproduced signature of any assistant secretary of the
Company, wherever appearing upon a certified copy of any power of attorney issued by the Company in connection with surety bonds, shall be valid and binding upon the Company with
the same force and effect as though manually affixed.

I, Renee C. Llewellyn, the undersigned, Assistant Secretary, The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company, Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, and West American Insurance Company do
hereby certify that the original power of attomey of which the foregoing is a full, frue and correct copy of the Power of Attomey executed by said Companies, is in full force and effect and
has not been revoked.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, | have hereunfo sat my hieind and aitixed the seals of said Companies this  28th  dayof  December , 2022 .

Renee C. Lleweliyn, Assistant Secretary

LMS-12873 LMIC OCIC WAIC Multi Co 02/21

8240 or emaiYHOSUR@Iibertymutual.com.

For bond and/or Power of Attorney (POA) verification inquiries,

please call 610-832-




McKinleyville Community Services District
Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

NONCOLLUSION AFFIDAVIT
TO BE EXECUTED BY BIDDER AND SUBMITTED WITH BID

The undersigned declares:

.
| am the ()Tt’NO\QW \' of (AR Sundbain lne, the party making the
foregoing bid. ~)

The bid is not made in the interest of, or on behalf of, any undisclosed person, partnership, company,
association, organization, or corporation. The bid is genuine and not collusive or sham. The bidder has
not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other bidder to put in a false or sham bid. The bidder has
not directly or indirectly colluded, conspired, connived, or agreed with any bidder or anyone else to put in
a sham bid, or to refrain from bidding. The bidder has not in any manner, directly or indirectly, sought by
agreement, communication, or conference with anyone to fix the bid price of the bidder or any other
bidder, or to fix any overhead, profit, or cost element of the bid price, or of that of any other bidder. All
statements contained in the bid are true. The bidder has not, directly or indirectly, submitted his or her bid
price or any breakdown thereof, or the contents thereof, or divulged information or data relative thereto, to
any corporation, partnership, company, association, organization, bid depository, or to any member or
agent thereof, to effectuate a collusive or sham bid, and has not paid and will not pay, any person or
entity for such purpose.

This declaration is intended to comply with California Public Contract Code Section 7106 and Title 23
U.S.C Section 112.

| declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing is true and
correct and that this declaration is executed on 0 {11122 [date], at __Avcaka

[cityl, _C/F [state].
e

Fartu . Sundbeiy \R . Qendent
Name and Title [print] ~J=)

Bid Requirements 1-18 Part 1



McKinleyville Community Services District
Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

CONTRACTOR'’S CERTIFICATION REGARDING WORKERS'
COMPENSATION INSURANCE

State of California

Cotinty of l—\u« \M&)O\O\\‘

| am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require
every employer to be insured against liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in
accordance with the provisions of that code, and | will comply with such provisions before commencing
the performance of the work of this Contract.

(AR Sundowy, \ne.

(Name of Contractor)
T

by:"/7¢’—

(arth 2. Suvxctb&wt AR,
(Signaturg~F€ontractor)

Date: \h IILE

Part 1 1-19 Bid Requirements



McKinleyville Community Services District
Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation Project

ANTI-LOBBYING CERTIFICATION

The contractor certifies, by signing and submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her knowledge
and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract,
the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure of
Lobbying Activities," in conformance with its instructions.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.

The contractor also agrees by submitting his or her bid or proposal that he or she shall require that the

language of this certification be included in all lower tier subcontracts that exceed $100,000 and that all
such subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

Notes: Providing false information may result in criminal prosecution or administrative sanctions.

The above certification is part of the Bid. Signing this Bid on the signature portion thereof shall also
constitute signature of this Certification.

Bid Requirements 1-20 Part 1

168



nﬁ lnuuu,liun

California License No. 935878 NOR-CAL PIPE INSPECTION

NOR-CAL PIPELINE SERVICES
MANHOLE REHAB CREW EXPERIENCE

Shawn Ware —Superintendent

Over 15 years of on-site supervision of cured in place pipe (CIPP) manhole and
3x5 rehabilitation projects.

Steve Allen — MH Rehab Foreman/Lead Applicator
Over 10 years of onsite supervision for all manhole and 3x5 coating projects.
Larry Gilbert — MH Rehab Technician/Applicator

Over 10 years of experience coating manholes and 3x5 sewer lines.

Damian Torres — MH Rehab Technician/Applicator

Over 10 years of experience coating manholes and 3x5 sewer lines.



- NorCalz=

California License. No. 935878 NOR-CAL PIPELINE SERVICES

- CCTV & CURED-IN-PLACE LINING CREW EXPERIENCE

Bill Bonney - Estimator
Over 7 years as estimator for cured-in-place lining.

Ben Summersett—Division Manager / Project Manager
Two years as a Project Manager for cured-in-place lining. Managed over 50 projects from 4-inch to 36-
inch CIPP lining at Nor Cal Pipeline Services. Twelve years of experience managing environmental
cleanup cases for oil/gas and industrial clients.

Cory Wagner—Project Manager
Eight years as a Project Manager for cured-in-place lining with Insituform Technologies, LLC and
Nor-Cal Pipeline. Managed over 500 projects from 4-inch to 60 inch CIPP lining.

Shawn Ware - CIPP Superintendent
Over 15 years of onsite supervision of over 700 lining projects from 4-inch to 54-inch lining projects for
Insituform Technologies, LLC, JF Pacific Liners, Inc. / Veolia ES, and Nor-Cal Pipeline Services
including sewer flow control. Also PAPC certified.

Diego Reyes — Boiler Operator
Over 10 years of experience as boiler operator and CIPP installations using MTC & Pipenology Liners
products.

Glenn Brown — Foreman
Over 10 years of experience with CIPP lining installations using MTC & Pipenology Liners products.
PACP/LACP/MACP Trained and Certified CCTV Operator.

Carlos Taitano — Field Technician / Cutter Operator
6 years of experience with CIPP lining installations using MTC & Pipenology Liners products.
PACP/LACP/MACP Trained and Certified CCTV Operator.

1875 South River Road, West Sacramento, California 95691 ¢ Phone 916-442-5400 « Fax 916-520-6966
170



Manufactured Technologies Corparation
17988 Edison Avenue = St. Louis, MO 63005
(636) 530-3330 = manufacturedtechnologies.com

Manufactured Technologies Corporation —1m8 ——— — -

November 22, 2019

RE: NOR-CAL PIPELINE SERVICES — APPROVED INSTALLER OF MTUBE®

To Whom It May Concern,

I am writing this letter on behalf of Manufactured Technologies Corporation, an AEGION company, to
confirm that our organization is in its 15" year of operation as a material supplier for the cured-in-place
pipe (CIPP) industry.

Since our inception, we have supplied nearly 20 million linear feet of coated felt tube to approved
installers across North America such as Nor-Cal Pipeline Services, 1875 South River Road, West
Sacramento CA, 95691 and we are proud to call them our customer.

If you should have any additional questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at your convenience. |
am available at (636) 530-3355 or mwetzel@aegion.com.

Best regards,

/4/ )t

Mark Wetzel
Senior Director, MTC

DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY: AS INSTALLATION CONDITIONS (INCLUDING, AMONG OTHERS, PIPE TYPE & CONDITION, GROUNDWATER DEPTH &
TEMPERATURE, DEPTH OF COVER & SOIL TYPE, LIVE LOADS, SITE ACCESS AND WEATHER) AND INSTALLER EXPERIENCE, TECHNIQUES AND TYPE OF
EQUIPMENT VARY GREATLY, MTC EXCLUDES ANY WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE GOODS SOLD HEREUNDER AS
TO MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR PARTICULAR USE OR ANY OTHER MATTER WITH RESPECT TO THE GOODS WHETHER USED ALONE OR IN
COMBINATION WITH OTHER PRODUCTS. MTC HAS NOT PROVIDED ANY DESIGN SPECIFICATIONS OR COMPUTATIONS, AND ACCORDINGLY, MTC DOES
NOT WARRANT THE DESIGN.



/ﬁ\ ' f Manufactured Technologies Corporation
\ / 17988 Edison Avenue = St. Louis, MO 63005
S (636) 530-3330 = manufacturedtechnologies.com
- Manufactured Technologies Corporation - - - - - e
November 22, 2019

RE: RESIN-IMPREGNATION OF CURED-IN-PLACE-PIPE - I.E. “WETOUT PROCESS”

To Whom It May Concern,

This letter certifies that Manufactured Technologies Corporation (MTC), formerly Mississippi Textiles
Corporation, an AEGION company, was established as a business and has been supplying the cured-in-
place-pipe (CIPP) industry with liner material since 2005. During this time, MTC has supplied nearly 20
million linear feet of CIPP liner to contractors across North America and beyond.

Our felt tubes are manufactured in an 150:9001:2015 certified factory in accordance with specifications
of MTC and will comply with the guidelines of ASTM F1216 and ASTM F1743. Our liners are impregnated
with thermosetting resin produced by industry leading suppliers. Furthermore, our resin systems have a
successful history in lab conditions and actual field installations of meeting the chemical resistance
recommendations of ASTM F1216, ASTM F1743 and ASTM D5813.

Specific to your request, during our patented wetout process, we make sure the resin completely fills
the felt liner. Our serial vacuum impregnation process enables our resin to fully saturate liners of any
length or thickness, thereby ensuring the long-term reliability of our CIPP. Finally, we place enough resin
in the liner during wetout to completely impregnate the felt and create the desired pipe MM thickness.

If you should have any additional questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at your convenience. |
am available at (636) 530-3355 or mwetzel@aegion.com.

Best regards,

/4/ I

Mark Wetzel
Senior Director, MTC

DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY: AS INSTALLATION CONDITIONS (INCLUDING, AMONG OTHERS, PIPE TYPE & CONDITION, GROUNDWATER DEPTH & TEMPERATURE,
DEPTH OF COVER & SOIL TYPE, LIVE LOADS, SITE ACCESS AND WEATHER) AND INSTALLER EXPERIENCE, TECHNIQUES AND TYPE OF EQUIPMENT VARY GREATLY, MTC
EXCLUDES ANY WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO THE GOODS SOLD HEREUNDER AS TO MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR
PARTICULAR USE OR ANY OTHER MATTER WITH RESPECT TO THE GOODS WHETHER USED ALONE OR IN COMBINATION WITH OTHER PRODUCTS. MTC HAS NOT
PROVIDED ANY DESIGN SPECIFICATIONS OR COMPUTATIONS, AND ACCORDINGLY, MTC DOES NOT WARRANT THE DESIGN.



Nor-Cal=

NOR CAL PIPELINE SERVICES PACP CERTIFICATION LIST

PACP CERTIFICATIONS

NAME CERTIFICATION NUMBER .

ANTHONY FRENCH U-1209-9677 YES YES YES 11
GABE MORALES U-913-18734 YES YES YES 15
HEATH BRUNNER U-913-18743 YES YES YES

JEREMY GUZMAN U-913-18738 YES YES YES

JOHN DELCASTILLO U-913-18764 YES YES YES

LOIS MCCOWAN U-607-4968 YES YES YES

LUIS DAMIEN TORRES U-913-18752 YES YES YES

STEVE DAVIS U-913-18744 YES YES YES

TALMADGE WAYNE LEWIS U-305-1966 YES YES YES

TIM BARNETT U-913-18735 YES YES YES

WILLIAM ARMSTRONG U-912-16179 YES YES YES

PETER NAVARRO U-612-15571 YES YES YES

GLENN BROWN U-208-6259 YES YES YES

SHAWN WARE U-612-15600 YES YES YES

TOM HALL U-305-1912

w



Nor-Cal

PACP CERTIFICATIONS

NAME

ANTHONY FRENCH
GABE MORALES
HEATH BRUNNER
JEREMY GUZMAN
JOHN DELCASTILLO
LOIS MCCOWAN

LUIS DAMIEN TORRES
STEVE DAVIS
TALMADGE WAYNE LEWIS
TIM BARNETT
WILLIAM ARMSTRONG
PETER NAVARRO
GLENN BROWN
SHAWN WARE

| s
Services

U-1209-9677
U-913-18734
U-913-18743
U-913-18738
U-913-18764
U-607-4968
U-913-18752
U-913-18744
U-305-1966
U-913-18735
U-912-16179
U-612-15571
U-208-6259
U-612-15600

CERTIFICATION NUMBER

DATE _

10/19/2012
9/20/2013
9/20/2013
9/20/2013
9/20/2013
10/19/2012
9/20/2013
9/20/2013
10/19/2012
9/20/2013
10/19/2012
2/3/2014
2/3/2014
2/3/2014

YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES

YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES



‘Nor-Cal=
g

YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES
YES

Servuces



I Kerneos

ALUMINATE TECHNOLOGIES

September 09, 2021

Subject: NOR-CAL Pipeline Services Sewpercoat® Applicator Status

To Whom It May Concern:

This letter is to verify that NOR-CAL Pipeline Services has demonstrated the requisite skill and
training to be considered competent and qualified installers of SewperCoat® products (as
manufactured by Kerneos Inc.) including the low-pressure, wet spray installation method as well as
the high-velocity, dry gunite installation method.

With SewperCoat® being a specialty construction product having very specific installation methods
and equipment requirements, Kemneos Inc. is very selective in our assessment of any contractor
interested in gaining our “approved applicator” designation. This designation is typically required in
project specifications, along with other exhaustive experience and volume of similar work
requirements. Kerneos Inc. maintains a listing of competent and quality contractors that have
demonstrated requisite skill and training to be considered qualified installers of our materials. NOR-
CAL Pipeline Services installation personnel are, and have always been included in this listing.

Installation work is performed with the guidance of a Kerneos Aluminate Technologies
SewperCoat® Manager or his designated factory representative. Their installation crews have
successfully installed calcium aluminate based products in numerous wastewater structures
ranging from manholes to trunk line piping to treatment plant structures. Furthermore, to my
knowledge there have never been any NOR-CAL Pipeline Services SewperCoat® installations
ever questioned.

Should you have any additional questions or comments, please do not hesitate to contact me
directly.

Respectfully submitted,
(signature on file)
Gregory A. Wallace

Manager — Western Region
Kerneos Inc.

Kerneos Inc. - 1316 Priority Lane, Chesapeake, VA 23324
Phone: (757) 284-3200 FAX: (757) 284-3300 176




28v€-808 (0L5) uosydesor ey SUOS ' SeUor 0'0 L09¥8 VO ‘PuBpEO 1S JoleM OES| pUBPRO 10 Lod SL-BN| 022 8l ‘51| puepeQ jo wod wawadeidey Jemag Aleyues jeens /| do-6¢t
9€9/-156 (526) $504 pieyary 1UsIg AlRjues eisod eAuod siojonnisued Ineuobly|  jousig Alejues ejsoQ eauod GL-ady LoLL 8]  IH wesesld SUONEI0T SNOUBA Je Bulr ddiD do-€Et
‘zeurew
5108-058 (SLy)|  Jeousyeg Apuy)| §10j08A4U0Y 1S8NDUODPLYE YD ‘0IS[OLURIS UBS 1884S LOISSIN 0881 SHOM 2iland SLHNM 165 8] odspusl ueg UOIBAOURY juBtLBAB] d3-0t4
10 Jusuedeq 0JSIOURIH UBS 18845 BUBJUIND '§ 8NUAAY [BLO 180/,
12£5-9/8 (916} YuAnH AW 1oUISIQ James Baly OJUBLUBINBS 2856 VO '0IUBIBIOES ‘PROY BUIB0D 00900L| 10MSIQ Jemes eesy OjUBWRIIES Gi-unp 1692 8] owewesnes weloid d2-8.0
Buiur sur uley Jemag sulaey Aepn Jabpasq
1285-9.8 (918) YuAnH AW 1OLISIQ Jemas Besy DJUSLLRIDBS ZRSE VO ‘OUBWEISES 'Peoy 8U1eoD 00800L| 1oMmsIq James ealy ojusuieioes si-unt 8ioL 9| oOuewenes| o8foid d9-820
Bujur suj LiBW Jemes aujaey ABpp JeBpaig
00€5-292 (059) BJIUA Ulj0D| uonINIsuoD BN 0/0¥6 ¥O ‘SOpBQ UBS '188AS W{3 009 sope) ues jo Mo gi-qed €ES 9| soped ueg SL0Z-¥102 d3-910
1OBJUOD/IBMBS ULIOIS pue James Aejiues
0008-06v (015 Aueasq qog S@IRIN0SSY SSIBM| 91956 VO 'SiABQ '9AY SPRIUS L sjaeQ on Si-uep 1202 8 .m_ sjaeQ Buur] Jemes Jue £00-G1
L0vL-8Ly (802)|  Buipensy unsng UONONISUOD UBPPE-ON LLS¥6 VO "BISIA 01 ‘J8ang UBW BUQ EIsiA ol Jo Ao vi-08Q €62 m_ EISIA Oy ddlD Je1BM 7 Jemes 02| €L2-y102
08/2-22L (1L£8) E|iquess elleq pusig Aejues sependisies| 97056 VO "S{IIAUCSIBAA ‘@AY 8%B7 3 BEL| usia Leyues sapendisies #1-AON| 006 8 BfIALOSIEM| 13efosd 6227102
Jjedey Jemes UOKEIS I 0} 8AUQ piasens
0025-228 (S1¥) uigoy SiliiM Kuep g Aosv,q| LY6VE YO "ASiIBA IIN "9AY BJOPEN 810D O AajleA W Jo Ao vi-ony 9zy 8 AslieA N Bur ddID eAuq 26L-v102
ejwoT-joefold usweaaidw Jomes WSYS
G2EL-655 (L) usBauLly wen *ouf 'sme1) 0.0v6 YO 'sopeD uas eeus Wi3 009) SOHBO UBS JO AND) yi-oeal  o0soL 9 sojr) ues 121969 weloid 681-v102
Echum_awm JUBUISSESSY UOHIPUOYD JOMBS:
SZEL-65S (SIY) uebsuui wen ‘oul 'smesQ| €116 YD '9SOf US IS eJe|D ejues "3 00Z| asof ues jo Ao #1100 1€L 9 asor ueg sweoeidey S8L-v102
Jamas Asejues eauq sepinog @ doo oyo3
Z1L9e-9€0 (81.8) uoy UORONIISUOY S1J198d UBDLSWIY| VO 'ojuswealoeg suened pL-unpl  2Z'sel 8l SMO{JIM YOBINY €81-¥102
e 10efald suanien - Aunog usio ZoL AemybiH
¥919-6v6 (059)) 2818 epeuuy| abajjog Ajunwiwed ezuya( JILood |P6 VO 'SliiH SOl S0 'prOY BjUoW |3 GYEZL abajion yi-deg orl ol SO)v 07 uoniejjigeyay bu ddio Jomas, 28l-v10g|
Ayunwwo) ezuyeq [I4iood
0589-Lbb (916)]  Jeubem Wegoy 1OLISIQ JSIBAN BUCIPEY BYET §9656 VO '8llir0iO 'eE6 X08 Od 1oUls|C] Joj2M BuospBi 8xeT ¥1-10 00Z| ¥Z| eucspep exeT Jieday J9ANO WieQ sucipepy exaT 2Zi-v102
00.€-228 (SL¥) 18A0IS WO sauladld Jobuey Aejbue eueiq AND eanA Jo AN pi-Aepy 2858 8'g| A3 eanj aloid uewedeidey pue €91-€102
uoneljgeyay weisAS uonasiio?) JejEMaISEAA!
9€65-2€5 (0€S) uosuyor Ju3 10UISI SeRNNN sutunjon] | 0.£58 VO 'BIOUOS 'PAIG 190BNN G888} 10UISIQ SORIRA suwnjon | yi-unfl  pegel| S1'0L'8'g) BJOUOS olold qeyey James ddld ¥10Z 1801102
0599-65€ (SL¥)| uoweqo afpuUelD Buusauibug gy 19anS uiseq eulyD OLb a71 '8WN-T1D04 v 1-dag] 091 gp| oosiouesq ues uonejiejsu) Jeur] Aeg uoISSIW 280-¥102
001 1-£22 (0€5) oualq ajueie uofiansued V1N 16096 VO 'BY8IA 1eass yunod Lo BYBIA 40 MO 22 €16 9 BaiA V 8iNpayas ‘sjueutaaoiduy 2Lo V102
WeisAg LOf8|IoD P JusunEal | JBjema)sepm
0Lze-gvs (L0 efeg uoser uonanasuo) jneucbiy 10bS6 VO 'esoy ees D AuoiS 69 Bs0y EJUES Jo AND ¥1-Jdy/| 9 es0y ejuesg 18MBg peoy Jould O} AL [eutsnpu] ov0¥102
00L¥-589 (916) 81qoas New oyped Aemeien 09058 VO 'Zru sjuss i Jejue) 608| 2rug ejues jo Ao £1-6ny| Stb| ol 2ru) eS|  Z eseyd Jsweoeidey sorlesey jeans Aeg 9E1-£102
1656-£0¢€ (01S)) efepz uoy sulladid oyoed Aeg|  £06V6 YO ‘l9BjBY LES 'PEOY LIS AQOE| pusia cl-oeq|  ez6l 81 'zl ‘9| leejey ues £102 Uolieiiqeysy U Jomes EEL-EL0T
Mleyues AsjjeA seuyjes) sey
£zZv1-L16 (LE8) Jepuemalg|  joIns|Q JelemalSEM BRIy BuLe) Z6BE6 VO "BULBD '82Y122 X08 "O'd| 101151 J8ieme]sem Baly [puLed €l-noN| 00zt 9| leuued uoneliqeyey ¥Z1-€402
uofioajjo idsaid/zniD 8] Blied £102-2L02 Ad
0092692 (8ov)]  eseInBy udesor|  jowsiq tetem AejieA BieD ejueS|e VO ‘@sor ues ‘A 1dx3 uspewly 06/5] PuIsIa Jelem AsjieA eie|] BluRS ciL-dog 0oL og lleadwe) spuod Aouoon je Buurt esejd-ul-paing €21€102
0066-82¢ (526) §S0 PJBYDYN uIsig €S5¥8 VO 'Zoufiei ‘eveid Jouyw, 6106| PUSIa €1-190 czs 51 '] teasD Inuem]  ssemes Aeyues o Bur ddio-6666 10loid 2Z1-€102
Aigjueg Bis0) BiUOD jBHUSD) Aueyues ejsog eRuoD EAUSD
0028-€92(202) eJie0W 8o nouo wee | Lyere VO 'AslieA N ‘@AY Bispei 8u0Q 9Z| KefeA I Jo Aud €t-dag 5Z2 8 AejleA N ejepaulig ise3 601L-€102
30t X Zlve-vie (602) lleusAw uog euaf jo A0 0v956 YO '8ud} 1S Ujei ise3] | 80| Jo A0 eL-uncl  pBEL 9 ouo] 18foid Z 850-€L0C
8s8ld Uofiejiiqeysy Ul James BAY uoisald|
8zvs-ozy (1€8)|  uewiliom eAelS zrup ejues jo Aol L0E£SE YO 'ZuQ BlUBS 19948 J8|ua) 608 Zrug EjUes Jo Ao €i-qed[  eotg] 0E£GL'9 Znug ewes 0410£-066 Welosd Buiury edig 6Z1L-2102
0£96-8¢6 (602)]  ewefing pisuan) s8187 Jo A 20£56 YO 'saie) ‘jeang ejjoube 02z sasa) Jo Aiio)| €L-18N|  POEE 9 $8180 108[0ld uUoOREIlIIBLSY JBMES Z10Z 611-2102
9€55-2eS (602) uosuyor yu3 oIS semIiN euwnjon] 0£€£56 VO "eouos ‘paig 1966nN 68881 ourstq seRynn auwnjony FARET] ovsL GL's'g BIOUOS Z10Z Buiur edid Jomes 0402102
8€05-807 (916) WiBuD ppo | uogonyisuod Wvg|  E0EYB YO OV Od 1583 1S SHeOM LO6|  1ousiq Aieyues o)y Ofed 1583 gL-unp 061 ¥ oyv ofed jueid jueuneel | 920-2102
0} uoydis-1o8foid LopellEYRY ddID
Jagqunp auoyd JweN Pejuo) 5 Oju] Jaump| Jaumg)| paie|dwo) yifuaq JajaweQ| ©oHe30| Jwep 3fosd Jagquinp qof|
YA-WW adid
saALg dupdig [eD 10N ddID

N



gser-cee (0eS) sjuesald Auew ‘a’n'd eping umoiablosn|  pEecs v ‘umoiebleos Jasuls uleW SZYY| *a'N’d 8piag umojebioas 9L-AON 0/l 8l 'St 'ZL umojabioen) Burun adid d40-802L
9€55-2€S (602) uojiig elAexep| OMISI] SefitN suwinion ]| 0.£56 D "elouos ‘pag 1e66nN geesi 1oUISIQ Senlan auwnjon ) 8l-lep 41014 oL's’'s BiOUOS welold UopEliqRYeN JeMeS ddID 6102 dO-9v.2|
0065-919 (L99) K sueer PuIsIq Alejues Jealy Jo YUoN|  80EE6 VO ‘Pleysieved ‘DAY aslaAlun poz|  1owsig Aenues Jaay jo YUoN 61-ge4 CEL 8| payssaxeg uonelliqeyey ddld dO-vviZ]
- Z abesord uoneyiqeey James Aleyues
0510-892 (£02) punjyem ueiy "5U] ‘UORDMASUOD PUNJUBAA €0656 VO ‘Bxain3 “iq ewiiH 0e8 exein3 jo Mg 61-ged 0S| 9| ejeiny Jedey Aynn eens 3 do-tbiT
00€EL-6¥¢ (526) WBLAN NN ‘au] ‘uolidnusuo) pienbuea Qg4 91866 VO 'OjUAWERIORS '|18aNS YIOE LZLL uofjepodsuel] 81-98( 091 43 HueqaAly PLOBMOD d0-€€L2
jo Juswpedeq ewsoped FOL - Aunod snejsiuels - 261 2 804 1o suese)
8LyL-292 (80Y) ULOW Auouiuy seujjadid uoisald) YOEYS VO 'OV Of8d "0 Jayod 09LE) S89SMUL JO pieog 81-AON [ [ oyv ofed peoy i obed 050t d9-28L2
AsieAun) “Jr piojuels pueen
6£88-08¢ (606) Zouluew soueg spwsiq SLyZ6 VO sjowsig gL-AON 06 0} | oulpsewag ueg syeday d0-6zZ.¢2
leads Auno) oupseweg ueg|  ‘oulpiewsg ueg ‘aueT AlelidsoH ‘M Z2z|  |eeds Aunod oulpseweg ues Buiui diis 1dassau| aye AejjeA UaBID) 61 VSD
¥886-259 (916) ueboH [eeYoIN| "ouj ‘uogonnsuoy BuussuBbug pAID 6956 VD 'PUBIPOOA 'S 1511 00E| PuUEIPOOAA JO AD 81-100 1ges| aL'sL's’e PUBIPOOAA efoid d0-£2.2
juswedeidey pue Jjedey Jemes @ JIEM B810Z
6660-6€6 (£02) euuQ Apui) “diog oytord WaypoN LISY6 VD 'BISIA OIY IS UIB 8uQ), elsIA oy Jo Ao 81100 S66¢€ 89| BISIA O1Y 1oefold d3-6112]
ddIQ Jemes 9 Jejem gLOZ BISIA ol Jo AiD
€120-28¢ (602) zZeAey) plueqg joulsia GOESH| 1°L81g glL-deg [4 2z BpsuB|J| ddIS/IAD .21 epeueld 409122
$80jAJ6g Aunwiwo) epeus|d| vO epeusid 506 X08 '0'd IS Y80 8A E0L|  Sedjues Ajunwuwo) epeuBld
ZL1e-056 (0es) uoJebieg yeses UIsig uoyejueS aaxan || 19196 vO ‘edxonuy ‘aauq Jabisor yoezL PUSIqQ vohieiues 9a)ons| 81-AON eeLL §L'8'9 eeNonJ] | eloid 8L0Z uonejpqeyay aulladid do-bLic
8ELp-29% (L02) uesuar ssny uoponsuo euRID| 91856 VO ‘ojuslURIIRS 18NS LIOE LZLL uopepodsues| g4-bny/| 14 172574 O{OA| YOE6D0) dO-1 422
J0 uswipedaq ejuwojied -€0# ABUBAQ '2U0D papuog €1} LY - suened
8v.7-629 (526) Sujiod eipor Auedwog suljed ‘a T 8502 ABssu3 jo wawypedag "s'n gL-bny [ 8 o)y ofed Zv H 0} EPHIN dD-7192
20 'uoibuiysepn "“any eduspuadapul 000 - 80 g Jeou Jledoy James AlejiueS - OVIS
2990-b1p (LYG) ueyleN opease) noAnsis 16098 VO 'B¥8IA “1S UNno4 L0/ BYUA Jo AtD I CE 9'y B8IA welaid uohaligeyaY 184S UoBaIO ‘N 40-8192]
G2E1-655 (GLv) uebsuuld wer] au) ‘'smiet) €SSP6 VO 'Zaumey ‘eoeld Joyw) 5105 pusiq 8L-hf 17274 8| EpuuQ 1 958lUd SUOIIBAOUBY 1OMaS EPULQ UHON dD-2192
Aejueg B)S0) BAUOD [EAUSD
oole-Ley (218) leLUOUAA pPRIg QL7 'dnosg uoponasuos Asjuny 10092| @L7 'dnous) uoganisuos Astup) 61-1BN 558 9y puOWIYDY WBISAS JOJBMBISBAN [BLISNPU] da-2042
XL ‘uoibully 3 pAg [Bioseuu0d LOEL
8ovL-2ee (0es) juels ydesor|  -ou| ‘UoRonuiSUDD MUBLY T HBGOY| 91856 suenB) glL-Jdy/ oLz 8L uosyoer 188LY0L - g JOUIW suesied d0-680Z
VO ‘ojuswesdes 'Joold Wiy 1S UIoE L2/L
00.0-81Z {858) BULBIN %Y siopnasuod| 10128 VO ‘obeiq ues ‘008 €1S 1S 8 Lov (OVANVS) siusuuarco 81-4dv 002 [ ofis|q ueg| ddl0 .0t Pielsii Aeqesie| d3-2202
WsueJL 1s800-PIN DLOW Jo uopsppossy ofel] ueg
pOEL-612 (0€5) KoQoW Isor siAeq on vD 'sineq ‘061 LS "Id neejsno) 0oz} luawabeueyy senyoed staeq Jn 8l-gad 0s 4 siaeq 18Ul ddiD edid Jejepp 83BUNS H3D d0-2861
0188-Z.€ (916)]  udBqIUNW N100S UORINIISLIY s8jseH B SLNOIW SYBS6) Aejlep sseio jo A si-hen|  gzpig 0L'8'8f ABllA ssBID) welold| d0-0881
V0 'AefieA sseio ‘jeans e 1se3 gZL uope|pawiey |3 | AS UopaeljoD Jemes
¥615-02¥ (L£8) sanjo eAeq zru) ewes jo Ao 08056 1) eues Jo Ao 21-38Q Gg| 8L 2n1) eues Buur AsusBieWs 1S UBEIO d0-2/81
VO 'ZniQ Blues ‘Loz Wy 1S Jelusd 608
1eeLvee (916)]  WeDIW peeudly UORINNSUOD WOWIBESE VO 'ANID BANA “PAIE JBlUsd JIAD LOZL A0 BanA jo Ao 8l-1el L2g (24 A0 BanA wewadeide ebpuR J8A1Y JeLiBe IS UIS d0-el8L
9£66-2€5 (0£5) suosled peyd UASIQ SeinN suwnjon ] 0.£56 VD ‘eJouos ‘palg 1966nN 5888l PUISIQ Seninn suwnjon] | 21-unt|  opsolL 9 vl BIOUOS oelold qeysy Jemes SagIo do-08¢
0568-2.8 (059) BiaquneN yer 00sjoURI4 UBS 'S Jo AID V3 ‘00spuel4 UBS S '8AY odei GLE 008[oURIY UBS LpNOS 9l-18BN{ 00281 0L '8 ‘9| oosfoual| G10Z-PLOZ UoRENIGBYSY Jamas AlBjueS d9-582,
ueg ‘g
9/9/-2€9 (015) ltawod aor JaisaH B MNOIW|  090S6 VO ‘ZruQ BjueS 198G UBSIQ LOL ouUIsig uoneyues znij eues S1-AON L¥9) [4% zZnij ejueg 1oeloid uonedoiay BUIPUNLY, UIND 8iqoN dO-vET
9/9.-¢e9 (015) 8U0IBD BAY J9)S9H P QUNOOW]  ZLOY6 VO ‘PUBPIRO 18anS UlpuRL] 0091 HsuelL QY| IR Sv2 8 puBpRO SUOfIBOCIBY AN 80UBAPY YiSUBIL OV d3-£€2]
12z1-586 (L02) lisuysng sy Auedwog uononisued Mo LOVS6 YO ‘Bsoy ejues ') Auals 69 BSOY BlUBS JO AIID §1-bny| o] 8|  esoyeueg SjuBBACIAW| JBIEM 8 Jamag aAL(d buo 40002
9002-Lby (5L} NobIZoW siuueq seutiedid 0'eQ| 0L0V6 VO ‘sweBujing ‘peoy esosuld L0g| swsbuipng Jo At SEAP 00¢| r4X awebuiing 06v28 d3-€02
"ON 198foid A0 ujRIQ ULOIS PoowoquBiaN
0ov98-65v (SLp) Jesoy uyor mopus g esoibben|  LO6YE VO ‘loejey UBS ‘pAIg Jaway 4os2 ouIsIg Alepues AsjieA ssoy gL-das| o00zoL| 8L°'0L'8'9] owasuy ueg GL0ZIYLOZ Ad Aejues Aejep ssoy do-6LL
PUE pleyuey
9€65-2£6 (802) uosuyor 3 HISIQ SeRN suwnion) 0DZEGE VO 'BI0UDS "PAIE 19BBNN G888 L 10USIQ SeMiRN suwnjon )| I 0L'8'9 BJOUOS 100fald UOENIIGEURY JoMeS ddID G102 a0-241
0025-2.% (1€8) Aingsyes uor abefiod Ayunwusod ojiuged £0056 VO ‘soidy ‘aAuq [anbos 0059) aboji0D Aunwuwiod ojluged gi-unf|  olse 8’9 sojdy| 128fo.d By Jemes Aueyues 1oz, d0-Z9
JaquinN auoud BweN Pejuo) »] ofu| JAUMD Jaump paaidwol{ yduay q uone’o] awep Pafold JBquUINN qof
YA-WW adig
sapAsag dutppdig [B) JON  ddID

0|



o)l

80v1-626 (0€5)) 8{leH ejuuog UORINUAISUO] 320 N 10y L0666 VD 'sillasAieiy 1880 B £0L uopepodsue) ), 81-100 1] ¥Z| Aunod uveio Ze A d3-99/2
30 Juswyedaq ejuolED 8J€)S U0 UOiONQSUOD- POSKO L-E0 SUBNIRD
0025-228 (511} olnL argeW| oy 'uononnsuod AMeH B Ao1v,Q|  EOLPS VO '095IURL UBS 1S 19NN SSLL SYOM olland Jo ‘idag BL-nr 14 gL} oOdIsioueld ueg sjuswanacsdulf ‘aay nojed d0-69/2
‘09stoueld UBS JO AUNoD B AlID)|
ZiLov-v6e (092) B1aqpioD) Mew| Bupesuibus yus 1ZLZ6 VO| sJopnusuo) ysusl] 1s800-pIN B1-NON 8v2 D oba|] ues; Bujur d9-v942
‘ofie|Q UBS ‘001 8YNS '8AUQ BAINd8XT 06EY| ddlD JamMes aAy Boqjed -1oafald 15800DIN
6122892 (1€8)|  UBUM JeouadS| Auedwo Yooy apueId 09058| slooyas Ao znig eues oz-dv| 8152 9'y Zru) ees | aseud d0-0942
V3 'ZUD elUeS ‘peoYy 3SOr UeS pIO S0V joeloid uolieziwepop (0oyas ybiH lenbog
9902-e2.(602) sebuKdng soueds PUIsIg 8BESE VO ‘UOJUIM ‘ABM UIUIM N 1569 Pusia 61190 808 8| UOJUIM, VOZ Siny ‘8AY InuUeA d0-68642]
Jameg Aejues B JBJBM UCIUIM Jemeg Aiejueg 2 JBIBAM UOJUIM|
9£66-2€5 (602) uojiiq ejAexe 1UISIJ SeNN Suwnion | 0.EG6 VO 'Biouog “pAig 1866nN Ge8gl 1OUISIA SeniNN auwnjony | 6l-Ae pSoY| oL '8’'9) BJOUOS, 18lold uoheliqeysy Jemas 6102 d0-9vi2
£109-85¢ (202} ouQ pey 1PUIsIq uopejues eden 86516 VO ‘BdeN 'py Auad {02508 GLGL 191siq uopelues edeN 81120 vEL| 4 edeN weiboid jojid qeyey jeseie] Jeddn THLLLZ]
€282-196 (L02)|  JouuoD,0 auelq 66e1g wod Jo Ao 2€v56 vO 'Dbesg pod ‘uipjueld ‘N 9L 66esg wod jo Ao st 2695 z1'8'e B6esg poJ 198l0id (ddID) 8did-oeid-ul-paInNg 6102 d0-€642
ogel-L6v (09L)]  Busapiod uew Buuasuibuz YUS 121268 ¥O| sJopannsuo) Ysues] jSe0T-PIN 61-AON 8v2| Sl 068 ues| Bupit oI d0-v9L2
‘ofielq UeS ‘001 BYINS '9AUQ BARNDOXT 068Y| 18M3S YU|-G| 8AY BOGRE-106l0id 1SBOODIN
cevi-Lee (508) Az[3 ueqQ "Ou1] 'UONONISUOD siolg £10€6 v2 "edaiudied IS Uig 00gS usiq Aleyues eusiuidie) Li-deg £0E SL BINjUBA 190l01d JoMaS Jead/Wnid d0-£891L
00EE-LEv (0LE) Joyeg ueg|  ssojonusuoD Jopuiod eaysusiem| 21006 vo 'sejebuy soT f Bze)d Aemeree) | sefebuy 807 jo A1D 6L-AON geLL| sLziL'ol's poomalbu psloid Jopluog jisueif Xy/meysussd]  dOLBo-¥ioZ
1ZzZL-vee (916) Jelo aug uolINNSUOD WOW 91866 suesyed 61-AON :7x4 og'vg| Aunod eqgnal 02 AMH-¥08031-£0 Suesed d3J-€8.¢
O 'ojuswelaes 1oojd Wiy IS WOE L2/1
g58v-5v9 (916) 18po) Aesed uoROILYSUOD Jeydte L 81966 Biwojlied ‘ejjaesoy afinesoy Jo Ao PAS Ly 009 9 ajliAes0Y V1 8seyd - sjuswencidu| dO-8851
1S UOLWOA | LE| 8YS g LojisAcuey spunalbiied Ajunog Jedeid:
9628-0.8 (0£S)|1elieywniq mapuy| *ou| "Buuasuibu £0666 'VD 'gdV aeag eans v ZLibe g4y ejesg ARy =748 9| g4v sjeeg MOIA UIRIUNOW seINNN Jleday - 84V ejeeg d0-08s1
g UONDNASUOY Jeis YHON
0085-199 (0ES) BINWDY ALBYS| PUBIPOO 0 A)tD) G6956 VO 'PUBIPOOAN 18848 1SJid DOE PUBIPOOM 30 K3 Ziunpl 0021 ¥ PUBIPOOM| 1efaid Buur (248l 102 PURIPOOM, dO-£651
vrvo-Les (0es)| Duonsuuy sejiN uofonIsSUoY Hasung 9656 YO "MeauD Inujeaa| ou) 'spenyosy uoAury uewiLely L1-Aen 20e ] edeN GeYey SewoH ed edeN d0-v6vi
2Ot 8lInS "pAlg puepieQ L08L
929/-2£9 (015} AiseH Auep 101581 B 2UNDON| 87956 VO ‘UIOOUITS g 009 ugeaur jo Ao Li-heW [¥22 9| ujoauT Ul JOIBM d0-vapl
PUE JaMag Jaaus Yig 1se3) - ujodurT jo AD
9060-65. (GLY) Ay suyd| ‘0U| ‘UOKDNUISUDD SPOOM T N 85576 VO ‘edeN 'py Ausd [09508 GLGL usig uonelues eden Li1-Re|  8ZSSLf 9L ‘0L ‘8 9| edeN| joaloid uoneyiiqeysy weysAS uoRosloD L10T dJ-6vblL
00.1-€18 (829) uaAg edue’] U] 'sUoS puB UolPd SHIN 1€116 VD 'SIUow |3 ajuol 13 Jo A0 11~y 001 8 EE] 8AY Uosulor/pAIg Aol A/PAIR dO-Lebl
pieAeinog AolieA €eel | BUOWEN-SUB]d Jualuarcidw] James
zeer-129 (SLy) Aposg Jequid Buussuibua uoisoald( £0L¥6 VO '09SPUBIL UBS IS 19BN SGLL S$HOM liGnd oosiouesd ues Li-idy 18| ZL '0L| oostouesd ueg soulsIg d0-8l¥l
8pIsa|Bul/J0IS{EOXI/UZEIWY JBHI0ID LEG-MM,|
000¥-6¢€6 (916)] 48500 auipersg Bupoeiuo? usieqqecy) osve| Auedwos ouioeig B seO oUped Ll-1eN 85LL 9 'yl PpUOILIY uopeyiqeye | d0-LLE1
EjUIojeD ‘PUOLILDIY '18aS WILZ S 00L L leJeje] Jomas-0S puowLdY 339d|
o6l0-Le€ (L) UOHBI Mapuy| -au| ‘sulpdid meug| €0LY6 VO '03sioueIy UBS IS 19BN SGLL SHJOM Jland odsiduelg UBS FAR ) | 8% Cl| oosioueld ues suoneAcuy d0-89¢4
JUBWIBABY pZ "ON SUONEDOT SNOLEBA
9829-G€5 (80Y) BBUOIBS |IUeAY] asor ues jo AND €166 VD '9SOf UBS 8sof ues Jo Ao L1190 SLpvZfiL ‘ZL'0L '8 '9| osof ueg 1) abexoey do-teel
1S BJB|D ees "3J 00| L1-91L02 siedey] Jemas AieiuBS-65ER
Lov2-8Lv (602)|  Bulweney unsng UORONJISUOD UBPPEe oW 10256 VD 'Uopools uoppROIS Jo MY Ll-qed| 88l 8 UopPdOIS SO0SLIN d0-0zel
19a.S opeso(d I3 'N SZ¥ ‘oN j193l01d uogieniqeyey J8mas ABNUES G10Z|
0002-2¢¢ (sov) 18}|EM 8ABIS! UGHIONIISUCD BjIueID) 9Z6E6 VD 'sejezuon sofgzuos jo Ao LL-190 096 8'g| sojezuoD uoneNiqeUeY UsWeABd 1864S Bl d0-064}
10848 Yunod i
0l.6-v/8 (802) AajooQ |atueq ‘ou| ‘Buusauibul| 91856 VI ‘OlusWEIORS '1989AS UIOE 8TL) uopeuodsugas | JASEE okl 8l uoisBuA] 06LHL-04 -# d0-60EL
|e1auag) g bulaed s Aajsua j0 Wwewyedag eruoyed wolosd 0L wUISIG-duRILD UoISBLIAN sueneD
6820-€68 (20L)) zosnp [enBiN ‘ou} ‘Bunoenuol nwint| 91866 vO ‘oetuesoes 1884S WoE [Z21 uopeodsugs || PAS: E] S.9 Sl BpoWelyY PPPSSL-H0 "ON j08lold suened dO-L0E1
10 Juewnuede( ejusogied -Bpawely U AemybiH ojeS Jo uofioNAsU0D)|
ZivL-808 (aL6) wesing Aieg sanuin 22856 VD ‘OJUBWRIOBS ‘2AY UIGE GBEL saimn Jo LL-uer) (A3 oL's| owswees uolONPaY Jemos | 3 | 195004 YInog| d0-18zZ1
0 awpede ojuaweloes Jo A) wawpeda(j ojuaweoes Jo AN
288¥-129 (SLY) Apaig Jequiy GuuseuiBu3 uojsioaid) GOLY6| Auedwo) au1oei3 g seD ayPed) Li-uep 05| zl efjiaueg Jjgday Jemas - ‘pY AsifeA UsBID dJ-8/2L
v 'oospuei] ues Y18ens I0MeN SvT
8L¥L-zoz (gov) ufsn | uoser saugadig uojsald G156 VO ‘Eboisile ‘leans eye 0gsl ouisiq 91-03Q /8 ¥z ebojsied) aur d0-¢ezt
jooyas peyiun wior ebojsied as .42 ddI2 - [004os Alejuswaj3 ebojstied
$250-902 (SLY) iieH fepsy 0L 'SI0]0BAUOT ISONT-LOD <0LYE VO ospurl ues jo Ao 9L-AON zie Cl| oospueld ueg uofieaousy jusuaaed d3-2121
'008{oURI UBS '|d #BIP00S) g uoiBD Jd L 'eAY asjiebusiy ‘2 ‘aAY MBIA puBlIS 1S Bjen3
Jaquiny 3uoyd SwepN Pejuo) 5] o4ug JAUMO JumQ paeidwor|  y1dud Jndwelq uopeIo awep afolg Jaquiny Qo
YA-WIN adid
saARRG aulpdig BD JON  ddID



0510-892 (£02)] pURjUBM URKY “2U] *UOHONASUCD PUNIYBAA 1EVS6 B6eig wod Jo Ay 0Z-rON 009 %4 66e.1g pod 0202 1deg ddI uyou) Lz sun d0v.L08
v ‘Bbeig vod '1eans upueld ‘N 9Ly Jameg pajied- 1oafold Aousbiewz utey Jemas
6802-2.8 (S1Y) Aeq uey “3U] 'UOJINLISUOD SPOOM M| 09066 V3 "2ZnuD Bjues 19ang ueeap Lo.| Pusia 02-2eQ 291 9 Je 3 oy 108fo.d UofENIigRUeY Jemes JeIN (8] 01N d0}L05
uopepues Aune zni) ejues
¥82y-G/8 (916)|  uosudm wepy| Auoyny Jejepn Ajuno) ojusweLeS VO ‘ojuswesdes "ul A60j023 0996 Auoyiny| 02Z-1°0 08| (24 ojuBWEesIes qeyey lleANQ WnNY JajeAA ojuawesoes| d0-5905
Jajepa Ajuno) ojuswelses
¥€55-5.2 (0€S) Juug ujAey uopannsueg deaso uebiow|  €0098 VO ‘Buippey ‘Aem Biediud L0502 UL UiAed 0220|000k ¥z|  Awunod oA 0202 1snbny - sjeaun uabilow qausy d0-0905|
JBMag SUDRBIO0T SNOLEA SUBLIED - OJOA|
80vL-zze (0ES) yuesq ydesof[  ou) 'uondnuisuo) yueld T Heqoy 10656 V2 'elsiie 1930 g €02 suel] |ed az-120 €5 9g| Jopewly eyeT] suoneao snoueA @ Lyl sinoy d0-6505
092L-61L (01S) AoQ paL| UORONRSUO] BUAAO PSES8 VO '01S0POW '1eans WOl 0101 ojsapow Jo Ao 02-dag] 0§ [43 ojsapo qeusy Jemas dIMM 2L d0-8606
6¥98-2€6 (602) $3.0]4 uoaweq uopIo0lS Jo AND 90256 VO 'UOMROIS ‘aaug AABN 00SZ uoppaIs Jo Aito [r4 <] zol Sl uopols adid ebieyasiq sesaAele? Ul JeNns dO-4506
LIES-EPY (L0  sebuzueg e Auedwog sjoerld-10010N 10658 VD 'Byeng 19enS Y LES eyaund jo Ao 02-28Q gozz| 9oL'sL'vL's| mjeuny sjuswencdul| Jemes exein3 jo AN d3-9508
1009-9¥b (526) 18204 aaed| -ou| ‘Buipess g Buined seliy) Aeg £95v6 VD ‘epus0 ‘AeMm BPULQ 22 SHIOM| 0z-28Q 06Y| aL Bpuuo uolieljigeyay Juswaied enUUY 02oZ| d0-£505
aiand Jo Jojoaua 'epuuQ Jo D)
¥615-02¥ (L€8) SoNj9 8ABQ| 2rug ees Jo Ao V3 'ZnIQ Bues 1884S Jajual 608| 219 ejues Jjo Lo 02-AON 0025 WY 01,9 2n ses 0202] d09r05
Ainp qBUBY JOMES LLOIS 6102 LD BlUBS
9065-152 (916) Kewo4 Ar uipQyhauoie ¥1L8S6 VO 'olueweIoeS 18aAS [ SZEL sisauibuz lg-qed 056 14 ojuswesdesg | 19eQU0D 82A87T ISBT JeAlY olusweldes d3-€v05
-jedeueq euely 30 sdiog Auuy seiels panun -910Z S8INES 4 UOWLOY JBAY Ueduswy
1Z10-628 (916) piogng juowe OHISIQ Jemes Baly OjustueIIes 12868| 1ouls|g Jemes easy OUBWBIOES oz-inr oL 2| ojustueIoRS Buur W sed %eel) apealy d0-2e05
VO 'ojusilieIogg ‘proY SLBo 09001
80 1-526 (05) 9o uelg UDRONNSUOD YO0Y N llod| 91866 VO "OluaweIoes 18ans WIoE 2221 suened 0z-6nv/| 68 ¥z} Auned esnjo)) sefunod d0-1E0S
uug|s pue esnjod IA-POYSO L-€0 SUBNIRD)|
£926-68. (1€8) Zeusuwir (ool 077 Buipess) ey do). 09056 sueie) 0Z-n7| 00l 2| uojied| sysday d0-6206]
VO ‘Zru) EBueS 'g eiing ‘leans sioang ovi ujRJ(q uLoS- Sledoy peang Aoustiaws
96bT619 (SLY) uoliwes yyey U] ‘smesn €65Y6 YO 'ZBUINBW '90BId Jouw| 610G Pusia 02-99Q 6192 oL's ajliaueq € 8sBld suoheaoudy Jemeg sfilaueq d0-9208
Aejiues ejso) BU) [eRuUs)
88EL-G26 (80V)|  ElsyouY JewlioT SHIOM 2liand €1156 VO ‘asor SHOM SHiand| lg-uer|  90LZH 8'o esof* ues 1| eBaxoad d0-2208
Jo wewyedaq ‘asor ues jo AD| ues 'oold wig ‘1eens eiejD Blues jse3 00z| 4o Jusuiedeq ‘esor UBS o AlIO 020Z-6102 Ad siigday Jamag AiBjiues £226|
1828-1€6 (60g)|  oorobeseyo 4y waunsedeq 90256 VO ‘UOP0IS ‘aAuq AABN 0062 wewyedeq 0z-des ore| ¥ uopOOIS uonejiqeyey adid abieyasia d0-6108]
Saninn [edouniy uoPPOIS Jo AND SeninN leddiuniy OIS jo AItD uonels duind WIoIS YUON episyoosg
6561-566 (916) X0J H0 *ou] ‘Bupeauibul xoD "3'0| L9956 VO 'elsedeld Jeans Jejual LOLE ofjjARBId jo AltD og-unp oovL 8 sljinedeld] | eseyd-joefoid uohezZIgEIS PEOY OJINbsoN d3-2406]
Loco-sav (202) dwed Auepw! sueIpY] owogd 0166 V0 ‘Asj|leA poompay '| peoY 062E SUBIpU} OWod JO oz-unp ££92) ] Aajiep SBjoyUE P SUIBW JeMag Jo Bulun d40-2005
40 pued JOAR] et AsliEA poompay pueg JaAry Sl AsjieA poompay poompay
1656-€0€E (015) eAeiezZ uoy *2U) ‘LUONONASUCD SPOOA T €01L¥6 VO '0dstoueld SHIOM 2liand Jo deq Lg-uer €42 48 09s{ouRLY atusoeidey Jomes)| d0-0008
ueg “Jool Uiy 1eang 1exseiN SGLL| ‘oostousd ueg jo Aunod g At ues PUB GEf "OUSY JUaLLIBAR UORBIOT SNOUBA
S00L-0v9 (91€) Aoid oI 07171 'sieuped |910H 8sor ues 90909 "0 "sseupied |910H asor ueg ozZ-uer 00¢ SL'zL asor ueg| podiy asof ueg asnoH NeAH 3 aoB|d NRAH d0-108¢
i ‘obeanyD ‘ezeid episieAly IWON 051
1882-p.€ (200 SOW0Y UalBAA|  -ou) ‘BURRABOXT SBLLIOE) *3 UBLIBAA L26V6 VO 'BISIA O} ‘leans uje | BISIA O]y Jo A0 0zZ-unp 2502 8L'8'g BISIA Oy diD Jemes 2 J8IBAA 6102 d0-86.¢]
8L¥L-29z (sob) IsU9 sewer saulRdid uojsaid 90€6Z OS 271 "lwewdotarsg 61920 G865 i juoutieg uswsoeidey jomes olidnd peoy Aempeoig d2-8842
‘Binquepedg ‘Zop 8iNg ‘Jeeng sequng 0oL 010 0/2 D71 "sefioH juowjeq
1210-528 (a16)]  miogng owen|  joinsiq Jemes ealy ojswBeS) 128G8| 10MI8|Q James geuy ojuBWIRIOBS Oc-iBNf €28V 8'gjnoD ol Buury d3-/8/2]
V0 ‘ojuswieides 'paoy eyeos 0800+ auT LB - 19efoid uotonpey i/ BPUTT o)y
9518-6e5 (602)| ltepoon) Auoyuy SWISAS atewy) eluioHeD 15056 *ou| ‘seibojouyoa ] Juaby| 61-AON 0s¢ e el ejues Jieday adid ssejysual) Youl-pg| d0-88.2)
VO 'BIBD BUES “PAI }88J) SUBABIS LOES)
0066-026 (80¥)]  LOSIBpUY UIAGY “2U] ‘UOONASUGD 805¥6 wsIa 6L-190 €€ 9 uojesesld (y00-L} dID) SiusweAcidw| d0+8.2]
Buusauibu3 Joed Uosiepuy| YD 'ucjuesesid ‘8foJID 89J8WIW0T SE0.L §80{AJ8S UOWBY UBS UIIGNA pue uojsuedx3 uojeluslIPes ABuild
1zzl-vee (9t6) Jesp ouz uononsue WOW L0656 VO ‘eliashiel Jeans g €0, siapenbpeeiy 61-AON| oLe o€ ‘v Aunod eqnj| #0903 1-€0 -2lasliep JeeN d0-€8.2
€ jousiq ‘uoepodsuel) 00 BANA Ul 0L AMH 91B1S UQD Uoiionisuod
6988-225 (51¥)]  Jeubelies jeoN seujadid Jebuey 60GY6 VO oigeiqg eneq oz-en| 6902 89 iod Aegy A 8seid sipday] jemes juiod Aeg d9-28.¢
‘yoojuy ‘AemybiH yoopuy-finasiid 0052,
€EVP-G.S (28) 6697 qog EE] 91956 uopepodsues) 6L-190 00t [72 funog vB0ZY0L- AUNoD auwnjon) d9-08.¢
VO ‘OjueWeIoes '69-SW 1884S WIOE L2/1 Jo daq elwojiie Jo ejels suwnpny| - 801 AemybiH 8ielS - BuLIT BRAIND YoUIFpE
¥809-9¥ (526) 887 uelig "2 ‘UOfIONASUCY [@ARTPUNAID) 16926 VO "supny ejORD) 61000 GoY| [FAT Aejarieg Jjedey] pue Bupes] uRIQ LLOIS d0-€4/2]
Jo Aysseatun i) jo sjusBbo oyl |
0060-696 (9L6) JloH uelig uoRoNIISuUOY uooesq 855p6 YD ‘edEN ‘enusAy OUBJOS SSOP 271 YeumQ Apadosd eden 81120 0£s 8] Auno) edeN Bujun d49-89.2
ddlD You-8- AelieA edeND xeulajepm eyl
Jaquinp auoyd Awen PLo)| D) 04U| JAUMD JaumQ paladwod|  yiduan Q) uofie’o] swey Pafoid 1aquiny qof
YA-WW adid
sapArag dulpdig [BD JON  ddID

(@]



69€90€ V101
6018-206 (08€) ojbasy) exer) Uoflonnsuog cow) 71626 HO ‘OUBIUQ 'J88AS Ul MS phv HO "ouBu jo Ao Lg-AoN| b0 ye'iz'sl  ¥O 'ouBu0 1o0fold qeysy SS 020Z| LE000ON
9684-GES (80Y) 01 uukq asof ues Jo AWD| €1156 VD 8SOr UBS IS BuelD elueS “J LOZ 8s0f" ues Jo &Y, czuen| szier 8'9 8SOf UBS £ IOVMOVA 1202 £E0000N
0202 A4 SHIVAIY ¥IMIS AUVLINVS-0096
LILy-€6/(80%)| uosdwoy sewer| 850" UBS Jo AYO[ €118 VD 8Saf Ues 1S BielD Bjues '3 002 8s0f Ues Jo A1 Zz-uer|  8siLL 8'9 asop Ues AL IOVHOV 1202-020Z Ad SHIVAIY LEO0OON
HIMIS AMVLINYS-2086
068-c28 (0£5) Bunyen eoue’ VMO #0956 ¥ 'wnany 0,69 Xog ‘O'd VMOd 12-nON ocY| vzxsL unqny| lueg uewaal4 Bunn ddid dWO 620000N
vELE-815 (0LL)]  sovonL essliop] subjejuowsuel || $08P6 VO 'PUOLILOIN PUOtLLDYY J0 KD 1z-bny 0£9) vZ '8l PUOLILIY| qeyey Jemes uLoiS subjeluowsuel ] 92000ON
‘012 8IS “1d PUZ ‘BZB|d JBjued DIAD OSY
12zL-586 (L0L) 1ueBipo1) juaig UoHIDMAISUOD MOO/D 91856 VO 'olusweloes suene) L2-6ny| 66 0g}  Awnoo exe aja JomoT) SZO0OON
'Ly089L X08 "O'd 'tr-SW 189S UI0E J2/) JEaN "0 84E U] AMH 8)1S UQ UoHianAsUoY
¥08€-.85 (0€S) HOM 8j8uLY| ouIstq uoneyues eexon) 91186 VO eayonu| ig Jebeor yoezL OUISI] UohBIIUBS BadONSL 1Z-00|  opL Sl b9 8oMoNI| | 1202 108fosd qeyey euliadid ZZO0OON
0v8Z-6€6 (SL¥)|  uewun jpeuUIIN “ou] 'smesg vOLYS| Ketarpieg Jo Ao 1z-Bny| 1861 ¥Z'0L ‘9| Aeioeg| Iv 13 IS 1epaD U TN U0 108f0id GeyeY SS| LZODOON
vO 'Kejoriag ‘J0oid Uiy Jeang sejued Lpel
€166-092 (51¥)]  weybuung e 4800 L0L¥6 VO "0ospoues| 34SaN Lg-deg SS1 Gl| oospuri] ueg Jiedoy Jamas abeieo NN Hd 4SoN 6L000ON
UBS 100l pug 1eaus BIoSSUUIN 150
0z.1-802 (015) J8)Iy HOIS WD paiepliosuod} 8/6v6 v ‘0JpuEeT UBS JQ juouLie GOz Ajuno) epawely| Lg-unp 0L ¥Z| oJspueeues Jieday uies(] ULOIS [e)dsoH Juoulie 810000N
8zZL5-€2L (S08) BZnog uyop uofjorulsuo) euel sotel| Lopes vo 'odsiqo sin ues 4S rienbiH 0% G S| surge) 1 2-AON| o8t $74 Asuajuopw qeysy Jomas uLoIS #0ZGW 1-50 suened ¥LO00ON
1Z10-5/8(916)|  ployngiuowe|  joulRsIq James ey OjusWEIIES| /2866 YD OlUSWRIOBS POy B80S 09001 |1auIsIa temas eely OlUBWEIDES wz-unp|  Lize 9 BpUI 01y Buiur ZLO00ON
8UI UIBW - Z 1080ud LoRanpay i/l epurt oty
9v20-9¥6 (602)|  oueABN opiedly Uopi0)IS 40 Hod 10256 VO 'Uapiaols ‘880Z X08 ‘O'd UOPROIS 0 1od 1z-Aen| 008 2L'8'9 UopioIs QeYSY ddID UONT0IS JO Wod| LLODOON
8182-966 (£02)|  uolbuibpT Aus VOH Asjiep uoow 9456 VD BWOUOS IS WIS LOOL VOH AajeA uoopy 1z-ken 050l zl ElLIOUCS buiuea|) sames Asjjep UCOW 600000N
62vS-6YY (£02) YHws qooer siilABIRA JO AUD)| 86056 VD SllIABORA IS JUBYDION 069 sjlAedRA Jo A0 120 oevz| Ot'lZ'ie sjiiAeoeA qBYaY JeMOS HunI] BIW(3 80000ON
96v2-619 (GLY) uowwes yiaiy ‘ou| ‘smet) 9806 VO 'SieAAULNS ‘BAY BAIO M 951 sjeakuung jo A1 ZZ-1dy| 58L| lzvz'sl'gl sjeaduung L0-LZMd ‘ON uolhejliiqeyay GODOOON
Jamag Aejiueg Aepn ssasdx3 eocuaimen
0¥8Z-6E6 (SLY)]  uemupy] |seydN ETTREL T £0Lv6 BjwogeD ‘costuriy oaspueld ueg Jo Ao 1z-des OLE| Gl| oospusid ues| juswedeidey URW JejeAn pue Juewededey| £0000ON
UBS 'JOO|] Uiy ‘1eans 1eneN G511 Jomes ‘uoflenousy juewaned|
8LL8-09.L (SLY) Apoug Jequiy ‘ou) ‘Buueauibug uotsaly €0LY6 BlLLOMEY ‘0ISIOUBIY osuRl UBS Jo A0 1g-unf %74 ZL| oosiuelyueg Ob#t SUOHeACUDY JUBWIBABY TA LODOOON
Ues '00jd Uly 1eans 19ien G611
9212-166 (80V)|  |eganunaN ujled) saujjadid uoisesd GOEYS Ayssaaun piojums L8N 88 (4} PiojuBiS|  qeuay Jemes LuolS piojuels 'z yd uensen 406805
VO ‘piojuEls ‘10014 pug ‘Bulpis sjeuog s2e
ceelsse Ammmv Nueyq we] | uononnsued uelsuyD saeq $G9E6 VO .>0=uaom Jow.aw Ws LLLL >w_uwwm o 3_0 FN¢Q< FAN TA clb >O_U$m | eseyd wEwEm>o._nE_ /Ay mc_ccmz dOE80S
102556V (£02) Jebuep uyop and Aeg ebepog v0 ‘eg ebepog “Hed ueioQ 562 s 0z-08Q) €51 0L ']  4eg ebepog qeysy eun ebeulelq .9 Aeq ebepog 421805
$eRHnN atiand Aeg ebepog
Jaquinp auoyd aweN 33e3u0))| %] o4u) J2uMmp JaumQ pajajdwo) yiduaq Jajawe)(| uoEIn] awen 13afosd| J3quiny qof|
YA-WW 2did
sapAtag dulpdid (8D 0N ddID




¥5.0-202-916 umaig uasey| Buwasubugy jesauas sanhiep ofjnasoy JABSOY| oN.Acm_ ¥ ajpAasoy| 1Z 9s58Ud youey UaWAppl4 HWN-5005
L5¥0-128-016| NOA sower SU| **00 UORINAISUOD UowaT] afjnasoy| afjtresoy| OZ-1BN| - L apnesoy » Wwewesedey HW-¥00S|
Bu abpiig Yoain Aig JeAQ peoy tiiofBAn
oLl umasg wepy PUIsIg| umojatioao| umojafiioeo)| oz-uer I umojeliiog)| .91 Buju sjoyuepy HW-€00S|
X3 9SEF-EEE-0ES Apiin onand spiniq umolaBioss
0650-60Z-80y|  Aued duiud| U] "seusfedid UoISald ofEARULng sjeAkuung 02094 Z|  oakuung 11 @seUd SiEld - SURANDE HW-1005]
1859 B€5 G1¥) ueAcuoq “au] souadid Jebusy VO “jied ojusiy VO ‘Wied ojuapy| [T 1| vO "Wed ofuan qor HW-0L9E
.0 Haqoy| awadeKday Jamag Aispueg peoy auldly)|
11£6-802-602| uosuoqoy brog| 2u] ‘epal VO ‘suwnien] | VO ‘suwinjon] 0g-uer| G| VO ‘auwnjony SOUT JOMOS: HW-28.2)
Aimjues pedsu) ALDD P Sefoyuoy Jedey
0¥06-SEZ51¥| OWjenby Uege] UoiONSUOD G 9 V| 0IspuRL] UBg Qdsjaliel] ueg 0g-uer 4| o3spueld veg Z wawbag - | aseyyq HW-8642
- UCJINGUISKJ 7 UOISSIWSURI] JOpiLoD Aeg
YEBL-PRS-00F| SN | oujjed)d senbrepy| APASSoY ofjiAesoY| BL-AON t AHABEOY| 1L SHHuQ sndwie))| HW-L822|
YEVE-£Z26-916| Zapuayy usyly| Bupoawbug jerauan santueyy BHAISOY | ojprasoy BL-RO 14 apmasoy Bupeod HW-SB.Z|
d abesoig
2068 199 (519)| A4PBOON suTUS aussnbg W odspual tieg odsjuRl UBS 61-100) 2| oospualy ues, 0107 UDISIA 132415 pIsguIoT| HW-18/2]
L8E0°EZZ'60Z| Spioukey o) %9849 J3UNS jo AND)| Yaaid Jepnsg %930 Jalng 0Z-bny| 9t }90.D s3ung Bujui sjoyuely WaISAS Jamas: HW-6L.2
5658-009-54L BRIED 9PP3 “aUf 0D UOHBAIISUDD ZRID)| Roflop, Manbs Avjiep menbg 81120 [ Koo/ menbs 1efoig uoyd|s JaaRi aeXonL 61o2) HW-8L/2
EE¥P-G51-916; SEjes FOUIA Auvedwo) ssayyouas] ay) | Asliep snoag Aajjep snoos; 61-dag Z|  AsueA snoog| S{EARIUGH JO) QEYIY BjOLURKY HIN-2L12]
€6Lc-LLE-80Y| EI0Rep Rotauﬁ sotnjadid coues AID poompay An2 poompay| 6l-deg 1| Au0 poompay Buieod) sjoyunyy Aempeoig £102-009 HN-L942]
LS9V-E¥L-DES|  UBSIAN 12jueg 1sInyeaio jo Al 1SINYBAHQ JO AND 1SINYIAIO B1-unp| [4 isInpaaio ando uoniewigeyay sfoyuen| HN-1522
€911-855G1¥| Usbouul] wery RITR T T 0dje ues! OojB ues 61-dog 3 | ues| duty weishs D Vi uiseg HN- 72|
0025-228-G1¥| uIqo L 2HIAA| “ou) ‘uoporuisuos AueH ¥ Aaseq| 025PURIY UBS JO AlUnoD pue AND oas1IUes S UES)| t2-uer| [ | UBS d “pag A dD-B¥L2
0610-LecG51¥| onbeal unen ‘ou] ‘euijadid mBys 0o5PURI] UBS J0 AIINGD pUE AHD)| 0Jsounl UBg 6L-AON 0t oaspuesy veg| £ "0udY pus awadeidoy Jomas A HW-8€22]
9GL5-¥E8GLY| ayng sawer oU] ‘UojOnIIsUN) sUCS ¢ §Ar| 02SpPURY ues Jo AlunoD pue D 035130844 UBS B81AON €| oodspuel] uBg LIS-AMM WBWadBidey Jamas BAY Janng HW-82.2
9570-895-916| uosIopUY Uoser *au] ‘aujjediq sonbiow SHiAasod Jo AuD)| ajmasoy jo Ao 81-uer] 5t asjinasoy| 1 958U ‘BisiA BUSIS Ju SabeiA oL HW-82LZ,
08.0-95+-626| Jabuisiauo ueldg “au) ‘BuneABIX3 oPy-Ung puejs| aepwy puejs| aieyy| 81-100) S puels| asen Buiigod afoyuep pueis| ssew JeuuaT HW-ZZLz
0025-2Z8-5L¥ ugol SHM| - -au ‘uonnuisuesy ApuaH @ Aueq 025RURI] UeS JO AlUR0D pue Ko gos1ouR) UBS BLON| ¥| oospuesy ueg LofiRAOUDY IIHUGAT BZON 1A HW-ELL2
9.£9-¥0L-0LS| BUIS ONsSuRIY U “UOHHUISUOD BUIIS UUUB 4 sendhw Jo Ay sepdii Jo AN g1-bny| 1 VD 'senduw Bupeod HIN sApQ uulie | HW-50.2|
¥28L-¥5L602 teudso now| $3)2{00SSY P OIS JOGM| V3 "uosider ‘Kempoaig e uosyaer jo Ao gt-des 8 VO ‘vosyaer Rsfoid qeyel H James 8102 HN-20.2]
J3qUINN Juoyd]| JweN PeUC)| A0S oju] Jaumg)| $3ump| [EIETITTY Aywenp uopiesa] Jwep 13foig) 23quwnp qof|
HA-WW ajoyuen|

saAlRg autpadig [e)-1oN

N



GLP0-855-51¥| ZInd Ao UoHINNSUOD ZNY Y 09%joURSq URG 00s[OURLS URS ZZIe| ¥| oospuesf ues]  pefasd wewesasdity] jeaNS LOSIEH Md ¥EO00ON

L8¥8-695-916 SIHN GOy BupaauBu3 Jessuac) sanbsepyy ajnasoy aj|nasoy| 12-Bay| 3 sjjasoy 01~ 9BElIA SHd YduBY juawAppid Z2E000ON|

28¥3-065-016] BMOY US| Bupsaauibu3) (esauen sanhioyy aAais ojang Aeg) ayuesn - LZ3nT| 1 Aug oWueio) HW-8A0D mjaung ¥Z0000ON

Y0RE-285-0£5] uasabirag yrieg| PUISIC UOliBRUBS B3NN | aayonuy aayanu 12RO ] aNMUL 1202 108{ole quyIY Bjoyue £2000ON

EISFGY8-016| BPOAN SEOIOIN BaydtoL Sfmasoy onasoy Jo k4o 1 221V 9 SfiAeS0Y qBUIH HIN PAE HOOKRSIM| S10000N

$20.-006-6.2| INesof0) Awasar Uy || AIAIS0Y apAesoy Jo AiD -N._u [ AISOY qQBUDY 8U0D HW WIWAPPYY 900000N

Ziea-5e5 (20¥) 03i5 onbUoH| 0s0f* UeS J0 AYD SHIOM 2Hihd Jo wawpedag 9507 uas jo Ao L2-ieN| €2 9501 LU, 0Z02 d0-5506;
-8102 Ad Sijedoy) sameg Ayues - gove,

$20.-006-6.2| (n@u0j0D Awaar woyda] | BpABSoy pmasoy 0Z-1R0 9 dfasoy qeYeY BUBD HW wowAppi4l  HN-B0000ON

oL umoig Wepy wnsial umotafiioeo] umotolizoas| oz-uer; 2 WholioaD)| Buju sjoyusy WoreBioes HW-8206|

"X g5EI-EEE-0ES SOfHIN dHAnd apwig twwojallioes

$510-202-916 umaotg vosey Bupasulbu] feseuss sanbuep 3wasoy asoy| 0210 (4 ajasoy Gunigo) ajoyuepy HW-2.05|
- 2 958Yd BOZ-Wr 90BIIA BISIA BUDIS500Z

¥5.0-202-916 umoig uosey| GuyaauiBug [riousg santuey ISINYBAIO| 1SInYeAliO| 02-P0 9| [T 1 9BENA UHON SYBO JoAY HIN-5L05

S€90-¥22-059| B89 UBQ Bupoeau|Buz jeieuan sanbieyy ofinasoy apAesoy 02RO 3 ajpasoyy Buneod ajoyuepy HW-0.05
9ALQ YSNY BIBINBIUSD UMDY, SYEQ SNdweD

8288-152-916] ©padn seiolaiN| voyso L afinesoy| AuATSOY 02RO ¥ sfiiaasoy sabBIA-| aSTUd MONY0BID) HW-8805

¥Er1-6LY (8OV) eAguey] Bnog saujadid uojsad ajerfuung| sjeafuung 0z-des| 3 ajenkluns| | aseyd Juawdojanepay sNOWED 1ou0 HA-¥905

1550-¥96 (s0¥}| Jewwog ue! Souljadia L0jSald O}V ojed oYY ojEd gz-Bny] ' olly ojed ofoid asnoyding HN—Z208]
Jomeg AisjURS 9SNOYENET PIOJURIS

89¥8-01LT0ES l1ag uopuesg Buuaauibu3 jeiauso santueyy afnasoy ajrasoy 0Z-0ny| 1 afimasoy| Buneod HIN - 1918AA ' J0MaS BNISHO, HIN-L905
- QINIITUISBYU| - | 9SBYd - BISIA BUIIS

¥808-LEEBLE Heue)s ry| ‘au) ‘sujedid AeN-ie)S| apAISOY ofnasoy| 02-nr| [4 ofmasoy| 1l 858yd $yeQ sndwe)d HA-Z508|

0£16-565-526| SilaM @00 suos § sauor DO 2s0p° Ueg as0r" UBS 0Z-das; z| asor ueg i1+ wossojg-Lot Sn)| HIN-0508

Auofiny uofiepedsuel | Aajlep BiE|) ewes :

12¥E'B8E'S 1Y) SO0} e *0U| ‘Zo{RZUS ¥ PISOI0IS SOpieD ues) soped ues! 0Z-Bay/| 3 SojeD ues uofeHqBYeY HW-8Y0S
JaMeg 8102 - Sojie ues jo Ao

¥861-202 (80%) oulUBULIY saujedid uojsald 183 ses ®IBID BIUES)| oz-nr 3 BJE(D EjUES] BujigoD sjoyueyy| HN-BYOS
snwpes Joeweg 8y - SS833y Ape3 9 828id AND

2920-0¥L {SLY) hosed woy *ONI ‘NOLLONHLSNOD SAI| 0ISpURL] Ueg 025UBIS UBS 0Z-0nv L| o3spuel ueg HYLO-MM| HA-LY0S
- spawioraidil Iojepp 2 Jomes pag Aisen

8296-152-916| ®POAN SElOUAIN uayag ] ofnasoy BY|nasoy|  0Z-unp| 3 Sjnasoy 1 358Yd -ManyaaID HW-8205

58¥8-0.8-016 ugisn uoser seujfedid uajsald| ofrasoy] appmesoy 1 pg-unp 3 oS0y BT HIN - SMesoy ) X18d ooulsid HA-0Z05

2LL9-206-016| SapoyUY UaUBAA| 39 sanbiepy ooy ujptaoy 02-4dy/| 9 upjooy BuyeoD sjo|uByy - souad so HW-5105

SELE-B0O-GLP| o] N} ) sueg ¥ 8ar oaspLRlYy Ubg 09${URSS LRG| 2| ¥| oaspury uss B88£8000001 ‘ON 1PBAB0D HW-¥L0S|
euuey) 208ING SSAN LBA J0 }SOM Pidey AiBeD

$3quINN uoyd Jwey peuo) Juosny| oju J3umg Jaumg 2] 130 awen 133foig J3quInN qof

YA-NN Sloyuey

)



0
~

¥91€-866-015| Zonhuey esshly uolIUISUCD gy ooisoueld ueg 092510UBS] UBS TLAON| t| oaspuess ueg)| qByod HIN 19805 151 6| LOLOOON
68888-¥95-916 Auoyy suud UO{RISU0Y SIBjeMpRIH Lo H Sjipesoy| ZZ-00Q) (4 nasoy qeysy HW 1efoid ineH-n 880000N
L1E9-€18-918| 1epoy) Aosed) BuyeauiBu3 jaieuas sankueyy afaasoy aypasoy Zz-290 13 < 9sayd BISIA BLBIS L8000ON
00£5-L92-059{ amoi] ploeen “ONI‘NOILONMLSNOD BAIR 0ISPUBY LBg 2SRl UBg ZTHON| 82| oospues] ueg 190{0id jusutarcsdi| BNUSAY YIgL HINSEOS
YEYE-STE9LE epueg sueq BuusauiBu3 jesauad sanbuep| ajnesoy 8jmascy zeg-unp 4 afnasey ‘pAlg spiekauln Apeig-qeusy HN £80000N
01ZE2¥5-L02]  KmD oujumar ) Koyon 1 FolA I ZZ-unt € RoHoA | efoig Guyay SiEpeunIa 15v3 120000N
TS0E-BTLSG LY uigot S| Auei Aaseqg 00SiOUBIJ UBS)| 09510UB)J UBS 2z-bny| 12| oospusly ueg duy) 18ass A MmaN LYO0OIN
JIquiny Fuoyy sweN ) TS 0y JIUMO 13umo paRidwa) Apuenp uopesay awep 13faid J3quwiny qof|
HA-WW Hoyuew




Item E.4 Attachment 3
Memorandum
January 20, 2023

o] Pat Kaspari, MCSD

Copy to MCSD Board Members; James Henry, MCSD; Malia Gonzales, GHD
Tel (707) 267-2204

The District received three bids bid for the Central Avenue Water and Sewer Rehabilitation Project on January
18, 2023 with the following results:

General Subtotal Water Subtotal Sewer Subtotal | Total Bid Amount

From Nathan Stevens

Subject MCSD Central Avenue Water and Sewer Rehabilitation
Project — Bid Results and Recommendations

GR Sundberg, Inc. $408,000 $1,498,325 $625,950 $2,532,275

Mercer-Fraser $410,000 $1,646,490 $621,500 $2.677,990
Company

Wahlund Construction, $460,500 $1,820,799 $728,470 $3,009,769

Inc.

Based on the results, GR Sundberg, Inc. (GRS) is the apparent low bidder. | have reviewed the responsiveness
of their bid and it is complete. In addition, | have contacted references listed in GRS’s bid for the cured-in-place
pipe (CIPP) lining subcontractor, Nor-Cal Pipeline Services, and the references were all positive. | recommend
that the Board of Directors award the contract for the construction of the Central Avenue Water and Sewer
Rehabilitation Project to GRS in an amount of $2,532,275.

| have attached a copy of the complete tabulated bid results to this memo. Please do not hesitate to call me if
you have any questions.

Regards
Pt It

Nathan Stevens, PE
Project Manager

Encl.: Tabulated Bid Results

185 12560439 1



Bid Tabulation Results

Owner: McKinleyville Community Services Distric

Project Name: Central Ave Water & Sewer Rehabilitation

Project Location: McKinleyville, Humboldt County, CA

Date of Bid: 1/18/2023

Prepared by: Nathan Stevens

BASE BID SCHEDULE
Mercer-Fraser GR Sundberg Wahlunc.l
Company Construction
[Ttem
No. Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost | Total Cost | Unit Cost | Total Cost
1 |Mobilization/Demobilization LS 1 $220,000 $220,000 | $250,000 | $250,000 | $398,000 | $398,000
2 |Traffic Control LS 1 $150,000 $150,000 $150,000 | $150,000 $41,500 $41,500
Sediment and Erosion Control including General
3 Revegetating Disturbed areas LS 1 $30,000 $30,000 $5,000 $5,000 $9,000 $9,000
4 ﬁﬁ)’:""a' and Disposal of Asbestos Cement Ls 1 $10,000 | $10,000 | $3,000 | $3,000 | $12,000 | $12,000
5 |Dewatering System / Water Control LS 1 $25,000 $25,000 $50,000 $50,000 $5,000 $5,000
6 [2” Waterline Modifications LS 1 $20,000 $20,000 $25,000 $25,000 $16,000 $16,000
7 |6” PVC Water Pipe and Fittings LS 1 $25,000 $25,000 $30,000 $30,000 $25,000 $25,000
8 8" PVC Water PlpeT and Fittings for Water Line LF 245 $200 $49,000 5165 $40.425 §257 62,965
2.0 (Heartwood Drive)
10” PVC Water Pipe and Fittings for Water
9 Line 3.0 (Nursery Way) LF 333 $330 $109,890 $200 $66,600 $233 $77,589
10 [16” PVC Water Pipe and Fittings LF 2,240 $390 $873,600 $290 $649,600 $403 $902,720
11 |6” Water Gate Valves EA 9 $2,200 $19,800 $2,300 $20,700 $2,900 $26,100
12 [8” Water Gate Valves EA 3 $3,500 $10,500 $3,500 $10,500 $3,500 $10,500
13 [10” Water Gate Valves EA 1 $6,000 $6,000 $5,500 $5,500 $4,700 $4,700
14 [12” Water Gave Valves EA 1 $6,200 $6,200 $6,250 $6,250 $5,100 $5,100
15 [16” Water Butterfly Valves EA 7 $14,000 $98,000 $7,650 $53,550 $7,275 $50,925
16 [18” Water Butterfly Valves EA 2 $18,000 $36,000 $10,000 $20,000 $8,000 $16,000 Wat
- - ater
17 g,‘\’ﬂ':/r\}‘:c“"” Assembly at Stafion 27+52 (near | | g 1 $15000 | $15000 | $32,000 | $32,000 | $22,000 | $22,000
18 [Connection Assembly near Station 29+53 LS 1 $15,000 $15,000 $17,000 $17,000 $20,000 $20,000
19 [Connection Assembly at Sutter Road LS 1 $42,000 $42,000 $53,000 $53,000 $56,000 $56,000
20 |Connection Assembly at Central Ave and LS 1 $20,000 | $20,000 | $30,000 | $30,000 | $18,500 | $18,500
Heartwood Drive to East
Connection Assembly at Heartwood Drive at
21 \West End of Water Line 2.0 LS 1 $8,000 $8,000 $5,700 $5,700 $3,700 $3,700
22 |Connection Assembly at Holly Drive LS 1 $17,000 $17,000 $15,000 $15,000 $18,000 $18,000
23 |Connection Assemblies at Hiller Road LS 1 $55,000 $55,000 $87,500 $87,500 $79,000 $79,000
24 |1” Water Service Lines EA 10 $4,000 $40,000 $7,600 $76,000 $8,000 $80,000
25 |Multi-Meter Water Service Lines EA 11 $7,500 $82,500 $11,000 | $121,000 | $16,000 | $176,000
26 |Fire Hydrant Services EA 6 $10,000 $60,000 $11,000 $66,000 $21,000 $126,000
27 |[Combination Air Valve Assembly (Including EA 1 $13,000 | $13,000 | $17,000 | $17,000 | $19,000 | $19,000
Precast Vault)
28 |Temporary Sewer Bypass Pumping LS 1 $12,000 $12,000 $25,000 $25,000 $3,200 $3,200
Pre-Rehabilitation Closed-Circuit Television
29 |(CCTV) Inspection and Pipe Cleaning — Sewer LS 1 $15,000 $15,000 $13,500 $13,500 $15,500 $15,500
Mains
Pre-Rehabilitation Closed-Circuit Television
30 [(CCTV) Inspection and Pipe Cleaning — Sewer EA 24 $1,000 $24,000 $1,000 $24,000 $1,150 $27,600
Service Laterals _ _
31 | Setup for Sewer Main Open Cut Section EA 5 $6200 | $31,000 | $300 | $1,500 | $9,000 | $45,000
Repairs
32 |Sewer Main Open Cut Section Repairs LF 50 $200 $10,000 $700 $35,000 $350 $17,500
33 Set up for Sewer Service Lateral Open Cut EA 5 $5,500 $27.500 $300 $1,500 $8,550 $42.750
Replacement
34 |Sewer Service Lateral Open Cut Replacement LF 150 $285 $42,750 $300 $45,000 $194 $29,100
35 [Sot U for Chemical Groutinjection into Pipe | g 2 $9200 | $18400 | $9.200 | $18.400 | $10500 | $21,000
Sewer
36 |Chemical Grout Injection into Pipe Cracks GAL 20 $2,000 $40,000 $2,000 $40,000 $2,300 $46,000
Set up for Rehabilitation of 4” Sewer Laterals
37 Using Cured-in-Place Pipe Lining Method EA 24 $2,700 $64,800 $275 $6,600 $315 $7.560
Rehabilitation of 4” Sewer Laterals Using
38 Cured-in-Place Pipe Lining Method LF 660 $110 $72,600 $110 $72,600 $126 $83,160
Rehabilitation of 6” Sewer Main Using Cured-in:
39 Place Pipe Lining Method LF 700 $65 $45,500 $65 $45,500 $75 $52,500
Rehabilitation of 8” Sewer Main Using Cured-in.
40 Place Pipe Lining Method LF 2,015 $70 $141,050 $70 $141,050 $80 $161,200
41 |Rehabilitation of Sewer Manholes EA 9 $6,100 $54,900 $15,500 | $139,500 | $17,500 | $157,500
Post-Rehabilitation Closed-Circuit Television
42 |(CCTV) Inspection and Pipe Cleaning — Sewer LS 1 $10,000 $10,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,900 $6,900
Mains
Post-Rehabilitation Closed-Circuit Television
43 |(CCTV) Inspection and Pipe Cleaning — Sewer EA 24 $500 $12,000 $450 $10,800 $500 $12,000
Service Laterals
General Subtotal $410,000 $408,000 $460,500
Water Subtotal $1,646,490 $1,498,325 $1,820,799
Sewer Subtotal $621,500 $625,950 $728,470
TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT $2,677,990 $2,532,275 $3,009,769

186



McKinleyville Community Services District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 1, 2023 TYPE OF ITEM: INFORMATION
ITEM: F.3.A Finance & Administration — December - January 2023
Report
PRESENTED BY: Nicole Alvarado, Finance Director
TYPE OF ACTION: None

FINANCIAL, AUDIT, & BUDGET INFORMATION

The District has $1,354,379 to date in the Trust Account for the Biosolids Disposal
project. Staff has submitted a draw down request to Humboldt County for expenses
incurred in FY21-22. A check was received and deposited in January.

Customer adjustments at November month-end total $0, the annual budget for this sub-
item is $45,000. (GL# 501/551-62120)

Total Board Travel as of November 30th, 2022 is $10,501 which is 68% of the approved
$15,500 budget for this item. (GL# 001/005/501/551 62090/62155-888)

Audit/Budget Update:

The first draft of the Parks/General Fund Capital Projects budget is included as an item
for the February Board meeting. The first draft of the Water/ Wastewater Capital
Projects budget will be presented in March for review and discussion by the Board. April
and May will bring drafts of the Parks/General Fund and Water/ Wastewater operating
budgets respectively, with the final budget brought to the Board for approval in June
before the start of the new fiscal year.

Treasurer's Report Highlights:

Statements reflecting fund balances for County Trust Accounts as of December 31,
2022 were received shortly after the new year. The December property tax distribution
has been recorded in the Parks/General Fund and the Measure B Fund. The District
receives property tax distributions from the County of Humboldt in December, April, and
June each year.

Investments and Cash Flow

The Investment and Cash Flow report shows the balances and activity in each major
cash account held by the District. The operating accounts are listed first, followed by



each investment account (LAIF, Humboldt County Trust Accounts, the USDA Bond
Sinking Fund account, and CalTRUST.) At the end of the report, the total cash and
investments from the prior month is listed so users can see the change from month to
month. The current month total is also broken down at the very bottom of the page.
Cash and Cash Equivalents contains working capital and reserves designated by Board
policy. Other legally required cash reserves for various loans are stated and accounted
for separately.

OTHER UPDATES

We have a new department name! The Support Services Department is now the
Finance & Administration Department. The name was selected by staff to better
encompass the full scope of work performed by Department.

Staff has been busy processing end of calendar year reports this includes creation and
distribution of 1099s to vendors and W2s to employees. The 2021-2022 Special
District’s Financial Transaction Report has been completed and will be sent to the State
Controller’s Officer by January 31, 2023.

The Audit & Finance Committee met on January 17th to discuss a funding policy,
investment risk level, and agreements to set up a Section 115 Trust for other post-
employment benefits (OPEB). The creation of a Section 115 Trust is included as an
item for the February Board meeting.

Attachment 1 — Audit & Finance Committee Notes January 17



Monday, January 17, 2023
4:00 p.m.

Audit and Finance Meeting
NOTES

Members Present: James Biteman, Greg Orsini
Staff Present: Nicole Alvarado, Pat Kaspari, April Sousa

Meeting Called to Order at 4:00 p.m.

Public Comment

None

Establish Section 115 Trust for Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

Finance Director Nicole Alvarado reviewed the agendized item and the discussion from
December 12, 2022.

It was noted that 25% of MCSD Workforce will be eligible for retirement within the
next 10 years.
Options and investment strategies were reviewed and discussed.
The benefits of setting up the Section 115 Trust were reviewed. These included
higher returned in the long term, reduced unfunded liabilities and improved
financial reporting.
It was noted that once the money is established within the Section 115 Trust,
they become restricted funds.
Currently, reserves for OPEB are at 43% funded.
The committee discussed funding strategies. Currently there is $2.9 million in the
reserves. Staff suggested setting up the Section 115 Trust with $2.5 million and
leaving $400,000 in the current reserves fund.
Finance committee agreed to the following to be recommended to the Board:

0 60% funding level target,

o Initial Transfer of $2.5 M,

o Initial contribution of “Pay Go” amount with additional funds to be

determined through the budget process annually,
o To be reviewed annually,
o0 Investment Strategy to us — Strategy 3 — more conservative, expected
return of 5%, risk 8.4%.

The committee will review the staff note prior to the February Board meeting,
when this item will go to the Board for approval.

Adjourn —5:29 p.m.






McKinleyville Community Services District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 1, 2023 TYPE OF ITEM: INFORMATION
ITEM: F.3.B Operations Department — December / Jan. 2023 Report
PRESENTED BY: James Henry, Operations Director

TYPE OF ACTION: None

Water Department:

Water Statistics:

The district pumped 39.4 million gallons of water in December.

Seven water quality complaints were investigated and rectified.

Daily, weekly and monthly inspections of all water facilities were conducted.

Double Check Valve Testing:

Annual routine testing was not conducted in December. December is reserved for the
annual calibration of the DCV testing equipment. Retests were completed after the
equipment was shipped back to the District.

Average and Maximum Water Usage:
The maximum water usage day was 1.4 million gallons and the average usage per day
was 1.3 million gallons.

Water Distribution Maintenance:

Weekly Bacteria Samples were collected on Schedules 1,2,3 and 4 which represent
different locations in the water distribution system. The schedules are made up of a
sample taken in each pressure zone. Several meter boxes were raised or adjusted due
to settling and meter box resting on the meter. This was noticed during the semi-annual
meter box inspections.

Water Station Maintenance:

Monthly inspections and daily routines were conducted at the water stations. Any minor
issues found are repaired during inspections, but if they require parts or extensive labor,
the issue is documented on the monthly sheet, which will then generate a work order for
repairs. Several facilities were inspected numerous times for storm related damages
and debris clean up. No major damages were found. Several hours were logged on the
generator and the District has submitted reimbursement for fuel and labor costs
associated with the power outage. The site tube was replaced at the Blake pumping
station due to wear and tear. Mowing and cleaning was completed at the North bank
pump station. The photo control was replaced at the Cochran tank site due to outside
lights not functioning properly.



As of July 2014, the District is required to submit a Public Water Monthly Monitoring
Report to compare water usage to last year’'s usage in the same month. | will keep the
Board updated each month using the Table below.

(23333; 2(()“2/'2(53 % Reduction R-GPCD
December 35.203 39.371 (-11) 49
January 38.241 40.314 (-6) 49
February 33.751 | 37.674 (-11) 50
March 36.244 35.798 1 52
April 39.755 | 36.072 10 49
May 49.407 40.019 19 50
June 51.337 43.312 16 52
July 54.757 47.464 14 59
August 55.908 49.252 16 63
September 45.702 45.118 2 63
October 39.439 | 41.856 (-6) 57
November 34.879 39.227 (-12) 51
December 35.203 39.420 (-11) 48

Water Usage

80

60
40

20

Q NS ¥ 2 & & e
§ 2 e 3§ Ie) K\ ¢
& K g P X
e )013 MG = 2022/23 MG % Reduction e====R-GPCD /gallons

R-GPCD = Residential Gallons Per Capita Day



New Construction Inspections:

Midtown Court Tract: Plans were reviewed, and plan check fees have been paid. This
project has not started yet. Washington Estates: Contractor has installed Sewer mains
and manholes per MCSD Specifications. Water mains and services have been installed
and testing is pending on other utilities being installed.

Sewer Department:

WasteWater Statistics:

28.8 million gallons of wastewater were collected and pumped to the WWMF. 32.9
million gallons of wastewater were treated and discharged to land disposal or
reclamation in December.

Sewer Station Maintenance:

Monthly inspections and daily routines were conducted on all sewer stations. Wet well
washing was completed at Letz and Kelly stations. This is done quarterly to remove
grease from the well and preventing rags from being sucked into the pumps and
causing pump failure. The washing also helps eliminate hydrogen sulfide build-up on
the walls which can eat away at the concrete casing. U-joints were replaced on the
Fischer station pump 3 driveline due to worn joint causing vibration. Several sewer
facilities were inspected numerous times for storm related damages and debris clean
up. No major damages were found. Several trees were removed by a licensed tree faller
due to leaning and jeopardizing the Letz station. Several hours were logged on the
generators and the District has submitted reimbursement for fuel and labor costs
associated with the power outage. Letz pump 3 was found to be logging higher hours
during the daily station pump hour observation. Staff found that the pump was full of
rags. Rags were removed and pump was placed back into service. The vacuum and
pressure lines at the Kelly package station were replaced due to cracking noted during
the monthly inspections. The semi-annual expansion joint inspections were completed
at all sewer facilities. Joints are checked for cracks and wear. The air relief for pump 3
at the Letz station was repaired due to sucking air and causing the pump to lose prime.
Vacuum and pressure lines were replaced at the Kelly station due to wear and tear that
was noticed during the monthly inspections.

Sewer Collection System:

Grease traps were inspected at required facilities. Customers that are out of compliance
were notified to have their traps pumped and possibly shorten their pumping schedule.
Staff has been monitoring the sewer flow in manholes using the Smartcover flow
totalizers. This data will be compared to the dry weather flow to try locating areas where
inflow and infiltration is entering the sewer mains. These devices will be moved around
to selected manholes during the winter. Manhole inspections continue. Staff will be
monitoring flow and conditions and logging the data into the online portal that was
designed for the inspections. The mapping portal helps identify manholes needing
inspections, along with repairs needed. Another sewer plug was reported by the same
person on Little Cinder. Staff arrived, ran the camera up the line and showed the
customer that the issue is coming from her lateral.



Wastewater Management Facility:

Daily and weekly maintenance continues at the treatment plant to perform required
service on the equipment. The chlorine contact basin was drained and cleaned as part
of the quarterly maintenance. This helps eliminate algae growth on the walls which can
affect the disinfection process. The annual rebuild of the SO2 and CL2 vacuum
regulators was completed as part of the maintenance program. During the rebuild, all
gasket material is replaced to help eliminate possible leaks. The semi-annual calibration
of the SO2 and CL2 sensors was completed.

Daily Irrigation and Observation of Reclamation Sites:
Discharge has been going to River since early December. Staff has been clearing out
the yellow storage building at the Pialorsi Ranch to make room for storing materials.

Street Light Department:

There were no streetlight complaints in December. There are 4 pending issues that are
waiting on PG&E. These issues were scheduled for repairs but didn’t take place due to
the earthquake and storm events.

Promote Staff Training and Advancement:

Weekly tailgate meetings and training associated with job requirements. Staff received
training on the ABC'’s of safety, Avoiding Slips Trips and Falls, Avoiding Arc Flashes
and Asbestos training.

Special Notes:

Monthly river samples were completed.

Monthly Self-Monitoring Reports (DMR/SMR) were submitted.

Public Water Monthly Monitoring report was submitted.

Monthly Water Quality report was sent to the Dept. of Health.

Attended Micro-grid progress meeting

Attended Community Forest meeting

Attended design meeting for 4.5 MG tank project.

Attended pre-bid meeting for Central pipe replacement project

Reviewed 100%design for 4.5 MG tank project and submitted comments to Engineer.

GIS:

Plans And Programs

Reviewed the Asbestos Hazard Control Plan
o No changes were made
Went through GIS SOP and trained on many of the tasks with Brian

Maps Completed/General GIS

Updated Hiller Park Trails map
o0 lcons added to map
Updated Facilities map in ArcGIS online and Web Mapping Application
Recorded new points via the GPS for features previously not on Facilities Map
0 Newly installed sewer laterals and water service lines



o Found buried water valves and tracked lines to blowoff
Created Manhole & Cleanout Inspection Map
0 Updated Field Maps application
0 Created Dashboard to track progress
Continued work on Easements layer for facilities map which Brian had started

Misc. Work Completed

USA’s

Operations document filing

Familiarized myself with GIS server and file structures on the Desktop
Facility tour for better understanding of operation design/process

Plans And Programs

Reviewed the Hoist and Crane Safety Plan
o0 No Changes were made
Reviewed the Elevated Platforms and Arial Devices Safety Plan
o0 No Changes were made
Stored Asbestos training procedure document with relevant information highlighted.

Maps Completed/General GIS

Created a shapefile with location of 4.5-million-gallon tank for grant

0 Added Service area shapefile to grant folder
Made a map of Airport Road sewer line at Hwy 101 crossing
Created a map of TLCC Grant boundary with shapefile from Pat
Continued adding easements data to the easement shapefile in ArcGIS Pro

0 Most Easement data from Docstar has been added

0 Beginning to gather list of parcels with no easements in Docstar
Created map of Fischer ranch to draw fence line

0 Gathered measurements through ArcGIS Pro to estimate amount of fence

line materials needed

Researched new method for collecting inspection data using Survey 123 that would
allow for edits to responses within the entry forms if needed. (Ex: adding/removing
Inspector names)

Misc. Work Completed

USA’s
Operations document Filing
Typed list of current emergency supplies






McKinleyville Community Services District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 1, 2023 TYPE OF ITEM: INFORMATION
ITEM: F.3.C Parks & Recreation Director’s Report for January 2023
PRESENTED BY: Lesley Frisbee, Parks & Recreation Director

TYPE OF ACTION: None

TEEN & COMMUNITY CENTER-BOYS & GIRLS CLUB PARTNERSHIP:

Staff continues to meet with BGCR staff weekly. The Teen Club switched from summer
hours to school year hours this month and is now open Monday- Friday 2:00pm-7:00pm.
The Teen Club is running a wide variety of programs including a weekly cooking program, a
cycling program, an art program, a community service program and several BGCA national
programs such as Power Hour, SMART Girls, SMART Moves and Youth for Unity. The
Club’s average daily attendance reached 25-35 teens per day.

PARK AND RECREATION COMMITTEE:
The Park and Recreation Committee (PARC) met on January 19, 2023. The notes from the
meeting can be reviewed in Attachment 1.

BMX TRACK & PARK PROJECT:

Melton Design Group has provided a preliminary design plan with cost estimates. Due to
the increased cost of materials a change of scope for the grant will need to be submitted.
The design team is considering reducing the number of pickleball courts to one court, while
leaving space for a second court to be added later, should funding become available. Other
design considerations to reduce cost include use of decomposed granite along pathways to
reduce use of concrete.

COMMUNITY FOREST UPDATES:

The property appraisal is approximately 90% complete. Trust for Public Lands hopes to
complete the property acquisition by June 30™. Green Diamond is working on
encroachment permits and easement language for access points.

Public access points will be at Murray Rd. and First Rd. East Cochran access will be
granted for MCSD maintenance only.

RECREATION PROGRAM UPDATES

e Breakout Vacation Camp ran January 3-6, serving 20 youth per day; February 21-24
during the President’s week break and April 10-14 during Spring break week.
Registration is currently being accepted for all weeks.

e Drop-in Pickleball is running on Monday & Wednesday mornings 9:30am to 12:30pm
and. $4 per person. Friday Pickleball is cancelled until the end of the Youth Basketball
League. Pickleball is run by volunteers.

e Drop-in Kung Fu is on Tuesday and Thursday evenings 6:00pm-7:00pm $10 per person
per class. Bulk class passes are available to purchase at $7.50 per class

197



e Drop-in Tai Chi is Sundays 11:00am-12:00pm $10 per person per class. Bulk class
passes are available to purchase at $7.50 per class
o The Martial Arts classes are averaging 10-14 people per class.
e Sunday Night drop-in Basketball is averaging 12-16 participants per week.

e Youth Basketball League began on January 9. 220 youth in grades 3'9-9™ are enrolled.
e Enrollment for Pee Wee Basketball is currently open. Pee Wee Basketball is for youth in
Kindergarten through second grade and will run from April 22 through June 3, 2023.

e Totletics Soccer begins on January 215t There are currently four spots left out of 40.
e Playgroup for children 0-5 runs weekly on Thursdays from 10:30am-12:30pm. This
program is funded by a grant through First 5 of Humboldt.

PARK & FACILITY MAINTENANCE UPDATES:

A water leak at the Teen Center Kitchen was discovered and repaired. The leak appears to
be due to a latent defect from the 2016 construction of the facility and caused significant
damage to structural supports in the wall. The contractor responsible for the construction of
the teen center has been contacted as there is a 10-year latent defect clause within the
construction contract for the Teen Center. Leaks at Azalea Hall were also repaired, leaks
were due to flashing that became loose during one recent wind storms. Parks maintenance
has been busy assessing facilities after the extreme weather events, clearing trails and
OSMZ's of downed trees and limbs. The Parks crew and NHES continue the routine
schedule for maintenance on Central Ave. and Open Space Zone landscaping. Staff
continue to keep up with daily/weekly routine facility and vehicle maintenance. Monthly
inspections were conducted on all facilities and Open Spaces.

Interior renovations at Azalea Hall will begin in February with the renovating of the walls,
removing wall paper, followed by texturing the walls and painting. Interior renovations at
Azalea Hall is funded by the Prop 68 Per Capita Grant program. The renovations will
include new flooring in the Hewitt room and Lobby, renovated walls and new window
coverings, a new front door and HVAC replacement. It is anticipated that all renovations will
be complete by the end of the 2023 calendar year.

FACILITY RENTALS & USE
10 Azalea Hall Rentals plus a weekly kitchen rental in December through February. Only 1
Pierson Park rentals December through February.

OTHER UPDATES:

e Staff is preparing the Winter/Spring Newsletter & Activity Guide which will be mailed
the week of February 13th-17t

e Staff continues to participate as members of the McKinleyville Chamber of
Commerce Board of Directors, the McKinleyville Family Resource Center Board of
Directors and the Boys & Girls Club of the Redwoods Board of Directors.

e Staff continues to provide support to other departments of the District; assisting with
accounts payable, and payroll.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1 — PARC Meeting Notes 1-19-23



Thursday, January 19, 2023

6:30pm

Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting
NOTES

Members Present: Johnny Calkins, Ben Winker, Scott Binder, Jennifer Ortega, Jane Fusek, Heidi
Conzelmann, Charlie Caldwell, Phil Heidrick, John Kulstad
Members Absent: Laura Bridy, Julie Giannini-Previde

Meeting Notes:
Communications:

e Heidi Conzelmann inquired as to the possibility of the MSPTO using trails at Hiller Park for a
youth and family fun run.

Public Comment:

e Jamey Harris, McKinleyville resident and Cal Poly Humboldt cross country coach approached the
committee to inquire about the possibility of turning the Fischer Ranch property into a cross
country course.

o Staff provided some information about the property and nhames and contact methods of
the general manager and operations director.

Office Elections & Term Renewals
¢ PARC members Laura Bridy an Ben Winker terms were renewed.
¢ Johnny Calkins nominated Laura Bridy for the office of Chair for another year, Charlie Caldwell
seconded the nomination, the committee voted unanimously to keep Laura in the Chair seat.
¢ Johnny Calkins nominated Phil Heidrick for a second term as Vice-chair, Ben winker seconded
the nomination and the committee voted unanimously to keep Phil as vice-chair for a second
term

Dept. Director Report:
e Staff answered questions about pickleball, playgroup, facility repairs and current staffing.

Community Forest Updates
e Staff reported on recent discussions with Green Diamond Resource Co. and the current status of
the project.

BMX Track and Park Project;
e Staff updated the committee on recent design status of the project. It is anticipated that the
design team will have a presentation for the committee in February.

Report on Actions of MCSD Board of Directors
o The Board appointed Julie Giannin-Previde to the PARC committee as a regular voting member

AdHoc_Committee Reports:

e Skate Park— Charlie Caldwell reported on status of the Humboldt Skatepark Collective’s work
toward building one phase of the skate park. The Humboldt Skate Park Collective is currently
stuck in the county permit process. HSC has $130,000 to build one 2500 square foot phase of
the park. They are hoping to be able to break ground in the beginning of June. A presentation to
the PARC is expected in February.

e Fisher Ranch Estuary project— The trail is complete and being regularly enjoyed by community
members. The CCC is still working on planting at the site. Recent weather delayed their work.

e BMX— See notes on above

e Community Garden—Nothing to report




Agenda Items for next meeting:
e Skatepark plan
¢ BMX design presentation

Adjournment:
e Adjourned: approximately 7:15pm

N
o



McKinleyville Community Services District

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

February 1, 2023 TYPE OF ITEM: INFORMATIONAL
ITEM: F.3.D General Manager’s Report for February 1, 2023 Meeting
PRESENTED BY: Patrick Kaspari, General Manager

TYPE OF ACTION: Information Only

A summary of activity for the month of January 2023

Cost Savings Related to District Activities — The following is a review of some of the
recent cost savings opportunities District staff identified for the month:

e Use of NHE Services = $3,523
e WEX Labor Reimbursement = $0
e SWAP= $5,280
e Volunteer Pickleball Labor = $288
e Staples Cost Savings = $64
e Switching of phones to CalNET $1,250
e Amazon Business = $77
e Replace Bluff Fence/Mount Dog Waste Bin = $240
e Replace Office Vent = $40
e Repair Blake Pump Motor Starter = $120
e Replace photo Control at Cochran = $60
e Replace U-Joints Fischer Pump 1 = $480

TOTAL COST SAVINGS FOR JAN = $11,422

So far, for the District’s 2022/23 Fiscal Year, Staff was responsible for
$135,658 in savings to the District and its Rate Payers.

District staff are recognized and commended for their continued efforts in looking for
cost savings, the use of internal labor, and grant opportunities that result in real savings
for the District, ratepayers, and the community.

Wow 2023 is going to be a busy year! — | knew 2023 was going to be busy, and it
sure has started out that way. As detailed in this Board Meeting agenda, we are going
to be awarding the Central Avenue Water & Sewer Rehab Project at this Board Meeting
and will start construction on this Project in the next couple of months. We are also
going to be going out to bid on the 4.5MG Tank in February and will start that

N
—



construction this spring/summer. We are hopefully going to finish the Microgrid too this
spring, if we can just get PG&E to perform. The Highway Sewer Crossings grant also
seems to be getting some life again and | hope we can get back to the final design on
that this summer. Meanwhile we are well into the design on the BMX Park and the
Office Remodel. We have also finished up the survey for the Measure B
reauthorization, and | really want to take that to the Voters this year. And then there is
the Community Forest. That property transfer should also happen this summer, and we
can get back into our Public outreach on that development. This on top of our day to
day running of the Water, Sewer, Parks & Recreation and Streetlights operations. Itis
going to be an exciting year with not much time to be bored. Staff looks forward to
working with the Board on all these projects.

COVID-19 —The District has not had anyone test positive for Covid this month, even
after the holidays. We continue to purchase at home test kits to allow Staff to monitor
their health if they are exposed or begin to feel symptoms. The State’s mandated Covid
leave expired on December 31, 2022, and the District’'s additional Covid leave expire at
the same time.

4.5 Gallon Water Tank Project — The District continues work on this project with
Kennedy Jenks (KJ) and their subconsultants. KJ submitted the 100% design submittal
and District Staff reviewed the documents and discussed with KJ. KJ will do the pick-
ups and finalize the bid documents. We are anticipating going out to bid in February
2023. Bids will be due back in March and we anticipate bringing the recommendation for
the award of the contract to a Special Board Meeting on April 12" or 19%. Staff will
finalize the scheduling of that Special Board Meeting with Director’'s soon so we can
build it into the schedule for the Project.

As the Board is aware, the estimated project construction costs have gone from $9.4M
to an estimate of $11.87M (with an estimated range from $11.3M to $13.65M). The
District’'s match for this project is currently at $2.6M and if the construction increases by
another $2.4M, our match will increase to $5M. We have reached out to CalOES to see
if there is additional funding in this disaster declaration and have been informed that
there is an additional $2M. We have submitted a formal request for the additional $2M
available but have not received a formal approval of the request yet. We also submitted
a grant application to the North Coast Resource Partnership as part of the Prop. 1,
Round 2 funding and_were approved for $879,209 in funding from the NCRP grant.

This will greatly help with the shortfall.

We also requested a formal time extension from CalOES/FEMA for the project to extend
the completion date out until February 2025. We received formal approval for the

N
N



extension a couple of weeks ago, extending the Project Performance Period out until
February 4, 2025. We should be able to finish up the project by then.

Escrow for the purchase of the land from American Hospital Management Corp.
(AHMC) was anticipated to close on October 4, 2022 but did not. We are still waiting for
AHMC to submit the escrow documents to the Title Company. We will continue to
pressure AHMC and the Title Company to finalize the sale.

Central Avenue Water and Sewer Mainline Replacement Project — We have gone
out to bid on the construction of the 16-inch waterline and sewer lining for Central
Avenue from Sutter to Hiller. As reported at this February 1, 2023 Board Meeting, GR
Sundberg was the low bidder at $2,532,275, which was below the Engineer’s Estimate
of $2.9M. $1.9M in water bond sales and $1M in wastewater bond sales will fund this
project. When we receive a construction schedule from GRS, we will provide it to the
Board and make sure that we begin notifying the Public of the proposed construction
schedule.

SRF Energy Efficiency WWMF Micro-grid Project — The installation of the microgrid
at the Wastewater Management Facility (WWMF) is proceeding behind schedule. The
solar portion of the facility was brought on-line and signed off by PG&E on July 1, 2022.
The District has been using and exporting solar energy since then. Staff still needs to
analyze and inform the Board of the monthly cost saving.

The battery portion of the system still being permitted through PG&E since we could not
submit that portion of the application until PG&E signed off on the solar portion. Now
that PG&E signed off on the solar portion, the application for the battery portion had
been submitted to them back in July 2022. We continue to wait for their review of the
battery design. PG&E needs to approve the design application, which they stated
should be done by October 2022, but we are now at the end of January with no
approval. We have been constantly checking in with PG&E and they continue to be
non-responsive. We have drafted a complaint letter to the California Public Utility
Commission and if we don’t see any progress soon, we will file it with the CPUC. Upon
PG&E approval, the entire microgrid will then be operational.

Sewer Undercrossing Project — FEMA has still not completed their National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) review and issued a Finding of No Significant Impact
(FONSI) to release the Phase 2 funding of the grant to fund the final design and
construction of the project. We had been informed that FEMA contractors were to
complete additional Cultural Resource surveys in early November at the southern
crossing site. We were then informed that the FEMA on-call contract for the

N
(@)



performance of this work would expire before the work could be completed. We were
contracted by FEMA to see if the District could contract directly for this work. We have
requested three proposals for the performance of this work and have received two, in
the amounts of $117, 025 and $119,796.90. We had requested a third proposal, but
unfortunately did not receive it. We also had a phone call with CalOES Staff to discuss
whether they would cover these costs. We were informed that they likely had the
funding to cover these costs, but since we only received two proposals, we would have
to go back out to bid to attempt to receive a third proposal. District Staff circulated
another Request for Proposal (RFP). The response to the RFP is due February 10,
Hopefully we will get another responsive proposal and we will bring a final contract to
the Board for review and possible approval at the March 1, 2023 Board meeting.

Office Remodel — LDA Partners continues to work on the Office Remodel design. LDA
completed an initial conceptual layout and District Staff commented on it back in
November. They updated the floorplan and a review meeting has been scheduled for
early February. LDA’s schedule has them completing the 60% design submittal in
March 2023 and going out to bid in October 2023. We'll of course see what the
estimated costs come back at and make final decisions on when/if we want to go out to
bid in 2023.

Reporting by Sheriff’s office, County Public Work — A regular meeting has been
scheduled with President Orsini, GM Kaspari, Supervisor Madrone, and the MMAC
Chair, Bonnie Oliver, to occur on the fourth Monday of every month to discuss various
topics of concern to all three organizations and the community. The month’s meeting we
mainly discussed the Town Center Ordinance and the impact of AB2449 on the MMAC
Meetings. Supervisor Madrone also mentioned that the Board of Supervisors was
approving DHHS to pursue a grant to establish a Crisis Unit at Mad River Hospital.
President Orsini also discussed having County Department Heads attend some of these
meetings to discuss issues with them related to MCSD and the MMAC.

Grant Applications — The McCluski Tanks Replacement and the Mad River Watermain
Crossing Hazard Mitigation grant applications were submitted to CalOES in March
2021. We heard in December 2021 that both projects have been forwarded on by
CalOES to FEMA for funding. We have not received the grant agreements yet, but we
have received Requests for Information from FEMA on the scopes of both projects so it
looks like both of those projects will be 75% grant funded. We still don’t know the
schedule for the grant approval or performance of this work.

A new Hazard Mitigation Grant was submitted for the upgrade of the Fischer Sewer Lift
station on April 6, 2022. This grant, if funded, will cover the complete retrofit of the



Fischer Lift Station, which pumps wastewater from the entire southern half of
McKinleyville to the wastewater management facility. This would include the
replacement of the pumps and upgrading the electrical system, valves, and further
seismically strengthen the building. We have been going back and forth with CalOES
with Requests for Information on that grant application and feel like this application will
likely be approved and submitted to FEMA, but we don’t know that for a fact yet.

The Federal Bipartisan Infrastructure Law funding that we will have access to will be run
through the EPA funded Clean Water and Drinking Water State Revolving Fund
Programs. The SRF funding in California is run through the State Water Resources
Control Board. As discussed with the Board at the December 7, 2022 Board Meeting,
we have submitted a Clean Water SRF application for funding the retrofit of the Fischer
and B Street Lift Stations, which are two of our highest priority Capital Improvement
Projects. We submitted this grant application in December 2022 and will of course keep
the Board updated on the success of that application.

Meetings —The General Manager attended numerous meetings as usual. The
meetings in January included meetings with Green Diamond and the Community Forest
Committee to discuss the Community Forest access sites and right-of-way; several
Microgrid construction meetings; the Bid Opening meeting for the Central Avenue Water
& Sewer replacement project; Mad River Restoration project site tours with California
Trout; several design meetings on the BMX Park development; several meetings with
Kennedy Jenks Engineers on the design of the 4.5MG Reservoir; Rotary meetings;
MMAC and Incorporation Subcommittee meetings; a coordination meeting with the
North Coast Resource Partnership Technical Review Committee; a Measure B survey
meeting; and a meeting with CalOES staff on the Highway Sewer Crossing project. As |
mentioned, 2023 has started off busy and it is expected to continue as busy as usual at
the District.

Attachments:
o Attachment 1 — WWMF Monthly Self-Monitoring Report

N
(&)]



PHYSICAL ADDRESS:

1&56 SUTTER ROAD
BcKINIEYVILIE, CA 95518

BAILING RADDRESS:

PG BOX 2037
MoRINLEYVILIE, Ca 95519

COMMUNITY
SERVICES

15T

RICT

mekinleyvilieesd.com

R.W.Q.C.B. NORTH COAST REGION
5550 SKYLANE BLVD., SUITE A

SANTA ROSA, CA 95403

RE: MONTHLY MONITORING REPORT

Dear Justin:

BAIE OFFULE:

PHOME: {707} 8303257
FAX: 707} B39.B454

PARKES & RECREATION OFFILE:

FHOME: (707) 8399003
FAX: (707} BI9-50564

January 13, 2023

Enclosed is the Monthly Monitoring Report for December 2022 for McKinleyville Community Services
District Wastewater Management Facilities WDID NO. 1B820840HUM, operating under Order Number

R1-2018-0032.

The normal discharge of effluent was 31 days going to 004 and 001. The required monitoring and water
quality constituents that were tested and reported was in compliance in December.

Effluent Limitations Units | Average | Average | Avg. % Max | Instant | Instant | Results
Parameters Monthly | Weekly Removal | Daily | Max Min

Monitoring Location

EFF- 001

BOD mg/L | 30 45 >85 Compliance
T8S Mg/L | 30 45 >85 Compliance
PH S.U. 6.5 8.5 Compliance
Settleable Solids mi/L | 0.1 0.2 Compliance
Chlorine Total Residual | mg/L | 0.1 0.2 Compliance
Carbon Tetrachloride ug/lL | .25 75 Compliance
Ammonia Impact Ratio | mg/L | 1.0 1.0 Compliance
Dichlorobromomethane | ug/L | .56 1.4 Compliance
Monitoring Location

LND-001, REC-001

Nitrate 10 Compliance
PH 6.0-9.0 {6.0-9.0 Compliance

Total Coliform Organisms MPN/100 ml. The Monthly Median not to exceed MPN of 23 and the daily
maximum not to exceed MPN of 240. The reported results for the month of December are as follows.
Median was <1.8 and a Maximum of <1.8. Four samples were collected in the month of December and

was in compliance.

Monthly River Monitoring was conducted in December.

N
o
(o]




McKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITY MONITORING DATA
MONTH: December 2022

0.877 0.912 879 N/A | N/A 71 | 123 11 Land 11:20 | 70| 96 [11.3]11:30| 70]100{11.4
0.798 0.910 851 N/A | N/A 300 330 71 | 17|00 1.2 1.2 Land <0.1

0.800 0.908 918 N/A | N/A 71 | 113 1.2 Land

0.968 0.008 1011 N/A | N/A 71 1 116 1.0 Land

0.934 0.871 991 2060 | 933 71 1 116 1.5 0.00 <1.8

0.885 1.081 1071 1350 | 566 70 | 115 1.2 0.00 1545 | 721 9.8 [11.1/15:55] 7.3 10.4]10.5
0.841 1.264 1301 681 235 71 | 116 2.6 0.00

0.859 1.256 1316 419 | 143 70 | 123 1.9 0.00

0.837 1.300 1278 576 | 202 260 170 71 | 1.7 | 29 22 1.7 0.00 <0.1

1.027 1.249 1139 701 276 70 | 120 1.9 0.00

1.128 1.243 1068 | 4080 | 1715 71 1115 1.4 0.00

0.970 1.263 1134 | 1510 | 598 70 | 1.3 341 0.00 <1.8

0.911 1.261 1255 851 304 70 | 108 2.4 0.00 16550 [ 70| 98 [11.7{16:00/ 71 ] 93 |114
0.874 1.263 1278 550 | 196 70 | 107 2.0 0.00

0.861 1.124 1314 410 | 140 7.0 | 107 1.6 0.00

0.844 0.948 916 328 | 161 320 230 69 1102 ] 00 1.1 1.5 0.00 <0.1

0.855 0.948 1009 285 | 127 6.9 | 10.0 1.9 0.00

0.904 0.948 968 257 | 119 71 ] 101 2.0 0.00

0.853 0.546 880 224 | 114 7.2 | 103 2.0 0.00 <1.8

0.869 0.394 902 N/A | N/A 70 | 113 1.0 Land 1425 [ 681 83 |11.9/14:35| 69| 83 [11.7]~
0.887 0.923 929 N/A | N/A 370 340 70 | 114 ]| 26 1.0 2.4 Land N
0.827 0.906 977 N/A | N/A 69 | 117 23 0.00 <0.1

0.849 0.848 825 478 | 260 70 | 113 2.8 0.00

0.856 0.848 925 858 | 416 71 1 115 2.0 0.00

0.810 0.844 827 694 | 377 71 | 123 2.0 0.00

0.954 0.976 996 770 | 347 72 | 180 2.2 0.00

1.182 0.701 1345 | 7350 | 2453 72 | 136 2.1 0.00 <1.8 1445 | 711 10.7[10.8/14:30| 6.9 ] 10.7|11.3
1.053 0.910 1144 | 7430 | 2015 440 320 72 | 118 |36 6.0 0.7 0.00

1.012 1.746 1270 | 4940 | 1746 69 | 116 1.6 0.00

1.276 1.803 1321 | 11100] 3772 7.0 | 121 1.6 0.00 <0.1

1.214 1.833 1330 | 21200( 7155 69 [ 122 1.8 0.00

MONTHLY TESTS EFF-001 DISCHARGE TO RIVER
o 7 ™ 7 s 8 5

MONTHLY RIVER RSW-001 MONTHLY RIVER RSW-002
43
e BOD BOD BOD TSS TSS TSS
BOD & TSS mg/L LBS/DAY % Removal mg/L LBS/DAY | % Removal
4 30 DAY AVERAGE 2 16 ) [¢1¢] 2 19 [¢l]

Signature: Remarks:

A [ [ ] | 1 N N A S A




McKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
WASTEWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITY
EFFLUENT DISCHARGE DISPOSAL DECEMBER 2022
Discharge 002 002 004 003 006 005 001
Monitoring  INF-001  EFF-001 LND-001 [LND-001 REC-001 REC-001 REC-001 REC-001 EFF-001
DATE  INFLUENT EFFLUENT MAXIMUM N.POND S.POND FISCHER FISCHER PIALORSI HILLER IRRGATE RIVER
MGD MGD GPM MGD MGD MGD MGD MGD MGD TOTAL MGD
UPPER LOWER MGD
1 0.877 0.912 879 Land 0.912 0.912 0.000
2 0.798 0.910 851 Land 0.910 0.910 0.000
3 0.800 0.908 918 Land 0.908 0.908 0.000
4 0.968 0.908 1011 Land 0.908 0.908 0.000
5 0.934 0.871 991 Land 0.363 - 0.363 0.508
6 0.885 - 1.081 1071 River Discharge 0.000 1.081
7 0.841 1.264 1301, - 0.000 1.264
8 0.859 1.256 1316 0.000 1.256
9 0.837 1.300 1278 0.000 1.300
10 1.027 1.249 1139 0.000 1.249
11 1.128 1.243 1068 0.000 1.243
| 12 0970,  1.253 1134 0.000 1.253
13 0.911 1.261 1255 0.000 1.261
14 0.874 1.263 1278 0.000 1.263
15 0861 1124 1314 0.000]  1.124
16 ~0.844. 0.948 916 0.000 0.948
17 0.855 0.948 1009 ° 0.000 0.948
18 0.904 0.948 968 0.000 0.948
19 ~0.853 0.546 880 0.000 0.546
20 0.869 0.394 902 Land 0.394 0.394 0.000
21 ~ 0.887 0.923| 929 Land 0.923 0.923 0.000
22 0.827 0.906 977 Land 0.395 0.395 0.511
23 0.849 0.848 825 River Discharge 0.000 0.848
24 0.856 0.848 925 0.000 0.848
25 0.810 0.844 827 0.000 0.844
26 - 0.954 0.976 996 0.000 0.976
| 27 1182 0.701 1345 0.000 0.701
28 1.053 0.910 1144 0.000 0.910
29 1.012 1.746 1270 0.000 1.746
30 1.276 1.803 1321 0.000 1.803
31 1.214 1.833 1330 0.000 1.833
TOTAL 28.815 32.925 x 0.000 0.000 5.713 0.000 0.000 0.000 5.713 27.212
|AVERAGE 0.930 1.062 1076 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.184|  0.878
MAXIMUM 1.276 1.833 1345 0.000 0.000 0.923 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.923 1.833
MINIMUM |  0.798 0.394 825 0.000| 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000|  0.000 0.000
|DAYS 31 31 0 0 8 0 0 0 8 26
DAYS WITH NO DISCHARGE = 0

N
o
oo



	D.2 Treasurer's Monthly Report 12-31-22.pdf
	ToC 
	Investment & Cash Flow Rpt
	Balance Sheet by Fund
	Budget2Actuals
	Selected Graphs
	CapitalProjects
	Grants
	Debt
	2022-12cashdisbursementreport

	D.5.1 (Attachment ) Current LEF Lease.pdf
	LEF Executed Lease
	LEF Executed Lease
	2021_02 Second Amendment to Lease

	D.5.2 (Attachment 2) Fourth Amendment to Lease CLEAN COPY.pdf
	UMCKINLEYVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICTU:
	By: _______________________________________  Date: __________________________
	Name: _____________________________________
	Title: ______________________________________
	UCOUNTY OF HUMBOLDTU:
	By: _______________________________________  Date: __________________________
	Steve Madrone, Chair
	Humboldt County Board of Supervisors

	E.2.1 (Attachment 1) prefund-opeb-agreement.pdf
	CALIFORNIA EMPLOYERS’ RETIREE BENEFIT TRUST PROGRAM ("CERBT")

	E.2.3 (Attachment 3) cerbt-valuation-packet.pdf
	Renewal Valuation Packet for CalPERS CERBT
	summary-actuarial-information 9-18-19.pdf
	Main

	Funding Policy v2.pdf
	Section I: CERBT Asset Allocation Strategy Selection
	Section II: Funding Method
	Comments
	Section III: Contribution and Reimbursement Method

	Renewal Valuation Packet cover sheet.pdf
	Renewal Valuation Packet for CalPERS CERBT

	Funding Policy v3.pdf
	Section I: CERBT Asset Allocation Strategy Selection
	Section II: Funding Method
	If applicable, please provide ADC amounts and periods covered as determined in the report (optional):
	ADC___________________
	Comments
	Section III: Contribution and Reimbursement Method

	Renewal Valuation Packet v7.pdf
	Renewal Valuation Packet for CalPERS CERBT

	Renewal Valuation cover sheet v8.pdf
	Renewal Valuation Packet for CalPERS CERBT

	Renewal Valuation cover sheet v9.pdf
	Renewal Valuation Packet for CalPERS CERBT

	Funding Policy.pdf
	Section I: CERBT Asset Allocation Strategy Selection
	Section II: Funding Method
	If applicable, please provide ADC amounts and periods covered as determined in the report (optional):
	ADC___________________
	Comments
	Section III: Contribution and Reimbursement Method


	E.2.5 (Attachment 5) ReservePolicyCalcs2020-0630ForFY21-22.pdf
	ResvSummary


	NAME OF EMPLOYER: McKinleyville Community Services District
	s Governing Body at a public meeting held on the: 1
	day of the month of: February
	in the year: 2023
	Printed Name of the Presiding Officer: Gregory P. Orsini
	Name of Governing Body: Board of Directors
	GOVERNING BODY: Board of Directors
	Name of Employer: McKinleyville Community Services District 
	The: Board of Directors
	in the positions of: General Manager
	TITLE: Finance Director
	TITLE_2: Human Resources Manager
	Date: 
	Renewal Val or AMM Report: Off
	Funding Policy: Off
	Summary: Off
	Certification: Off
	Employer Name: McKinleyville Community Services District
	Valuation Date: June 30, 2021
	Strategy-1: Off
	Strategy-2: Off
	Strategy-3: Off
	Method-1: Off
	%: 
	Method-2: On
	MMDDYYYY 1: 6/30/2022
	Firstyearadc: 804012
	MMDDYYYY 3: 6/30/2021
	Secondyearadc: 741540
	Comments: McKinleyville Community Services District will contribute to the Trust the total of annual premiums for plan participates, as well as, an excess amount determined annually by the District's budget process. 
	Comments 2: McKinleyville Community Services District will seek an annual reimbursement for pay-go costs. 
	Printed Name of Person Signing the Form: 
	Title: Board President 
	Contribution-1: Off
	Contribution-2: Off
	Contribution-3: On
	Actuary Contact Name: Evi Laksana
	Actuarial Firm: GovInvest
	Email: evi@govinvest.com
	Phone Number: (424) 877-2393
	Contact Name: Nicole Alvarado
	Organization: McKinleyville CSD
	Email_2: nalvarado@mckinleyvillecsd.com
	Phone Number_2: (707) 839-3251
	Valuation type: Accounting 
	Valuation frequency: Annual
	PVFB: 12408602
	Date PVFB Calculated: 6/30/2022
	Measurement Date: 6/30/2023
	TOL: 6942623
	FNP: 0
	NOL: 6942623
	MMDDYYYY 5: 06/30/2022
	AAL: 
	AVA: 
	UAAL: 
	Active PM: 24
	Inactive PM: 8
	Entitled to but not yet receiving benefits: 0
	Year 1: 06/30/2023
	Projected premium payments 1: 159049
	Implicit Rate Subsidy 1: 26674
	Year 2: 6/30/2024
	Projected premium payments 2: 149334
	Implicit Rate Subsidy 2: 44652
	Year 3: 06/30/2025
	Projected premium payments 3: 140606
	Implicit Rate Subsidy 3: 65108
	Year 4: 6/30/2026
	Projected premium payments 4: 126478
	Implicit Rate Subsidy 4: 89615
	Comments 3: 
	Employer Name Actuary:  McKinleyville Community Services District
	Valuation Date Actuary: June 30, 2022
	Printed Name of Actuary and Designation: 
	Date 2: 


